
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 17, 2023 

7:00 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of January 3, 2023. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Staff Updates 

Special Order of Business 

2. Public hearing on the proposed FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 6, 2023) 
 
b) Written communication filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 

3. Resolution declaring an official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2 to issue debt to reimburse 
the City for certain original expenditures paid in connection with specified projects. (contingent upon 
approval of previous item) 

4. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning to R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District, pursuant to 
a Zoning Agreement, for property located on Lots 5 and 6, Midway Business Park. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 6, 2023) 
 
b) Written communication filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending the Zoning Map by placing property located on Lots 5 and 6 of the 

1



Page 2 of 3 

Midway Business Park in the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District, pursuant to provisions of 
a Zoning Agreement, upon its first consideration. 

5. Public hearing on the proposed rezoning from R-4, Multiple Unit Residential, to R-1, One & Two Unit 
Residential, for Lots 1-4 of Midway Second Addition. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published January 6, 2023) 
 
b) Written communication filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending the Zoning Map by removing property generally described as Lots 1-
4 of Midway Second Addition from the R-4, Multiple Unit Residential Zoning District, to the R-1, One 
& Two Unit Residential Zoning District, upon its first consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of January 3, 2023 relative to the following 
items: 
a) Council Policy Development. 

7. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of January 3, 2023 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Annual Report of Library. 
b) RETF items implemented by Public Safety. 

8. Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions:  
a) Shirley Merner, Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees, term ending 12/31/28. 

9. Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - renewal. 
b) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
c) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution Calendar with items considered separately. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City's Accounting Policies and Procedures 
and Purchasing Manual. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Contract with Exceptional Persons, Inc. (EPI) 
relative to Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

13. Resolution approving the final plat of Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of ultraviolet (UV) 
disinfection lamps for the Water Reclamation facility. 

15. Resolution approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the work of Aspro, Inc. for the 
College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network 
Services relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the West 2nd Street 
public right-of-way. 

17. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Windstream Intellectual 
Property Services, LLC relative to installing a fiber optic telecommunications system within the West 
12th Street and Union Road public right-of-way. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase Agreement; and approving 
and accepting one Temporary Construction Easement, in conjunction with the Oak Park Sanitary 
Sewer Repair Project. 

19. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Wild Horse Ridge Fifth 
Addition. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting completion of public improvements in Wild Horse Ridge Sixth 
Addition. 

21. Resolution approving and accepting a Warranty Deed, in conjunction with the Main Street 
Reconstruction Project. 

22. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting February 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Hudson Road & West 
Ridgeway Avenue Intersection Improvements Project. 

23. Resolution receiving and filing, and setting February 6, 2023 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the Oak Park Boulevard 
Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

24. Allow Bills and Claims for January 17, 2023. 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Council Referrals 

Adjournment 

3



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JANUARY 3, 2023 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:07 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz (via phone), 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. Mayor Green led 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

54093 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of December 19, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54094 - The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Danielsen 

noted that items 22, 28 and 29 on the Resolution Calendar were being removed 
from the agenda. 

 
54095 -  Tamie Stahl, 1009 Lakeshore Drive, spoke in support of Fire Chief Bostwick and 

requested his reinstatement. Mayor Green clarified that Chief Bostwick is 
currently on administrative leave and has not suspended. 

 
54096 - City Administrator Gaines announced than an offer of employment has been 

made for the Diversity Equity Inclusion Specialist position. 
  
54097 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

21, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed 
FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP). It was then moved by 
Harding and seconded by Dunn that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
54098 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed CIP. Upon being advised that there were no written communications on 
file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & Business Operations 
Director Rodenbeck provided a summary of the proposed CIP and budget 
process. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the CIP, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54099 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that a resolution approving and 

adopting the FY2023-FY2028 Capital Improvements Program (CIP), be adopted. 
Following comments and questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Ganfield, Sires, 
and Kruse, and responses by City Administrator Gaines, Finance & Business 
Operations Director Rodenbeck and Public Works Director Schrage, the Mayor 
put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Harding, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, 
Ganfield, Sires. Motion failed.  

 
54100 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of December 

22, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposed 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan for a proposed urban renewal area. 
It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
54101 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plan. Upon being advised that there were no written communications 
on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic Development 
Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposed Urban Renewal 
Plan. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the plan, the 
Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
54102 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that Resolution #23,019, 

determining an area of the City to be an economic development area, and that 
the rehabilitation, conservation, redevelopment or a combination thereof, of such 
area is necessary in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare of the 
residents of the City; designating such area as appropriate for urban renewal 
projects; and adopting the Southwest Cedar Falls Urban Renewal Plan, be 
adopted. Following a question by Councilmember Ganfield and response by 
Economic Development Coordinator Graham, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,019 duly passed and adopted. 

54103 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,020, 
approving and authorizing execution of an Offer to Buy Real Estate and 
Acceptance for real estate located at 6512 West Ridgeway Avenue relative to 
expansion of the West Viking Road Industrial Park, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #23,020 duly passed and adopted. 

54104 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse to repass, over Mayor’s veto, 
Ordinance #3021, amending Section 18-23(5), Powers and duties of the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
removing 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve amendments to 
the City's comprehensive plan that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Following comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Dunn, Ganfield, 
Harding, Schultz, Sires and Kruse, and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted.  Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield, Sires.  Nay: Schultz, Harding, Dunn.  
Motion failed due to requirement of five aye votes. 

 
54105 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn to repass, over Mayor’s veto, 

Ordinance #3022, amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to removing the 2/3 majority vote required by City Council to approve 
zoning amendments that are disapproved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Following comments by Councilmember Ganfield, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

Councilmembers voted.  Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield, Sires.  Nay: Schultz, 
Harding, Dunn.  Motion failed due to requirement of five aye votes. 

 
54106 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Mayor Pro 
Tem for 2023. 

Receive and file the report of the Mayor relative to the appointment of Standing 
Committees for 2023. 

Receive and file the City Council Goal Setting Report of November 15 & 17, 
2022. 

Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of December 19, 
2022 relative to the following items: 
a) Capital Improvements Program (CIP). 
b) Format of FY2024 City Council Goals, Work Program and Short-Term 
Financial Plan document. 

Receive and file CFD 1123: Mayor Policy - Council Meeting Security and Good 
Order. 

Receive and file the resignation of Don Timmerman as a member of the Housing 
Commission. 

Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of November 2022. 

Approve the following applications for retail alcohol licenses: 
a) Huhot Mongolian Grill, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol 
- renewal. 
b) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C retail alcohol – change 
in ownership. 
c) Hy-Vee Food Store, 6301 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol – change 
in ownership. 
d) AmericInn by Wyndham, 5818 Nordic Drive, Class B retail alcohol – new. 
e) Holiday Inn Express & Suites, 1614 Technology Parkway, Class B retail 
alcohol – new. 
f) Second State Brewing, 203 State Street, Class C retail alcohol & outdoor 
service – new. 

 Motion carried unanimously. 

54107 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to receive and file Disclosures 
of Potential Conflicts of Interest for elected officials. Following comments and 
questions by Councilmembers deBuhr, Sires and Dunn, and responses by Mayor 
Green, the motion carried 5-2, with deBuhr and Kruse voting Nay. 

 
54108 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield to receive and file CFD 

1129: Mayor Policy - Administrator Performance Evaluation. Following a request 
by Councilmember deBuhr to replace the word “councilors” to “councilmembers” 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

throughout the document, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
54109 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Dunn that the following resolutions be 

introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #23,021, approving and adopting amendments to Personnel Policy 
307: Overtime, for the City of Cedar Falls. 

 Resolution #23,022, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 323 West 2nd Street. 

 Resolution #23,023, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 
mow the property located at 829 Lilac Lane. 

 Resolution #23,024, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
the Use of State or Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative 
Program for Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) for 
FY2023, Case #WC-IAN-139. 

 Resolution #23,025, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
the Use of State or Local Overtime and Authorized Expense/Strategic Initiative 
Program for Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force (OCDETF) for 
FY2023, Case #WC-IAN-136. 

 Resolution #23,026, approving and authorizing execution of a Travel Iowa Data 
Co-op Agreement with the Iowa Economic Development Authority (IEDA) relative 
to access to statewide and localized visitation data. 

 Resolution #23,027, approving and authorizing execution of an Owner Purchase 
Agreement; and approving and accepting one Temporary Construction 
Easement, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,028, approving and accepting two Warranty Deeds, in 
conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction Project. 

 Resolution #23,029, setting January 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
the proposed rezoning to R-4, Multiple Unit Residential, and associated zoning 
agreement for property located on Greenhill Circle, Midway Business Park. 

 Resolution setting #23,030, January 17, 2023 as the date of public hearing on 
the proposed rezoning from R-4, Multiple Unit Residential, to R-1, One & Two 
Unit Residential, for Lots 1-4, Midway Second Addition.  

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #23,021 through #23,030 duly 
passed and adopted. 

54110 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,031, 
approving and adopting the FY2024 City Council Goals, Work Program and 
Short-Term Financial Plan, be adopted. Following due consideration by the 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, Harding, Ganfield, Dunn. 
Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#23,031 duly passed and adopted. 

54111 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,032, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Services Agreement with Cope Murphy 
+ Co. LLP relative to providing lobbyist services relative to legislative action, be 
adopted. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers Kruse and 
deBuhr, and responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck 
and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Dunn. Nay: Schultz, Ganfield, Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #23,032 duly passed and adopted. 

54112 - It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that Resolution #23,033, 
approving a C-1, Commercial Zoning District site plan for construction of a tri-
plex to be located on Lot 4, Hannah Park Commercial Addition, be adopted. 
Following a question by Councilmember deBuhr and response by Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard, the Mayor put the question on the motion 
and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #23,033 duly passed and adopted. 

54113 -  It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
January 3, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer 
be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper 
funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

   
54114 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Legal Matters per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(c) to discuss 
strategy with counsel in matters that are presently in litigation or where litigation 
is imminent where its disclosure would be likely to prejudice or disadvantage the 
position of the governmental body in that litigation. Upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:16 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 9:35 P.M.   
   
54115 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Sires that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:36 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

8

Item 1.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members  

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 11, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FY23-FY28 Capital Improvements Program 

 
Attached is the FY23-FY28 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) that incorporated the 
changes from the Finance & Business Operations (FBO) committee on December 19th 

and adding the *s as approved at the Jan. 3rd City Council meeting to all non-City 
funding right next to the project line item amount.  There will be a presentation at the 
January 17th FBO committee meeting to discuss possible amendments to the CIP and 
allow for further council discussion and consideration of the CIP.   
 
If you have questions regarding the CIP, please feel free to contact me. 
 
 
 

9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



16

Item 2.



17

Item 2.



18

Item 2.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

 FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: January 10, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Annual Reimbursement Resolution 

 
Please find attached a copy of the IRS mandated reimbursement resolution.  Each year 
the City submits a list of projects prior to the sale of General Obligation bonds and 
Revenue bonds that allows the City to be eligible to reimburse ourselves from the bond 
funds for previously incurred expenses relating to the projects listed. 
 
The attachment referred to in the resolution will be the FY23-FY28 Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) that is also being presented to Council for approval.  After 
formal adoption, a copy of the final CIP will be attached to the resolution and filed in the 
City’s official records.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19

Item 3.



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARING AN OFFICIAL INTENT UNDER TREASURY 
REGULATION  1.150-2 TO ISSUE DEBT TO REIMBURSE THE CITY FOR 

CERTAIN ORIGINAL EXPENDITURES PAID IN CONNECTION WITH 
SPECIFIED PROJECTS 

 
WHEREAS, the City anticipates making cash expenditures for one or more 

capital improvements projects, generally described on Attachment A (each of which 

shall hereinafter be referred to as a "Project"), and 

 

WHEREAS, the City reasonably expects to issue debt to reimburse the costs of a 

Project, and 

 

WHEREAS, the Council believes it is consistent with the City's budgetary and 

financial circumstances to issue this declaration of official intent. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa: 

Section 1.  That this Resolution be and does hereby serve as a declaration of 

official intent under Treasury Regulation 1.150-2. 

Section 2.  That it is reasonably expected that capital expenditures will be made 

in respect of the foregoing Projects, from time to time and in such amounts as this 

Council determines to be necessary or desirable under the circumstances then and 

there existing. 

Section 3.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse all or a portion of the 

foregoing expenditures with the proceeds of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be 

issued or incurred by the City in the future. 

Section 4.  That the total estimated costs of the projects, the maximum principal 

amount of bonds, notes or other indebtedness to be issued for the foregoing Projects and 

the estimated dates of completion of the Projects are reasonably expected to be as follows: 

 

 

20

Item 3.



See Attachment A: 

 All Projects with the identifications code of G.O. 2020, 2022, 

2024, 2026, and 2028; SRF, STW, SRB-2018, SRB-2024,and 

SRB-2026. 

 All Projects with the identifications code of TIF-UN, TIF-DT, TIF-

CH, TIF-PP, and TIF-STH. 

 All Projects with CP, LST, SCF, ER, and GFS. 

If such grants are not received, it is intended that the costs to be financed will be 

increased accordingly. 

Section 5.  That the City reasonably expects to reimburse the above-mentioned 

Project costs no later than the later of eighteen months after the capital expenditures are 

paid or eighteen months after the property is placed in service. 

Section 6.  That this Resolution be maintained by the City Clerk in an Official Intent 

File maintained in the office of the City Clerk and available at all times for public inspection, 

subject to such revisions as may be necessary. 

 

ADOPTED this 17th day of January 2023.       

                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                     ________________________ 
                                                                                Robert M. Green, Mayor 
                                                                                            
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Jacque Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

21

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Zoning Agreement – Midway Business Park 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

New Zoning Agreement - Midway Business Park 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Lucas Moore, Oak District LLC 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 5 & 6 Midway Business Park: Greenhill Circle 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a request to amend the zoning restriction placed on Lots 5 and 6 of the 
Midway Business Park subdivision. This restriction only allows for the construction of 
professional service office buildings and the applicant wishes to establish a nursing home/senior 
assisted living facility on said lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the process of preparing an amendment to the zoning agreement it was discovered that there 
was an error in the legal description included in the original zoning agreement from 1994 so it 
did not accurately describe the same properties that were rezoned to R-4 at the time. Since this 
error nullifies that rezoning, the agreement, and any subsequent amendments, it is best to 
rescind the original agreement and draft a new one that includes the conditions that remain 
relevant today, specifically the use restrictions in the Midway Business Park. It is also necessary 
to properly rezone to R-4 as the original resolution to rezone used the same legal description as 
the agreement.  
  
The other two conditions of the original 1994 agreement have already been accomplished. 
Namely, Lovejoy Drive ends in a cul-de-sac, and four single family homes have been 
constructed on the four lots at the end of Lovejoy.  This effectively separates the residential 
neighborhood from the Midway Business Park, so no commercial traffic can flow through the 
neighborhood (see aerial image below). For reference, the minutes from the previous meeting 
are noted below. 
 

22

Item 4.



 
 
Aside from the issue of the legal description of the land this would apply to, no material facts 
regarding the request and staff’s analysis have changed. It should be noted that an amendment 
to the 1994 agreement was approved in 2018 which provided for a nursing home/senior 
assisted living use on lots 7 and 8. With the success of the initial facility, Oak District, the 
applicant would like to take the necessary steps with a new zoning agreement to allow a second 
similar assisted living facility on Lots 5 & 6. If this request is approved, only two lots within the 
Midway Business Park Subdivision will remain undeveloped. 
 
One important issue is that there are four single-family homes at the end of Lovejoy Drive (cul-
de-sac abutting the business park) that were zoned R-4 and were included in the 1994 
agreement to be restricted to single-family use. Since the conditions of the original 1994 
agreement have already been accomplished and the legal description did not entirely 
encompass those lots, the use restrictions may not be enforceable. The property is currently 
zoned R-4, High Density Residential. To ensure that multifamily and non-residential uses are 
not established in that single-family neighborhood counter to the intent of the original agreement 
(however unlikely), staff will be recommending rezoning these properties to R-1 to be consistent 
with the rest of the residential neighborhood.  Staff has reached out to these property owners to 
explain the situation and proposes to rezone their properties to R-1, so staff is bringing that 
forward as a separate rezoning case before Council. 
  

23

Item 4.



ANALYSIS 
To the north, the property abuts a City-owned lot that is used as a stormwater detention basin, 
to the east is the Oak District assisted living facility, to the south is First Security State Bank and 
to the west is an undeveloped lot currently owned by First Security State Bank. 
 
This request is unlike a typical rezoning request because the initial request restricted the usage 
of these two lots to professional office uses. The proposal is to execute a new zoning agreement 
to allow a use that is generally permitted in the R-4 district. All basic utility accommodations 
serve the property including sanitary sewer and a water main to each lot. The developer would 
utilize one connection and the other service connections will need to be abandoned at the 
developers cost. Vehicular access to the property is from Greenhill Circle.  
 
The two lots in question are 1.09 acres in area. The site plan submitted mirrors the previous 
development showing a 9,813 square foot building with 16 units and 11 parking spaces to serve 
the staff and visitors, as most residents are unable to drive. 
 
Based on the proposed development of Lots 5 and 6 in the Midway Business Park addition, staff 
supports this request to allow nursing homes and assisted living facilities in addition to 
professional offices by executing a new zoning agreement. The proposed use, assisted living, is 
allowed in the R-4 zoning district. Reviewing the case history of this zoning agreement and 
subsequent platting of the property, staff finds that this change to the zoning restrictions will be 
compatible with the surrounding neighborhood. The one-story building is similar in height to 
nearby homes and subject to similar building setbacks. Use of the property for supportive 
housing is consistent with the intended purpose of the zone. The traffic to the subject properties 
will not affect the surrounding residential properties because the only access to these lots is 
from Greenhill Circle via Greenhill Road.  
 
The zoning agreement approved in 1994 and revised in 2018 will need to be rescinded and 
replaced by a new zoning agreement which accommodates the proposed assisted living facility. 
The new zoning agreement will only encompass the lots within the Midway Business Park and 
not the four single family lots at the end of Lovejoy. 
 
Two notices were mailed to the adjoining property owners regarding this zoning district 
amendment. Notice of these rezone considerations was published in the WCF Courier on 
December 7, 2022 and notice of Council’s hearing was published in the WCF Courier on 
January 6, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
At their December 14 meeting, the Planning and Zoning Commission unanimously 
recommended approval of RZ22-003, a new zoning agreement that encompasses the Midway 
Business Park and restricts the uses to professional offices, nursing homes, and assisted living 
facilities. As part of this action, the resolutions approving the 1994 agreement and the 2018 
amendment will be rescinded. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission also recommends approval of a proper rezoning of the 
Midway Business Park to R-4 utilizing the correct legal description. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

24

Item 4.



Introduction  
11/22/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a request to rezone 
property in Midway Business Park to R-4 with a new Zoning Agreement. Acting 
Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that staff brought forward a zoning agreement in September for this 
request and it was discovered through that process that there were some errors in 
the original legal description from the 1994 agreement. This consideration is more 
of a formality at this point since the commission previously voted in favor of the 
changes that the applicant has requested. At this time, staff proposes to replace the 
agreement as opposed to amending it, cleaning up provisions that have been 
fulfilled. Staff recommends setting a public hearing to consider a new zoning 
agreement that will encompass the Midway Business Park and restrict the uses to 
professional offices, nursing homes and assisted living facilities. The resolutions 
approving the 1994 agreement and the 2018 amendment will be rescinded. The 
new agreement will be brought forward at the public hearing. Staff also 
recommends setting a public hearing to consider a proper rezoning of the Midway 
Business Park to R-4 utilizing the correct legal description. 
 
Ms. Crisman made a motion to approve move the item forward for public hearing. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 
ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

Public Hearing 
12/14/2022 

The first item of business was a public hearing for a new zoning agreement 
in Midway Business Park. Acting Chair Lynch introduced the item and Mr. 
Sevy provided background information. He explained that the property sits 
east of Cedar Heights Drive and north of Greenhill Road and the applicant 
would like to build an assisted living facility on Lots 5 and 6 which isn’t 
permitted by the current zoning agreement. It is appropriate to execute a 
new zoning agreement and rezone to R-4 to update the zoning restriction 
and correct the legal description error discussed at the previous meeting. 
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning and the new zoning agreement.  
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Grybovych seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 
Attachments: Location map 
  Lots where assisted living facility is proposed 
  Request Letter 
  Original Zoning Agreement 
  New Agreement 
  Rezone Ordinance 
   

25

Item 4.



Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â

â
â

â

â

â

Greenhill Dr

Mark Dr

Jodi Dr

Sager Ave

Scenic Dr

Valley High Dr

Cardinal Ct

Lovejoy Dr

Greenhill Cir

Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Greenhill Rd

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1 R-4

C-2

R-1

R-2

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 17, 2023

Zoning Agreement update & Rezone to R-4
Midway Business Park
All properties on Greenhill Circle

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

26

Item 4.



27

Item 4.



28

Item 4.



29

Item 4.



30

Item 4.



31

Item 4.



32

Item 4.



33

Item 4.



34

Item 4.



35

Item 4.



36

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE CONDITIONALLY REZONING APPROXIMATELY 7.49 ACRES OF LAND 

DESCRIBED HEREIN TO THE R-4 MULTIPLE RESIDENCE DISTRICT, AMENDING THE 

ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA ACCORDINGLY, AND ADOPTING THE 

CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN 

 
WHEREAS, a rezoning from the R-1, Residential Zoning District to the R-4, Multiple 

Residence District was approved by City Ordinance No. 2080 on January 9, 1995, which 

ordinance contained a legal description that contained errors, such that the ordinance was 

not indicative of the property that was originally intended to be rezoned as per City records; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, a Zoning Agreement was adopted by City Resolution No. 9798 on 

December 12, 1994 (hereinafter the “Previous Agreement”) which cited the same property legal 

description containing errors; and 

 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the Previous Agreement was approved by City Council 

Resolution No. 21,212 on August 6, 2018 (hereinafter the “Amendment”), which cited the same 

property description as in the Previous Agreement and amended the Previous Agreement to restrict 

the uses on Lots 7 and 8 of the Midway Business Park to professional offices, nursing homes, and 

senior assisted living facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Owners of all property intended to be subject to the Previous Agreement are 

requesting another change to allow nursing homes and assisted living facilities, in addition to 

professional offices, on Lots 5 & 6 of the Midway Business Park; and 
 

WHEREAS, Iowa Code 414.5, as amended, provides that a City Council may impose 

reasonable conditions on granting an applicant's rezoning request, over and above existing regulations, 

in order to satisfy public needs directly caused by the requested change; and 

 

WHEREAS, Owners all agree that a New Zoning Agreement, to replace the Previous Agreement 

and the Amendment, be executed which reflects the intent of the Owners to restrict the uses on properties 

within the Midway Business Park to nursing homes, assisted living facilities and professional offices only, 

and that all other provisions of the Previous Agreement and Amendment have been satisfied; and  

 

WHEREAS, under case number RZ22-003, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, has recommended approval of a rezoning of the property described below to R-4 

Multiple Residence District, subject to the New Zoning Agreement that restricts use of the properties to 

37

Item 4.



professional offices, nursing homes, and assisted living facilities, to ensure compatibility with the 

adjacent residential neighborhood (hereinafter the “New Zoning Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the City to rezone the property 

described below to R-4, Multiple Residence District, pursuant to the New Zoning Agreement 

attached hereto, and by this reference incorporated herein as fully as though set out in this ordinance, 

which conditions are hereby imposed upon the property owners, their successors and assigns, and 

upon the real estate described below, and shall run with the land; and 

  

WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is incorporated 

into and made a part of said Ordinance; and 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such hearing 

held on the proposed amendment.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby added to the R-4, 

Multiple Residence District: 

 

Legal Description: 

MIDWAY BUSINESS PARK, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA 

 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-4, Multiple Residence 

District, pursuant to a New Zoning Agreement that has been made a part of this ordinance, and the 

amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

Section 3. That City Council Resolution No. 9798 and City Council Resolution No. 

21,212 are hereby rescinded.  

  

INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

         _________________________ 

         Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

38

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Chris Sevy, Planner I 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Rezone Midway 2nd Addition 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone from R-4 to R-1 

PETITIONER: 
 

City of Cedar Falls 

LOCATION: 
 

Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition (3019-3028 Lovejoy Dr) (RZ22-005) 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The zoning agreement that restricts the use of these lots to single family in the R-4 District is in 
the process of being rescinded and replaced as errors were discovered in the legal description 
while updating the restrictions in that agreement. The agreement has served its purpose in the 
establishment of single-family uses, and it makes more sense at this time to regulate these lots 
the same as the rest of the residential neighborhood. To ensure that the use of these lots 
remains consistent with the residential neighborhood, staff proposes that they be rezoned from 
R-4 to R-1. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In the process of preparing an amendment to the zoning agreement it was discovered that there 
was an error in the legal description included in the original zoning agreement from 1994 so it 
did not accurately describe the same properties that were rezoned to R-4 at the time. Since this 
error nullifies the agreement and any subsequent amendments, it is best to rescind the original 
agreement and draft a new one that includes the conditions that remain relevant today, 
specifically the use restrictions in the Midway Business Park. 
  
The other two conditions of the original 1994 agreement have already been accomplished. 
Namely, Lovejoy Drive ends in a cul-de-sac, and four single family homes have been 
constructed on the four lots at the end of Lovejoy.  This effectively separates the residential 
neighborhood from the Midway Business Park, so no commercial traffic can flow through the 
neighborhood (see aerial image below).  
 

39

Item 5.



 
 
The four residential properties at the end of Lovejoy Drive are currently zoned R-4, High Density 
Residential. To ensure that multifamily and non-residential uses are not established in that 
single-family neighborhood counter to the intent of the original agreement (however unlikely), 
staff is recommending rezoning these properties to R-1 to be consistent with the rest of the 
residential neighborhood.  Staff has reached out to these property owners to explain the 
situation and discuss rezoning their properties to R-1. 
 
ANALYSIS 
By virtue of the errors in the legal description of the original zoning agreement, the enforceability 
of that agreement is in question. The city is in the process of rescinding and replacing the 
agreement which leaves two options: 

1. Include the residences in the new zoning agreement and continue to regulate the 
residences in that way, or 

2. Rezone the residences to R-1 and regulate them the same as the adjacent homes in the 
neighborhood, which is zoned R-1. 

 
Since, for some time these have not been considered part of the Midway Business Park but an 
addition to the Midway Subdivision, the latter option appears to be more appropriate. Also, 
rezoning to R-1 better defines the rights of the property owners. 
 
Worth noting is that there are platted 20-foot front setbacks that will continue to apply to these 
properties. All other aspects of R-1 District standards will apply.  
 
MINIMUM CRITERIA FOR REZONE 
The following criteria are the minimum consideration for a rezone: 
 

40

Item 5.



1) Is the rezoning request consistent with the Future Land Use Map and the Comprehensive 
Plan? 

Yes, these residences are slated for Low Density Residential on the Future Land Use Map 
 

2) Is the property readily accessible to sanitary sewer service?  
Yes, these are developed lots and each residence is connected to utilities. 

 
3) Does the property have adequate roadway access?  
Yes, the lots are on a cul-de-sac at the end of Lovejoy Drive.    

 
Notice was mailed to the adjoining property owners on September 6, 2022 regarding the zoning 
agreement amendment. Additional notice was mailed on November 4, 2022 regarding the 
change of course to rescind and replace the agreement. Lastly, notice was mailed on November 
16th, 2022 regarding this rezone from R-4 to R-1. 
 
Notice of public hearing regarding these rezone considerations was published in the WCF 
Courier on December 7, 2022 and notice of Council’s hearing was published in the WCF Courier 
on January 6, 2023. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal and unanimously recommends 
approval of a rezoning of the subject properties from R-4 to R-1.  
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

Introduction  
11/22/2022 

The next item for consideration a rezoning request for Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd 
Addition. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided 
background information. He explained that Lots 1-4 were part of the original 
agreement discussed in the previous item. One of the stipulations was that both 
streets would end in a cul-de-sac and these lots would be restricted to residential 
uses and be zoned R-4. Because R-4 has several other uses that are not 
considered residential, the zoning would need to be changed to R-1 for these lots 
so as to be regulated the same as the other residential parcels in the neighborhood. 
Staff recommends setting a public hearing to consider rezoning the subject 
properties from R-4 to R-1.  
 
 Mr. Larson thanked the developer for bringing a great project to the area and 
apologized for any unplanned delays. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to move the item to public hearing. Ms. Moser seconded 
the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and Moser), and 0 nays. 
 

41

Item 5.



Public Hearing 
12/14/2022 

The next item for consideration by the Commission was a public hearing 
regarding a rezoning of Lots 1-4 in the Midway 2nd Addition. Acting Chair 
Lynch introduced the item and Mr. Sevy provided background information. 
He explained that the previous rezoning to R-4 with an associated zoning 
agreement was intended to encompass a larger area that included the 
Lovejoy cul-de-sac. However, the legal description in the previous zoning 
action years ago has an error, so the properties need to be rezoned with the 
correct legal description. Since these four lots are at the end of a cul-de-sac 
that does not connect to the Midway Business Park and have already been 
developed with single family homes, the City is proposing to rezone these 
lots to R-1, so the zoning is consistent with the rest of the residential 
neighborhood.  
 
Ms. Moser made a motion to approve the item. Mr. Larson seconded the 
motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Larson, Lynch and Moser), and 0 nays. 

 
Attachments: Location map 
  Rezoning Ordinance 
   
   

42

Item 5.



Gree
n

Cr
ee

k

Valley
High Park

Greenhill Trail

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

â

â
â

â

â

â

â

â

Ch
ad

wic
k R

d

Cardinal Ct

Leg
acy

 Ln

Lovejoy Dr

Valley High Dr
Cardinal Dr

Cal
lumCt

Greenhill Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

E Greenhill Rd

C-1

R-4

R-1

C-2

R-1

R-2
MU

A-1

RP

Cedar Falls City Council
January 17, 2023

Rezone from R-4 to R-1
Lots 1 through 4, Midway 2nd Addition
3019, 3020, 3027, 3028 Lovejoy Dr.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

CenterS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

SM
ain

St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

43

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by: Chris Sevy, Planner I, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 
ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 1.44 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-4, MULTIPLE RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND 

ADDING IT TO THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately 1.44 acres of property from R-4, Multiple Residence 

District to R-1, Residence District, more specifically described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

finds that the rezoning (Case #RZ22-005) is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Cedar Falls and therefore has recommended to the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, that the property described below shall be removed from the R-4, Multiple Residence District 

and placed in the R-1, Residence District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best 

interests of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, that said proposal be made and approved; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the said Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 

FALLS, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the following described real estate, be and the same is hereby removed from 

the R-4, Multiple Residence District and added to the R-1, Residence District: 
 

Legal Description 

MIDWAY SECOND ADDITION, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

Section 2. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

amended to show the property described in Section 1, above, as now being in the R-1, Residence 

44

Item 5.



District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, as amended. 

 

  

INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

         _________________________ 

ATTEST:        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

45

Item 5.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls City Hall Conference Room 2 

January 3, 2023 
 
The City Council held a work session at City Hall at 5:50 p.m. on Tuesday, January 3, 
2023, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Rob Green, Susan deBuhr, 
Daryl Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Dave Sires, and Kelly Dunn.  Absent:  Gil 
Schultz.  Staff members attended from all City Departments and members of the 
community attended in person. 
 
Mayor Green called the meeting to order.  The roll was called.  Mayor Green introduced 
the only item on the agenda, Council Policy Development.  Mayor Green reviewed a 
memo, chart, and City Ordinance policy authority information outlining a proposal for 
consistent City policy development, review, approval, and oversight based on current 
City Ordinances.  Mayor Green opened for discussion.  Councilmembers discussed final 
policy approval by Council; appropriateness of Council approval for updated Public 
Safety policies; pros and cons of approval of policies by Council individually or by 
“receive and file”; how to balance not micro-managing staff with the final authority of 
Council; continuation of Council final approval of Personnel Policies; Council review and 
approval of Police and Fire Standard Operating Guides and Emergency Operation Plan.  
Councilmember Harding suggested creating a list of what Council should have to 
approve individually versus “receive and file”.  Councilmembers also requested to see a 
list of current policies and how they are approved at a future meeting. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 6:15 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

46

Item 6.



  
 
 
 

MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
City Hall, 220 Clay Street 

January 3, 2023 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at City Hall at 6:21 p.m. on January 3, 2023, with the 
following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Simon 
Harding, Daryl Kruse, Dustin Ganfield, and Dave Sires; absent: Gil Schultz. Staff members from all 
City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   
 
Finance & Business Operations Committee: 
Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Finance & Business 
Operations Committee Agenda, Annual Report of Library and introduced the Library Director, Kelly 
Stern. Director Stern gave an update on the FY22 Annual Report which included the following 
highlights: 131,460 physical items and 13,587 downloadable items checked out in FY22; patron 
visits have increased since last year. Director Stern stated the library is also working on building 
relationships to serve local needs and interests; diversity & inclusion; discovery, education & 
learning; connectedness of collection, learning, and programs (gardening programs, worm farm, 
decomposition of pumpkins, and a mobile kitchen). Director Stern stated upcoming items at the 
library will include a new brand, new and expanded partnerships; continued accessibility 
enhancements; greater diversity in programs and food education and cooking demos with the 
Charlie Cart. No questions from Councilmembers.  
 
Public Safety Committee: 
Chair Ganfield called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Public Safety 
Committee Agenda, RETF items implemented by Public Safety and introduced Director of Public 
Safety, Craig Berte. Director Berte stated the Racial Equity Task Force had given recommendations 
in the Fall of 2021 that included education, housing and policing. Director Berte introduced Police 
Chief Mark Howard; Chief Howard gave an outline of items that are now practices/upcoming 
implementation and how they integrate with the Public Safety’s 5-year strategic plan. Items in the 
outline included: Crisis Intervention Team; de-escalation scenario training; changes in the formal 
complaint process; establishing partnerships in the community; ability of officers to take patrol cars 
home; recruiting at colleges/athletic departments and out of state/Cedar Valley recruitment; 
continuing to work with HRC; new recruiting video and brochure; investing in our officers’ wellness 
and advancements within the department for retention; educational assistance and competitive pay. 
Chief Howard discussed traffic stops and arrests from 2020-2022 and the Police division’s diversity 
currently. Councilmembers discussed National Night Out, diversity, adding a social worker to 
staffing, and yard signs.     
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 
 
Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

47

Item 7.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: January 10, 2023 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment of Shirley Merner to the Health Trust Fund Board of Trustees 

 REF: (a) Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-364 

  (b) CFD 1201.22d – Appointment Process for Boards and Commissions 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate the following for reappointment to the Cedar Falls Health Trust Fund Board of 

Trustees a six-year term, as their current terms expired on December 31, 2022: 

 

 Ms. Shirley Merner (Reappointment) – Term ends 12/31/2028 

 

2. The board service of this board member has been reviewed by City staff. She had 

satisfactory attendance and has actively been contributing to the work of the Board; she 

has agreed to serve for an additional term if approved by the City Council.    

 

3. Although Ms. Merner has surpassed twenty years of service (with an original appointment 

of 2/24/1997), I am making an exception to the twenty-year cap described in reference (b). 

This decision is due to the historical difficulty of finding members to serve on this board. 

 

4. Please contact me if you have any questions about the above appointment. 

 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

48

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Police Chief 

Date:  January 9, 2023 

Re:  Retail Alcohol License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for retail alcohol licenses. We find no 
records that would prohibit these licenses and recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) College Square Cinema, 6301 University Avenue, Special Class C retail alcohol - 
renewal. 

b) Fraternal Order of Eagles, 2125 West Lone Tree Road, Class C retail alcohol & 
outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Kwik Spirits, 4116 University Avenue, Class E retail alcohol - renewal. 

 

49

Item 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: January 6, 2023 

 SUBJECT:  Updated Purchasing Manual 

 
Attached are Sections 11 and 28 of Accounting Policies and Procedures and 

Purchasing Manual.  These sections have been updated to incorporate the following 

revisions: 

 

 Section 11: Public improvement bidding threshold requirements as set by the 

State of Iowa have been updated 

 Section 28: has been updated to adhere to the guidance in State Auditor 

opinion statements dated May 2020 and November 2021, ensuring public 

purpose is served when directing public funds toward a private non-profit. 

 

 

If you have any questions regarding the manual, please feel free to contact me.  

 

CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 

50

Item 11.



SECTION 11 
 

QUOTATIONS AND BIDS 
 
 
11.01 BASIS FOR QUOTATIONS OR BIDS: 
 

When a department determines a need to purchase an item, that department will 
seek a source of the requested materials and/or services. 

 
1. Requirements for solicitation of bids and quotations: The material and/or services 

requested and approved for purchase are of significant value and/or  
of a competitive nature. 

 
2. Exemptions from competitive quotation and bidding procedures: 

 
a. Repair parts of a sole source nature shall be exempt from competitive 

quotation and bidding procedures. 
 
b. Specialized services shall be exempt from the competitive quotation and 

bidding process, as deemed appropriate by the Director of Finance & 
Business Operations except as required by State Law. 

 
c. Specialized items of a technical nature shall be exempt from competitive  

quotation and bidding procedures, except as required by State Law. 
 

d. Utilization of State of Iowa, General Services Administration (GSA), National 
IPA, OMINIA Partners, US Communities, or other state or federal joint 
purchasing cooperations.  Competitively bid State of Iowa or other state or 
federal contracts available to political subdivisions may be utilized in lieu of 
soliciting written bids or verbal quotation for the purchase of commodities 
and services.   

 
3. Special Conditions: 

 
a. Proof of insurance: Proof of insurance may be required for public 

improvement projects, services to be performed on City property, or other 
contracts for equipment or services.  The amount of coverage required shall 
be based on risk factors and determined by the City’s Risk Management 
Committee. 

 
b. Affirmative Action compliance:  The City of Cedar Falls adheres to Local, 

State, and Federal Laws which require that businesses providing goods and 
services to the City of Cedar Falls are Equal Opportunity Employers. Any 
contract entered into by the City of Cedar Falls in accordance with this policy 
ensures that disadvantaged business enterprises will be afforded full 

51

Item 11.



opportunity to submit bids in response to request for bids.  They will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in 
consideration of the contract award.  

 
c. The responsible bid requirement focuses on the bidder, which means the bid 

is submitted by a bidder who has the financial and technical ability to perform 
and complete the required work. The responsive bid requirement focuses on 
the bid and is a check to ensure the bidder agrees to all that is required in 
the plans, specifications and other requirements of the project. 

 
4. Unique Requirements of Government Contracts 

 
a. All purchases funded through a State or Federal grant must follow all 

additional procedures required by the grantor. All bid specifications for a 
purchase that is funded through a State or a Federal grant must list all 
additional specifications for the goods or services that are required by the 
grantor. Any contract funded through a federal grant shall comply with 2 CFR 
200.318 through 200-326 and Appendix II to Part 200. 
 

b. Contractors must be evaluated when bids are received on their ability to 
meet State or Federal requirements. The City will not award a federally 
funded contract to a party listed as debarred, suspended, or otherwise 
excluded in the System for Award Management (SAM). www.sam.gov  

 
In addition, no purchases to be covered by a grant can be made prior to the 
execution of the grant agreement unless approved by the grantor. 
 

 
11.02 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT (VERTICAL INFRASTRUCTURE) BIDDING 

PROCEDURES:  
 

Formal bidding procedures will be used exclusively for public improvement projects 
in excess of the minimum threshold amount as determined by the State of Iowa.  
($139,000 1/1/19) and in accordance with Chapter 26 of the Code of Iowa. Iowa 
Code Section 314.1B establishes vertical bid thresholds for city projects. These 
thresholds may adjust each year effective January 1.  A public improvement project 
is defined as a building or construction work which is contracted under the control of 
a governmental entity and is paid for in whole or in part with funds of the 
governmental entity, including a building or improvement constructed or operated 
jointly with any other public or private agency, but excluding urban renewal 
demolition and low-rent housing projects, industrial aid projects authorized under 
chapter 419, emergency work or repair or maintenance work performed by 
employees of a governmental entity, and excluding a highway, bridge, or culvert 
project, and excluding construction or repair or maintenance work performed for a 
city utility under chapter 388 by its employees or performed for a rural water district 
under chapter 357A by its employees.   For highway, bridge, and culvert projects 

52

Item 11.



please refer to section 11.03 below.  
 

1. A "Notice of Request for Bids" shall be posted in three separate places (as noted 
below) not less than thirteen (13)  nor more than forty-five (45) days before the 
bid filling deadline. 
  

 A relevant contractor plan room service with a statewide circulation 
 A relevant construction lead generating service with state wide circulation 
 An Internet site sponsored by either a governmental entity or a statewide 

association that represents the governmental entity. 
 

The notice shall contain the following information:  
 

a. The time and place for filing sealed bids. 
 
b. The time and place sealed bids will be opened and considered on behalf of 

the City. 
 
c. The general nature of the public improvement on which bids are requested. 
 
d. In general terms when the work must be commenced and completed.   

 
e. That each bidder shall accompany the bid with a bid security as defined in 

section 26.8 and as specified by the City.  
 
f. Any further information, which the City deems pertinent. 

 
2. A public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract, and 

estimated cost has been held in compliance with Chapter 26 of State of Iowa.  A 
notice of the public hearing shall be published in one (1) official designated City 
newspaper not less than four (4) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date 
of the hearing.  

 
3. Preparation of contract documents will include preparation of the Notice to 

Bidders as required by the Code of Iowa.  The notice will be furnished to the City 
Clerk with the preliminary plans and specifications and the City Clerk will arrange 
for the publication of the notice.  

 
4. Unsuccessful bidders shall be entitled to the return of bid bonds. A  

successful bidder shall forfeit any surety required upon failure to enter into a  
contract within the time span specified. 

 
5. Disposition of Bids and Bid Bonds: 

 
a. Bids shall be opened at the time and place specified in the "Notice of  

Request for Bids." 

53

Item 11.



 
b. A Tabulation of bids received shall be made and shall be available for  

public inspection. 
 
c. A summary of all bids shall be retained in the Financial Services Division. 

 
d. One (1) copy of the original offer and award form shall be forwarded to the 

City Clerk after the opening of the bids. 
 
e. The requesting department will consult with the Director of Finance & 

Business Operations before the final recommendation for award is submitted 
by the requesting department to the City Council if the project is not included 
in the budget or capital improvements program or if the bid received is in 
excess of the budgeted amount. 

 
f. The City Council shall award all formal contracts. 
 
g. The City Attorney shall review the standard contract to be used.  If there are 

modifications to the standard contract, the City Attorney will review the 
contract before it is approved by Council.  

 
h. The City Council shall approve all performance bonds for construction  

contracts. 
 
i. Following the City Council's award of contract, and approval of the  

performance bond when required, the requesting department shall  
award the contract. 

 
j. The responsible department shall return bid bonds to unsuccessful bidders 

following the award of contract by the City Council, and the approval of the  
performance bond when required. 

 
k. The City Clerk shall prepare contract documents when necessary, and  

shall forward completed contract documents to the successful bidder as  
awarded by the City Council. 

 
6. If a public improvement is less than the threshold as determined by the State of 

Iowa ($196139,000 1/1/2319) and more than the threshold as determined by the 
State of Iowa ($8157,000 1/1/2319), formal bidding procedures are not 
necessary.  However, competitive quotations must be received.  When 
competitive quotations are required the City shall make a good faith effort to 
obtain quotations for the work from at least two (2) contractors regularly engaged 
in such work prior to the letting of a contract.   

 
a. The quotes shall be solicited by the appropriate department. 
 

54

Item 11.



b. After quotes are received the department determines the lowest bid. 
 
c. The summary of quotes are to be provided to Financial Services where 

they will be kept on file.  
 
d. A contract for the improvement shall than be approved by City Council. 

 
7. If a public improvement falls under the minimum threshold as determined by the 

State of Iowa ($57,000 1/1/19), neither formal bidding procedures nor competitive 
quotations are necessary.    

 
a. The department responsible for the project should make an effort to 

receive a fair and reasonable price for the project. 
 
b. If a contract is needed for the project, it shall be approved by the City 

Council. 
 

8. All public improvements in excess of $25,000 must have a resolution passed by                               
City Council authorizing the expenditure of funds.  

 
 
11.03 HIGHWAY, BRIDGE, AND CULVERT (HORIZONTAL INFRASTUCTURE) 

BIDDING PROCEDURES: 
 

1. If a horizontal infrastructure project is more than the threshold as determined by 
the State of Iowa ($54,000 1/1/22) Iowa Code Section 314.1B establishes 
horizontal bid thresholds for city projects. These thresholds may adjust each year 
effective January 1.. Formal bidding procedures are required as described in 
section 11.02. 

 
2. If a horizontal infrastructure project is less than the threshold as determined by 

the State of Iowa ($54,000 1/1/22), formal bidding procedures and competitive 
quotations are not required.  

 
a. The department responsible for the project should make an effort to 

receive a fair and reasonable price for the project.  
 
b. If a contract is needed for the project, it shall be approved by the City 

Council. 
 

 
 
 
 

55

Item 11.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Iowa Code Section 314.1B establishes vertical and horizontal bid 
thresholds for city projects. These thresholds may adjust each year 
effective January 1. See https://iowadot.gov/local_systems/Bid-and-quote-
thresholds  

 
  

Public Improvement Bidding Procedures

Bidding Procedures
are not necessary

Yes

Formal Bidding
Procedures

are Required

Yes

Only Informal
Bidding

Procedures
are Required

No

Is the Project
Over $65,000 (*1/1/23)

Yes

Formal Bidding
Procedures

are Required

Yes

Competitive
Quotations

are Required

Yes

Only Informal
Bidding

Procedures
are Required

No

Is the Project
Over $81,000 (*1/1/23)

No

Is the Project
Over $196,000 (*1/1/23)

No

Is the Project a
Highway (Street),
Bridge or Culvert?

No

Does the project meet an exception
to bidding procedures

under Chapter 26?

56

Item 11.



11.04 WRITTEN QUOTATIONS: 
 

Requests for the purchase of equipment, commodities and/or services with an 
estimated value of $25,000 or greater shall receive written quotations.  All requests 
in excess of $25,000 must have a resolution passed by City Council authorizing the 
expenditure of funds, unless as described in Section 7.04(6) under vehicle 
purchases that have been programmed as a part of the City’s Cash Management  
Plan. A purchase of equipment, commodities and/or services with a total of less than 
$25,000.00 shall be evaluated by the requesting Department Director to determine if 
the material and/or services requested meet the requirements for requesting 
quotations. 

 
1. 10-30 days should be allowed from receipt of an approved Requisition and  

any required specifications to award of purchase. 
 

2. Telephone quotations must be taken by the requesting department on purchases 
of equipment, commodities, and/or services in excess of $5,000.00 and less than 
$25,000.00. 

 
3. If it is determined to be in the best interest of the City, written quotations will be 

requested by the using department. 
 

4. Awards of formal or informal bids on the purchase of equipment, commodities, 
and/or services shall be made by the requesting department director. Award  
shall be based on the lowest and best bid as determined by the requesting  
department.   

 
5. The bids and quotations shall be filed with the Financial Services Division. 

Purchasing Flow Chart
Equipment, Commodities and/or Services

Quotes Not
Required

Yes

Yes, Telephone
Quotes Required

Note: If Public
Improvement

Public Improvement
Process Must Be Followed

No, Written
Quotes Required

Less Than
$25,000

No

Less Than $5,000

 

57

Item 11.



11.05 COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS: 
 

If under $25,000.00 and if deemed appropriate by the Director of Finance & 
Business Operations, competitive negotiations may be used rather than competitive 
sealed bids or quotations. If over $25,000.00, City Council approval is required prior 
to commencing competitive negotiations. 

 
1. A Negotiating Team shall be formed consisting of representatives of the Finance 

& Business Operations Department and the requesting department.  Technical 
advisors may also be included if applicable. 

 
2. Prospective bidders will be supplied with a request for a proposal. This request 

will state in general terms the materials and/or services to be purchased, and will 
include the evaluation criteria. 

 
3. The Negotiating Team will review the proposals received and will then negotiate 

with bidders to procure the materials and/or services required. 
 
 
11.06 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS: 
 

These procedures will assist in identifying prospective consultants, selecting the 
most qualified consultant for the project, and developing a consultant contract that 
will best protect the City's interest. These procedures shall not conflict with federal or 
state rules or regulations as they relate to professional consultants. 

 
1. The following procedures should be utilized whenever consultant work in excess 

of $50,000.00 is required. When consultant work of less than $50,000.00 is 
required, procedures (c) through (i) concerning the need to make a consultant 
selection from among several prospective consultants may be eliminated. Staff 
may then negotiate a contract with a consultant qualified to perform the work 
desired.  If the consultant work is in excess of $50,000, however, the work is an 
extension of an existing or prior project, please see 11.06 2.  

 
a. Establish a selection team consisting of appropriate City staff and other City 

officials as designated. Technical advisors may also be included if 
applicable. The selection team should be involved in all phases of the 
selection process. 

 
b. Identify in writing the preconceived needs of the City, including a general 

statement of what City staff perceives the scope of services to be. The City's 
scope of services may be adjusted after the consultant interviews due to 
information provided by prospective consultants in the interviews that results 
in an alteration of the work plan. 

 
c. Send out a Request for Proposal to pre-qualified consultants who have been 

58

Item 11.



identified as performing professional services similar to the needs of the City.  
It will be the responsibility of the selection team to determine who the 
qualified consultants are.  Ideally, requests for qualifications should be sent 
to three to seven consultants depending on the number of consultants 
available to perform the type of work desired. The scope of services of the 
City should be included in the letter sent to prospective consultants. In 
addition, the letter should include a brief community profile, the contact 
information for the selection team, and any other information, which may be 
useful to prospective consultants.  In some instances, the request should 
also contain the information in item (g) below. 

 
d. The following should be considered in order to obtain a list of at least three 

consultants from which to send requests for proposals: 
 

1) Always include all the local consultants that appear to have the 
expertise necessary to perform the desired work. 

 
2) Contact state and national professional consulting associations and 

other communities who have utilized consultants to perform this type of 
work in the past. 

 
3) If it is necessary to reduce the list to a manageable size, preference 

should be given to those consultants which are located in the closest 
proximity to Cedar Falls along with those firms which the City may know 
are exceptionally qualified to perform the desired work. 

 
e. The request for proposal should ask each candidate to submit: 

 
1) A general profile of their firm. 
 
2) The qualifications of the personnel to be used on this project, the 

projects which the consultant and those individuals have performed of a 
similar nature, and their availability to perform the desired work within 
the time frame specified by the City. 

 
f. The selection team should meet to review the qualifications of the 

consultants, which submit letters of interest to determine those consultants 
who appear to be qualified and can meet the City's time frame. Check the 
past work record of those consultants with entities who have utilized their 
services in the past to perform similar projects and determine their level of 
satisfaction with the consultant's work. Based on this review, reduce the list 
to three or more consultants from which to interview, if that many consultants 
can demonstrate expertise for furnishing services. 

 
g. Ask each interviewee to submit, prior to the interview, a preliminary scope of 

services for the project, the company organization, and the name of the 

59

Item 11.



project coordinator/manager who will be utilized for this project. Request that 
the project coordinator/manager be present at the interview session.  This 
consultant should also submit information concerning the availability of 
personnel to be assigned to the project, a typical form of contract that they 
have used on similar projects, and a sample of a written report, which they 
have developed on a similar assignment. Set a time for the interview and 
inform the consultant of the amount of time to be allowed for the consultant’s 
formal presentation. 

 
h. Interview Session: 

 
1) The selection team will conduct all interview sessions, which are to be 

held in private. The selection team should meet prior to conducting the 
interviews to develop a list of questions to ask the interviewees and to 
establish weighting criteria to evaluate the consultants. The weighting 
criteria should include both cost and quality factors such as those 
identified in h.(2) and (3) below: 

 
2) Ask each consultant to make a formal presentation within the 

predetermined time limit describing their credentials and how they 
would solve the needs of the City.  Consultants should also indicate 
how they have solved similar assignments for other communities. 

 
3) Following the formal presentation, interaction with the interviewee 

should take place with questions covering the following topics and 
others which may be appropriate: 

 
a) Question the personal credentials if not properly identified during 

the formal presentation (license to practice, etc.). 
 
b) Question the availability of the consultant to perform the work 

(particularly if their present work load appears to be substantial) 
and how successful they have been in completing other projects 
on time. Also ask if the work to be accomplished is with present 
staff or through additions to the consultant’s staff. 

 
c) Ask each consultant to define how they see the problem and what 

they see as the City's goals and objectives in using their 
consultant's services. 

 
d) Ask questions concerning the procedures and methods the 

consultant proposes to use to solve the problem and attempt to 
challenge the problem. Also, attempt to challenge the consultant 
to provide innovations they would use to solve this problem. Also, 
attempt to obtain the consultant's knowledge of the state-of-the-
art technology in this field. 

60

Item 11.



 
e) Ask for a budget range, which the consultant expects to expend to 

conduct this project. 
 
f) Ask the consultant about the facilities and equipment they either 

own or have access to for use on this project, including computer 
equipment, reproduction and communication equipment, 
laboratory and testing equipment, and other specialized 
equipment applicable to this project. 

 
g) Ask each consultant if any of his or her professional services for 

this project are to be subcontracted. Also, ask if any of their 
services are to be performed as a joint venture with another firm.  
If the project is receiving federal aid, the consultant shall provide 
proof of adhering to federal aid guidelines for subcontractors.  

 
h) Discuss the typical form of contract used for this service on this 

type of project or alternative forms of contract. 
 

i. Selection Process: 
 

1) The selection team should meet to evaluate each consultant, utilizing 
the team's previously established weighting criteria. Conduct phone 
interviews with references provided by the consultant to determine 
those entities' satisfaction with the consultant’s past performance. In 
addition, the selection team should attempt to contact other entities that 
have utilized the consultant other than those entities provided as 
references by the consultant. If desirable, conduct an on-site 
examination of the consultant's facilities and equipment to better 
determine the consultant's ability to perform the assignment. 

 
2) Cedar Falls and Iowa consultants should be given preference if equal 

proposals are received from more than one consultant, unless 
prohibited by Federal Law. 

 
3) Make a selection. 

 
j. Negotiate with the consultant selected as first choice and develop a contract.  

The following (1) through (6) identify provisions, which should be included in 
consultant contracts. Examples of these and other contract provisions can be 
obtained by contacting the City Clerk's Office, which has actual 
City/consultant contracts on file. 

 
1) Agree to the details of each scope of service to be provided including 

initiation and completion dates for the entire project and major phases 
of the project as necessary. 

61

Item 11.



 
2) Determine the basis for charges, always including a maximum dollar 

limit not to be exceeded. 
 
3) Include a provision that the consultant will notify the City in writing if 

he/she feels that the City is directing the consultant to perform work 
beyond the scope of services. This notification will include an estimate 
of the cost, which the consultant proposes for the additional work. Any 
work to be performed by the consultant beyond the scope of services 
must be preceded by written authorization from the City requesting such 
work. 

 
4) If it is anticipated that this contract will result in additional phases of 

work, negotiate the method of payment to be employed for future 
contract(s). 

 
5) Include termination provisions in the contract. 
 
6) Include in the contract a provision that the City will assume possession 

of the final report, documents, and drawings/renditions produced in the 
course of the project, which are desired by the City. 

 
k. If the negotiations are unsatisfactory, terminate the negotiations and utilize 

the procedure outlined in item j) above to negotiate a contract with the 
interview committee’s second choice. 

 
2. If a project is an extension of a current or prior contract, the same consultant may 

be selected without utilizing the procedures outlined above.  Examples of an 
extension of a contract may include:  projects where there are multiple phases 
and a consultant was selected for an earlier phase, a consultant was selected for 
a project whose geographical location and project components are contiguous to 
the upcoming project, or if on a joint private-public project a consultant was 
selected by the private party and it is cost-effective for the public party to utilize 
the same consultant.  If the consultant work meets these contract extension 
criteria, staff may negotiate a fair and reasonable price with the consultant.  

 
3. If a consultant is needed for select studies that are legally confidential, a 

consultant may be selected by staff after council has directed the staff to proceed 
with the study.   
 

11.07 SPECIAL EVALUATION CRITERIA: 
 

1. Local Preference 
 

a. In cases where two or more bids, formal or informal, are equal in all aspects, 
preference shall be given to the local (Cedar Falls business) bidder. 

62

Item 11.



 
b. In cases where two or more bids, formal or informal, are equal in all aspects, 

preference shall be given to the Iowa vendor if one of the equal bids is not a 
Cedar Falls business. 

 
c. A City department making a purchase request may recommend to the 

Director of Finance & Business Operations purchase of an item from a Cedar 
Falls business if it is slightly higher than the lowest bid or quotation and if the 
item's total cost is within the constraints of the line item budget.  The 
selection of a slightly higher quotation must be supported with written 
documentation that maintenance, accessibility, or service benefits make the 
purchase financially advantageous in the long run. This policy should only 
apply to items, which may be purchased by quotation and does not apply to 
contract for professional services or construction projects, which require bids 
or other select processes. 

 
2. Total Cost of Ownership 

 
a. Life cycle cost formulas shall be used where applicable. 
 
b. Factors such as service, location and availability, warranty, maintenance 

records, etc. shall be considered where applicable. 
 

3. Vendor performance records shall be considered where applicable. 
 

4. In Resolution #8170 the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls supported the 
development of City-wide recycling projects and the effort of area recyclers, and 
the City also adopted a recycling policy to guide its own actions, which included 
the use of recyclable and recycled paper products whenever appropriate to the 
need and available at a reasonable rate. 

 
11.08 CHANGE ORDER POLICY - FORMAL CONTRACTS: 
 

1. Field Changes and Unit Changes: this type of change order consists of those 
items, which are necessary to carry out the intent of the original contract. 

 
a. The Department Director or designee serving as "project manager" shall 

have the authority to approve individual field and unit changes up to 
$200,000 and when the combined total of all field and unit changes does not 
exceed 15% of the original contract, subject to the budget provisions in 
11.08(1)(d). 

 
b. When an individual field and unit change exceeds  $200,000 or the 

combined total  of all field and unit changes exceeds 15% of the original 
contract, the "project manager” must submit a Change Order Expansion 
Request to the Department of Finance & Business Operations for approval of 

63

Item 11.



the City Council. Prior to City Council action the Department of Finance & 
Business Operations shall determine the potential sources of funding for the 
change order overage. 

 
c. It will be the responsibility of the "project manager" to keep a running total of 

change orders for each contract and ensure individual   change orders do 
not exceed $200,000 or the combined total of all field and unit changes does 
not exceed15% of the original contract. 

 
d. Total change orders when totaled with the original contract shall not exceed 

the projects budgeted appropriations previously approved by the City 
Council. 

 
2. Scope of Work or Project Boundary Change Orders: This type of change order 

consists of those items, which are outside the scope of the original contract. 
 

a. When a "project manager" requests a scope of work or project boundary 
change they must submit the proposal to the Department of Finance & 
Business Operations for City Council endorsement. 

 
b. The Department of Finance & Business Operations will determine if funds 

are available in the Capital Projects Fund, operating capital account, or Bond 
Fund.  

 
c. Once financial options are determined the Department of Finance & 

Business Operations shall submit the change to the City Council for 
endorsement and amendment of the project budget. 

 
 
11.09  APPRAISAL CONTRACTS: 
 

1. Through the course of purchasing or selling property, the City will need to obtain 
appraisals to determine the fair and reasonable value of a property.   

 
2. The City shall solicit Request for Proposals (RFPs) for appraisal services.   
 

a. The requests will be sent to at least three appraisal firms. 
  
b. The proposals shall be evaluated by the Departments of Community 

Development and Finance & Business Operations and a selection made. 
 

3.  As an alternative, the City may elect to do an annual RFP for appraisal services.  
The same procedures listed in 11.09 2 shall be utilized and then the firm will 
have a one-year contract to perform all appraisals for the City during that year.  
The City may elect, however, at any time during the year to seek new RFPs for 
select appraisals if advantageous to the City.   

64

Item 11.



11.10  LEASE-PURCHASE AND RENTAL AGREEMENTS: 
 

1. Lease-Purchase: 
 

a. An agreement that conveys the right to use property, plant or equipment, 
usually for a stated period of time, that meets one or more of the criteria set 
forth in SFAS No.13 for lease capitalization.  The criteria are: 

 
1) The lease transfers ownership by the end of the lease term. 
 
2) The lease contains a bargain purchase option. 
 
3) The lease term is equal to 75 percent or more of the estimated 

economic life of the leased property. 
 
4) The present value of the minimum lease payments equal or exceed 90 

percent of the fair value of the lease property. 
 

b. An evaluation shall be made by the department making the purchase to 
determine if lease-purchase or cash purchase of a piece of equipment is 
more cost effective. 

 
c. If a lease-purchase is considered the most cost effective method of obtaining 

property, the purchase shall be made in accordance with other provisions in 
this manual and shall be approved by Finance & Business Operations 

 
2. Rental Agreement: 

 
a. A rental agreement is any lease agreement that does not meet the criteria for 

capitalization set forth in SFAS No.13 and described in Section 11.09 1a. 
 
b. An evaluation shall be made by the department making the purchase to 

determine if rental of equipment or a cash purchase is more cost effective. 
 
c. Rental agreement for all vehicles or for equipment with a fair market value 

greater than $5,000.00 requires prior approval of the Finance & Business 
Operations Department. 

 
11.11 PAYMENTS AND RETENTION FROM PAYMENTS ON FORMAL CONTRACTS  
 

1. Department's responsibilities: 
 

a. Process the bills from contractors and withhold 5% of retainage on each 
contractor payment.  

 
b. Receive final acceptance of the project from the City Council. 

65

Item 11.



 
c. Process the bill that will pay the five percent retainage and notify the  

Financial Services Division that the payment must be held for thirty  
days. 

 
d. Provide to Financial Services the appropriate contractor information prior to 

the start of the project for registration of sales tax exemption certificates.  
 

2. Financial Services Responsibilities: 
 

a. Write and deliver the checks making monthly pay estimates to the  
contractors. 

 
b. Hold the final payment for thirty days after final acceptance by Council. 
 
c. Register the project and contractors with the State on-line system at the 

beginning of the project for sales tax exemption certificates.  
 

3. Early Release of Retainage: 
 

a. At any time after all or any part of the work on the formal contract is 
substantially completed, the contractor may request the release of all or part 
of the retained funds owed.  The request by the contractor shall be 
accompanied by a sworn statement of the contractor that, ten calendar days 
prior to the filing of the request, notice was given to all known 
subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, and suppliers. 

 
b. A project is considered substantially complete if the project has been 

substantially completed in general accordance with the terms and provisions 
of contract; if the project is substantially complete so that the City can occupy 
or utilize the public improvement for its intended purpose; if the public 
improvement has been designated substantially complete by the architect or 
engineer on the project; or if the project is considered substantially complete 
because the City is occupying or utilizing the public improvement for its 
intended purpose.  

 
c. After receiving the request, if the contractor has met the requirements noted 

above, the City must release the retainage within thirty (30) days.  
 
d. The City does reserve the right to withhold 200% of the value of the 

uncompleted work as determined by the City.  
 

 
 

66

Item 11.



1  

 

SECTION 28 

OUTSIDE ENTITYAGENCY 

FUNDING 

 

28.01 PURPOSE: 

 
1. No direct donations or in-kind contributions to private entities, including to 

non-profits, is allowed other than for economic development purposes.  

However, the City may enter into agreements for private entities to provide 

services to the City or to the public.  Nothing in this Section shall be construed 

to prevent the City from generally supporting private entities, including non-

profits, as long as individual private entities are not singled out for support.  

 

28.02  PROCESS 

 

1. On an annual basis, outside entitiesagencies may apply to the City of Cedar 

Falls for fundingpublic services agreements or economic development 

assistance. 

 

2. The Ffunding for such activitiesamount will be presented to the City 

Council for approval through the annual budget process. 

 

3. Funding for outside entitiesagencies will not be provided for under the General 

Fund, unless determined to be associated with a City operation funded in the 

General Fund. 

 

28.032 APPLICATION PROCEDURE: 

 
1. The entityagency applying for an agreement or funding should contact 

Finance & Business Operations to determine the most appropriate  

processwhich avenue they should pursue to request funding. 

 

2. The Director of Finance & Business Operations and Controller/City Treasurer 

along with other applicable staff from other departments will determine the 

most appropriate process and will inform the private entity of the samewhether 

the agency should apply under the Tourism & Visitors Fund,  the Health Trust 

Fund, Economic Development Fund, Community Betterment Fund, 

Community Block Grant Fund, or any other special fund. 

 

3. Under special circumstances funding for large community capital projects may 

occur under the City's Capital Projects Fund or other unique funding sources. 

 

4. Project requests associated with the University of Northern Iowa (UNI) should 

be directed to Finance & Business Operations from the University's Office of 

the Vice President of Administration and Finance or the Special Assistant to 

67

Item 11.



2  

the President for Board and Governmental Relations.  Usually a 28E 

Agreement will be necessary for this purpose. 

 
28.043 FUNDING SOURCES: 
 

1.  Health Trust Funding - Applications are submitted to the Health Trust Fund 

Board in October of each year. The Board uses a formula based on the interest 

income derived off of trust assets to determine the amount of funding available 

to be distributed. They Board presents itstheir recommended funding model in 

February to the City Council as part of the annual budget process. 

2. Economic Development/Community BettermentTourism Activities Funding - 

Applications are submitted to the Economic Development Committee (City 

Administrator, Director of Community Development, Director of Finance & 

Business Operations, Economic Development Coordinator and Visitor & 

Cultural Programs Manager) in November of each year. The Committee uses a 

formula based on hotel/motel tax revenue to determine the amount of funding 

available each year. They Committee presents itstheir recommended funding 

model in February to the City Council as part of the annual budget process. 

3. Tourism Development Funding/Marketing FundsGrant ProgramCommunity 

Betterment Funding - Applications are submitted to the Visitors & Tourism 

Board throughout thein November of each year.  The Board uses a formula 

based on hotel/motel tax funds,revenue along with funds in the Visitors & 

Tourism budget, to determine the amount of funding available each year. They 

present their recommended funding model in February to the City Council as 

part of the annual budget process.  The City Council approves the amount of 

funding as part of the annual budget process and the Visitors & Tourism Board 

then approves individual agreements with awardees for funding.  The Visitor 

and Tourism/Cultural Programs Manager City Administrator is authorized to 

execute such individual agreements as long as the amounts included in such 

agreements do not exceed the annual budget allocation when considered 

individually and in total. 

4. Community Block Grant Funding - Applications are received by the Planning & 

Community Services Division each year. The amount of funding is determined by 

the annual federal appropriatione through the Block Grant program. This funding 

is then presented to the City Council as part of the annual budget process. 

 

28.05  PUBLIC SERVICES AGREEMENTS WITH PRIVATE ENTITIES: 

 

1.  When the City enters into an agreement with a private entity, including a non-

profit, to provide services to the public, the following shall be included: 

    a.  The agreement shall be in writing, signed by the parties, and include plain, 

detailed and unambiguous terms and conditions. 

    b.  Payment terms shall be clear, including the scheduling of payments. 

Commented [SS1]: Update after V&T Board discussion. 

68

Item 11.



3  

    c.  The services to be provided by the non-profit to the public shall be clearly 

stated.  Overall, consideration shall be balanced for each party and the City 

shall seek the highest value possible for taxpayers.  

    d.  In an agreement in which the non-profit is not providing a clear service directly 

to the City but rather the service is to the public, the public benefit shall serve 

as the consideration the City receives under the agreement. 

    e.  The total cost of the agreement shall be stated and required supporting 

documentation for payment shall be clearly defined. 

    f.  The agreement shall include a requirement for the private entity to account to 

the City for the public findsfunds and how they are spent to meet the public 

services requirement.  The form and frequency of the accounting shall be 

stated in the agreement. 

    g.  All public service agreements with private entities shall be subject to approval 

of Council and must be reflected in the Council minutes.  The Council 

Resolution approving the agreement with the private entity, as well as the 

Council minutes, shall include the public purpose served by the agreement.     

 

28.06  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE 

 

1.  Economic development is a public purpose for which the City may provide 

grants, loans, guarantees, tax incentives, and other financial assistance to or for 

the benefit of private persons and entities, including non-profits. 

2.  Economic development means private or joint public and private investment 

involving the creation of new jobs and income or the retention of existing jobs and 

income that would otherwise be lost. 

3.  Before funds are used for economic development assistance Council shall 

determine that a public purpose will reasonably be accomplished by the 

dispensing or use of City funds.  In the case of 4b below, the Visitor & Tourism 

Board has authority to make such determination as part ofwith the Tourism 

Development Grant Program. 

4.  In determining whether to approve economic development assistance, the 

following factors shall be considered: 

     a.  Private entities or persons that add diversity to or generate new opportunities 

for the local economy should be favored over those that do not. 

     b.  Economic assistance funds should attract, retain, or expand businesses that 

produce exports or import substitutes, or which generate tourism-related 

activities. 

     c.  Economic assistance funds should be targeted toward private entities and 

persons that generate public gains and benefits.  The amount of funds to be 

69

Item 11.



4  

disbursed should be compared to the gains and benefits to be generated. 

     d.  Economic assistance funds should not be used to attract a local business to 

relocate unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the 

area or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate 

significant new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of displacement of other 

jobs in similar local businesses shall not be considered significant new job 

creation.   

28.07  FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAMS 

                 1.  Allocations of funding received from federal and state programs shall comply 

with program requirements and need not take the form of a public services 

agreement or necessarily be based on economic development. 

 

70

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division  

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG) Service Agency 
Contract: Exceptional Persons, Inc  

  
The City of Cedar Falls is committed to obtaining funds every year through federal 
programs like CDBG, HOME, and Section 8 to help serve the needs of low- and 
moderate-income families and individuals living in Cedar Falls. The City may use up to 
15% of our CDBG to fund local service agencies.   
 
As listed in the Annual Action Plan for this year, the City designated $38,970 to Prevent 
Homelessness through Agency and Organizational Support.    
 
Staff has been working with six service agencies that have responded to the Request 
for Proposals. This is the last contract that staff proposes for the CDBG funds. Attached 
is the contract with Exceptional Persons, Inc. for $5,800. The Exceptional Persons 
proposes to use the funds for rental assistance.     
   
At their September 21, 2022 meeting, the Housing Commission reviewed the 
recommended allocation of funds to these agencies and recommends approval.   
   
Xc:  Stephanie Houk-Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager     
 

71

Item 12.



72

Item 12.



73

Item 12.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



76

Item 12.



77

Item 12.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



82

Item 12.



83

Item 12.



84

Item 12.



85

Item 12.



86

Item 12.



87

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

this  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, AICP, Planner III 
  Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 

 DATE: January 17, 2023 

 SUBJECT: FP22-004 Wild Horse Sixth Addition Final Plat  
 

 
REQUEST: 

 
Request to approve the Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition Final Plat. Case 
#FP22-004 
 

PETITIONER: Midwest Development Co., Owner; CGA Engineering, Engineer 
 

LOCATION: 
 

The property is located south of W. 12th Street and west of Union Road  

 

PROPOSAL 
The petitioner owns a 21.77-acre parcel that is south of W. 12th Street, west of Union Road, and 
with access from Granite Ridge Road. The petitioner proposes to subdivide 9.35 acres of the 
21.77 acres into 22 residential lots. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City rezoned the entire 148-acre property from A-1, Agriculture to RP, Planned Residential 
for a maximum of 353 dwelling units in 2005.  A Preliminary Plat for this area, called 
“Copperstone” was approved in July 2005. This plat covered the entire 148-acre property and 
proposed the establishment of 242 building lots with 353 units.  The Final Plat for the Wild Horse 
Ridge First Addition was approved in September 2007.  After several alterations to the 
preliminary plat, in 2021, City approved the latest alteration to the Preliminary Plat of Wild Horse 
Ridge, which increased the density of the development from 2.43 to 2.72 units per acre for the 
Fifth – Tenth additions by adding 40 duplex lots.  The duplex lots are proposed to be within the 
Eighth and Ninth additions.  Wild Horse Ridge 5th Addition was approved on August 15, 2022.   
 
ANALYSIS  
The petitioner, Midwest Development Co., proposes the final plat of the Sixth Addition, 
comprised of 9.35 acres of land within the middle of the subdivision, which continues Wild Horse 
Ridge northwest to connect to Sonoma Drive and Pebble Stone Place.  The property is zoned 
RP Planned Residential.  The RP zoning district permits a variety of residential uses from 
single-family to multi-family dwellings based on a master plan approved at the time of rezoning, 
which in this case was revised and approved in May of 2021.  The revision provided additional 
density by adding 40 lots for bi-attached or duplex units.   

88

Item 13.



The revision of May 2021 proposed the sixth addition to consists of 26 lots, including the 
connection between Wild Horse Drive and Granite Ridge Road.  Four of the lots originally 
intended to be part of the Sixth Addition were added to the Fifth Addition at the intersection of 
Granite Ridge Road and Wild Horse Ridge that was approved by Council on August 15, 2022.       
 
The petitioner will connect to the existing stormwater detention that is part of the Wild Horse 
Ridge First Addition.  Stormwater will flow to the detention pond in the First Addition through an 
easement.  The development agreement also calls for upgrading the stormwater pipes to a 
larger size in this area with the City reimbursing the developer for the oversize cost.  The 
proposed detention basin will address both the water quantity and water quality of stormwater 
runoff. In summary, the proposed design of the stormwater management facilities for Wild Horse 
Ridge Sixth Addition meets the City’s ordinance standards. 
 
The Master Plan calls for 25-foot front setback, 30- foot rear setback and a five-foot side yard 
setback. The setbacks shown on the face of the plat are consistent with the proposed setbacks 
from the approved Master Plat and Preliminary Plat and conform to the RP Zoning District 
requirements.   
 
The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the approved Deed of 
Dedication from the previous addition and has addressed all the necessary requirements.  
 
The City’s maintenance and repair agreement with the owner/developer will address 
maintenance responsibilities for the public improvements in the subdivision to ensure proper 
functioning over time.   

 

89

Item 13.



 
The City Code states that the final plat must be in substantial conformance with the preliminary 
plat. The number of lots from the preliminary plat has been reduced as mentioned above.  The 
final plat meets the density, lot size, or configuration of the preliminary plat.     Therefore, the 
Planning and Zoning Commission finds that the proposed final plat is conforming with the 
preliminary plat and associated conditions.  The petitioner has met that criterion and the 
associated conditions.   
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) personnel, noted that the water, gas, 
and communication services are available to the site. The developer extended the utility 
services to the proposed development. The easements identified on the plat satisfy Public 
Works and CFU requirements. 
 

90

Item 13.



Cluster mailboxes will be sized and placed in the ROW according to USPS standards. All cluster 
mailboxes will be located on lower volume streets and situated to prevent undue traffic 
congestion according to the direction from the City Engineer’s office. 
 
The submitted Deed of Dedication for this final plat is consistent with the previously approved 
Deeds of Dedication from the previous additions and has addressed all the necessary 
requirements.  
 
In 2014, the City and the developer agreed to share the cost W 12th Street improvements.  This 
fee is calculated at $5,852.43 per acre of development.  The fee of $5,852.43 x 9.35 acres is 
$54,720.22.  The fee was paid on October 20, 2022. 
 
All the utilities and internal road connections within the proposed subdivision will be dedicated to 
the public. The installed internal infrastructure is able to serve the platted lots with access to 
public streets and right-of-way. The installed utilities are available for development for the 
platted lots. The petitioner’s engineer has submitted a stormwater management plan to the City 
and it has been reviewed by the City Engineer. The City Engineer has determined that the plan 
meets the City’s subdivision requirements. The Engineering Division is awaiting either final 
completion of public improvements or will enter into a ‘Contract for Completion’ with the 
Developer before proceeding with Council Approval. 
 
City Code requires that sidewalks be installed along all streets within the subdivision.  The 
petitioner has confirmed that sidewalks, built to City standards, will be constructed along the 
frontage of all lots at the time of lot development, as per City requirements. 
 
The property is located outside of the regulated floodplain.   
 
A courtesy mailing was sent to the neighboring property owners on November 2, 2022. 
 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION  
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission reviewed the final plat for Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition 
(FP22-004) and recommends approval with the following stipulations: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
2) Conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

 

PLANNING AND ZONING 

Discussion 
11/22/22 
 
 
 
 

The first item of business was a final plat for Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition. Acting 
Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background information. He 
explained that the subdivision is off of West 12th Street and Union Road and was 
originally known as Copperstone. Twenty-two single-family lots are proposed with street 
connections to Sonoma Drive and Pebble Stone Place. Stormwater management has 
moved into the existing detention pond and through easements on the rear of each lot. 
Staff is working with the developer minor changes in the drawings and recommends 
approval with any comments or direction from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 

91

Item 13.



Phil Kenealy, 4414 Blair Ridge Road, spoke on behalf of the neighborhood regarding the 
plat not including playgrounds for the growing number of families with children in the area. 
He noted that the closest park is two miles away from their neighborhood. They would like 
to see greenspace for the children in the area. 
 
Acting Chair Hartley asked about greenspace requirements in subdivisions. Mr. Weintraut 
stated that this subdivision was preliminary platted before the current subdivision code 
requirement of dedication a portion of the development to park space.  
 
Mr. Kenealy asked if there had been public comments made in 2021 when the preliminary 
plat was discussed. Mr. Atodaria explained that he can look into that.  
 
Mr. Larson asked if there were any changes from the preliminary plat to the final plat. Mr. 
Weintraut stated that there were no changes. Ms. Crisman stated that the idea of adding 
parks is a good idea to discuss in future projects. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 5 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Larson and 
Moser), and 0 nays. 
 
 

 

Attachments:  

Location Map 

Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition Final Plat  

Deed of Dedication 

Public Comment from Phil Kenealy dated November 18, 2022; re: parks 

92

Item 13.



Peters Pkwy

Ch
err

yw
oo

d D
r

Co
lum

bin
e D

r

W 12th St

Alexis Blvd

Sonoma Dr

Wild Horse Dr

Rocky RidgeRd

Tierney Ter

Jakob Cir

Ke ag les Xing

Newland Dr

Blair Ridge Rd

Granite Ridge Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 12th St

R-1

R-1

RP

A-1

A-1

A-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
November 22, 2022

Final Plat for Wild Horse Ridge 
6th addition (FP22-004)
South of W.12th St. and West of Union Rd.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

93

Item 13.



94

Item 13.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1213

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

NE CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14

FND RAILROAD SPIKE
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

E 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14

FND 1/2" REBAR IN MONUMENT BOX

CENTER
SECTION 16-89-14
FND PINCHED PIPE

N 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14
FND 5/8" REBAR

POINT OF
BEGINNING

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

2652.79'
S89°18'39"E

26
49

.3
1'

S
0°

00
'0

9"
E

2658.44'
N89°20'45"W

26
50

.8
8'

N
0°

07
'1

3"
E

12
12

.5
7'

N
0°

41
'2

1"
E

1363.93'
N89°18'39"W

1288.86'
S89°18'39"E

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

2 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

300'0

SCALE 1"=300'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 2.dwg - Sheet 2 -  11-17-22 - 7:33am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DESCRIPTION
A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN PART OF PARCEL "C" AND IN PART OF PARCEL "D" OF A PLAT OF SURVEY FILED ON DOCUMENT
NO. 2016-00015368 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY AND BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 IN SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH
P.M., IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE
14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.; THENCE, N89°18'39"W 1363.93' ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE,
S0°41'21"W 1212.57' TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 15 OF WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, RECORDED ON DOCUMENT
NO. 2023-00006880 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY; THENCE, S45°25'18"W 35.57' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY
LINE OF SAID LOT 15, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, S45°25'18"W 55.85' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE
OF SAID LOT 15 TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 14 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION; THENCE, S39°26'18W 93.50'
ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 14 TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 13 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH
ADDITION; THENCE, S36°16'01"W 368.69' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 13, 12, 11 AND 10 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH
ADDITION TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 10 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE
NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF WILD HORSE DRIVE; THENCE, NORTHWESTERLY 16.95' ALONG A 270.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE
NORTHEASTERLY HAVING A CHORD BEARING N58°42'40"W AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 16.94' ALONG THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF SAID WILD HORSE DRIVE; THENCE, S33°05'13"W 225.59' ALONG A WESTERLY LINE OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY
LINE OF TRACT "A" OF WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION AS RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2008-00021274 IN THE OFFICE OF THE
RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE, N60°06'20"W 44.07' ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE; THENCE, N43°50'08"W 149.78';
THENCE, N30°12'30"W 295.00'; THENCE, N48°53'51"W 75.07'; THENCE, N89°21'04"W 145.14'. THE AFORESAID ALL BEING ALONG SAID
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF TRACT "A"; THENCE, N0°39'15"E 220.00'; THENCE, S89°20'45"E 25.17'; THENCE, N0°07'18"E 140.00'; THENCE,
S89°20'56"E 191.39'; THENCE, S68°37'20"E 65.82'; THENCE, S53°43'59"E 295.00'; THENCE, N36°16'01"E 258.05'; THENCE, S50°37'48"E 136.34';
THENCE, NORTHEASTERLY 12.95' ALONG THE ARC OF A 780.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY ,HAVING A CHORD BEARING
OF N39°50'43"E AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 12.95'; THENCE, S49°40'44"E 212.64' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 9.36 ACRES
INCLUDING 1.99 ACRES OF ROAD RIGHT OF WAY.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY.

95

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE SECOND ADDITION INSTR #2013-00005774

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 12TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLAIR RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKY RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED INSTR #2021-00007865

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED DOC #556-687

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FOURTH ADDITION INSTR #2020-00008475

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #000000

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE THIRD ADDITION INSTR #2018-00007259

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOB CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE



105.00' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

80.13'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

100.25'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

POINT OF
BEGINNING

SH
EE

T 
4

LOT 1
11283 SF
0.26 AC

C1

N53°43'59"W

144.32'

LOT 2
11089 SF
0.25 AC

78
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

144.32'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 3
10920 SF
0.25 AC

78
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 4
11480 SF
0.26 AC

82
.00

'

82
.00

'N53°43'59"W

140.00'83
.46

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 6
16923 SF
0.39 AC

C3

C2

C4

C5

LOT 8
19388 SF
0.45 AC

105.00'

LOT 9
17848 SF
0.41 AC

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

C6

LOT 16
16710 SF
0.38 AC

100.00'

C12

LOT 18
18391 SF
0.42 AC

S53°43'59"E135.00'

C15

LOT 19
10260 SF
0.24 AC

53
.70

'

22
.30

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'
S53°43'59"E135.00'

LOT 20
10260 SF
0.24 AC

76
.00

' S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

LOT 21
10530 SF
0.24 AC

78
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

78
.00

'

LOT 22
10558 SF
0.24 AC

81
.75

'

C1
6

LOT 17
19197 SF
0.44 AC

C1
3

N3
6°

16
'01

"E
11

6.7
6'

C14

S68°37'20"E

295.00'

S53°43'59"E

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

11
9.1

9'

25
8.

05
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

135.00'
22

.30
'

136.34'

S50°37'48"E

C17

212.64'

S49°40'44"E

55
.85

'

S45
°2

5'1
8"W

93
.5

0'

S3
9°

26
'18

"W

36
8.

69
'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

152.64'

L1

78
.00

'

83
.46

'

C18

12
5.2

3'

22
5.

59
'

S3
3°

05
'13

"W

44.07'
N60°06'20"W

149.78'

N43°50'08"W

N
30°12'30"W

78
.12

'

  S
36

°1
6'0

1"
W

  3
92

.0
8'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W
  4

39
.4

1'

N
30°12'31"W

  213.08'

S30°12'31"E  109.09'

C19

41.19'

16
5.5

9'

10
9.3

2'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

12
9.9

4'

32
.14

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

30
.38

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

16
3.

02
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

60.00'

60
.0

0'

60.00'

66.89'

TR
ACT 

"A
"

86
,76

1 S
F

1.9
9 A

C

SH
EE

T 
3

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM
'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

L4

50'R
TURNAROUND
EASEMENT (TYP)

LOT 5
11684 SF
0.27 AC

87
.58

'

M
AT

CH L
IN

E

LOT 7
19951 SF
0.46 AC

LOT 10
17608 SF
0.40 AC

C7

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

295.00'

49.53'

Curve Table

CURVE DATA

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

ARC LENGTH

50.95'

30.61'

125.41'

95.58'

58.23'

48.99'

144.60'

139.65'

17.64'

74.24'

90.63'

21.44'

22.25'

125.86'

RADIUS

720.00'

25.00'

270.00'

330.00'

330.00'

321.82'

320.00'

320.00'

380.00'

380.00'

380.00'

15.00'

15.00'

380.40'

DELTA ANGLE

4°03'15"

70°09'44"

26°36'50"

16°35'39"

10°06'37"

8°43'17"

25°53'27"

25°00'17"

2°39'34"

11°11'38"

13°39'55"

81°54'21"

85°00'23"

18°57'23"

CHORD BEARING

S38°17'38"W

S1°11'09"W

S47°12'08"E

S48°36'58"E

S35°15'50"E

N34°04'52"W

N51°23'45"W

N76°50'37"W

N88°00'59"W

N81°05'23"W

N68°39'36"W

N77°13'11"E

S6°14'11"E

N39°15'23"W

CHORD

50.94'

28.74'

124.29'

95.24'

58.16'

48.94'

143.37'

138.55'

17.64'

74.12'

90.42'

19.66'

20.27'

125.28'

Curve Table

CURVE DATA

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20

C21

ARC LENGTH

49.53'

42.25'

12.95'

16.95'

153.81'

333.24'

182.51'

RADIUS

25.00'

780.00'

780.00'

270.00'

330.00'

320.05'

380.00'

DELTA ANGLE

113°31'28"

3°06'12"

0°57'05"

3°35'46"

26°42'16"

59°39'25"

27°31'07"

CHORD BEARING

S86°58'15"E

S37°49'06"W

N39°50'43"E

N58°42'40"W

S43°33'39"E

N59°30'54"W

N75°35'12"W

CHORD

41.82'

42.24'

12.95'

16.94'

152.42'

318.39'

180.76'

LINE DATA

LINE NUMBER

L1

L2

L3

L4

BEARING

S39°26'18"W

S89°20'45"E

S89°20'45"E

S45°25'18"W

DISTANCE

15.38'

4.02'

25.17'

35.57'

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

3 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

80'0

SCALE 1"=80'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 3.dwg - Sheet 3 -  11-17-22 - 7:34am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

96

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #000000

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #2023-00006880

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHILIP E KENEALY AND COLEEN A KENEALY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368



105.00' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

80.13'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

91.58' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

100.25'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

94.30' 97.09'
BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

SH
EE

T 
4

82
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'83
.46

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 6
16923 SF
0.39 AC

C3

C2

C4

C5

LOT 8
19388 SF
0.45 AC

105.00'

LOT 9
17848 SF
0.41 AC

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

C6

C8

55.14'

N0
°3

9'
15

"E

16
0.

00
'LOT 13

14400 SF
0.33 AC

90.00'

S3
°1

8'
49

"W

14
0.

56
'

C9 C10

S2
4°

23
'19

"W

15
2.

20
'

LOT 16
16710 SF
0.38 AC

C11

100.00'

C12

LOT 18
18391 SF
0.42 AC

S53°43'59"E135.00'

C15

LOT 19
10260 SF
0.24 AC

53
.70

'

22
.30

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

LOT 20
10260 SF
0.24 AC

76
.00

' S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

LOT 21
10530 SF
0.24 AC

78
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

78
.00

'

LOT 22
10558 SF
0.24 AC

81
.75

'

LOT 17
19197 SF
0.44 AC

C1
3

N3
6°

16
'01

"E
11

6.7
6'

C14

191.39'
S89°20'56"E

65.82'

S68°37'20"E

295.00'

S53°43'59"E

32.68'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

11
9.1

9'

25
8.

05
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

135.00'

22
.30

'

C18

12
5.2

3'

22
5.

59
'

S3
3°

05
'13

"W

44.07'
N60°06'20"W

149.78'

N43°50'08"W

N
30°12'30"W

75.07'

N48°53'51"W

145.14'
N89°21'04"W

22.11'

22
0.

00
'

N
0°

39
'1

5"
E

90.00'

L3

14
0.

00
'

N
0°

07
'1

8"
E

LOT 14
12658 SF
0.29 AC

LOT 15
14947 SF
0.34 AC

33.15'

  S
36

°1
6'0

1"
W

  3
92

.0
8'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W
  4

39
.4

1'

N
30°12'31"W

  213.08'

S30°12'31"E  109.09'

C19

41.19'

16
5.5

9'

10
9.3

2'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

12
9.9

4'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

16
3.

02
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

60
.0

0'

60.00'

60
.0

0'

94.02'
S89°20'45"E

94.02'
S89°20'45"E

N0
°3

9'
15

"E

16
0.

00
'

16
0.

00
'

C20

C21

S2
4°

23
'19

"W

15
2.

20
'

S3
°1

8'
49

"W

14
0.

56
'

68.85'

66.89'

L2

TR
ACT 

"A
"

86
,76

1 S
F

1.9
9 A

C

SH
EE

T 
3

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

10
.0

0' 
PU

E 
(T

YP
)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM
'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

50'R
TURNAROUND
EASEMENT (TYP)

LOT 5
11684 SF
0.27 AC

87
.58

'

M
AT

CH L
IN

E

MATCH LINE
SHEET 4

SHEET 3

LOT 12
17185 SF
0.39 AC

LOT 7
19951 SF
0.46 AC

LOT 10
17608 SF
0.40 AC

LOT 11
17661 SF
0.41 AC

18.29'

C7

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N2
5°

39
'32

"E
15

9.
26

'

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

295.00'

49.53'

52.96'

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

4 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

80'0

SCALE 1"=80'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 3.dwg - Sheet 4 -  11-17-22 - 7:34am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

97

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY



98

Item 13.



99

Item 13.



100

Item 13.



101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



1

Michelle Pezley

From: Phil Kenealy <pkenealy@acesiowa.com>
Sent: Friday, November 18, 2022 3:52 PM
To: City Council
Cc: Michelle Pezley; Rob Green
Subject: Park or green space in Wild Horse Ridge Addition

CAUTION: This email originated outside the City of Cedar Falls email system. 
Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe. 

 

Greetings Cedar Falls Councilpersons! 
 
Thank you for your service to our community. I value your role in making Cedar Falls an incredible place to live and to 
raise a family. 
 
There is a meeting for the approval of the final plat for Wild Horse Ridge 6th Addition at Planning and Zoning on Tuesday 
the 22nd.  I would like to begin a discussion about adding green space or a park in the Wild Horse Ridge Addition to 
create a place for kids in the neighborhood to play.  Currently, none of the plats that have been proposed for the new 
phases contain any park or green space. Last year I had a conversation with Michelle Pezley, a planner with the Planning 
and Zoning Department to inquire if this was a requirement for new additions.  She directed me to the “Comprehensive 
Plan” for the city.  On page 152 of the comprehensive plan under Park Financing, this statement can be found, "To 
require dedication of land by developers, Cedar Falls should establish a park land dedication policy for all new 
developments". 
 
It appears that this framework defined in the comprehensive plan is not being followed by developers or required by the 
city. I don’t know if that is a planning and zoning issue or if it is something that the council might consider. So, this week I 
contacted Daryl Kruse of the 3rd Ward to explore this issue. Daryl encouraged me to bring the issue up with all of the 
council to see if we could get a dialogue started.  
 
So, I propose that the city council establish a park land dedication policy for all new developments (starting with Wild 
Horse Ridge 6th Addition  সহ) as outlined in the comprehensive plan.  I intend to attend the final plat approval meeting 
on Tuesday to introduce this thought.  I’m happy to discuss the topic with any of you in attendance or feel free to 
contact me by phone if you wish. 
 
Thanks! 
 
Respectfully, 
 
PHIL KENEALY  
(319) 230-9776 
 
This email is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete the 
message. 
 

106

Item 13.



107

Item 14.



108

Item 14.



109

Item 14.



110

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Principal Engineer, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: January 9, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: College Hill Parking Lot Improvements 
  Project No. PL-101-3264 
   Project Final Acceptance  
 
The College Hill Parking Lot Improvements project is completed and ready for final 
acceptance. This project involved the restoration of two parking lots in the College Hill 
district. This project was under contract with Aspro, Inc of Waterloo, Iowa. This was Item 
34 in the FY23 Fiscal Year CIP. Attached please find the following final documents: 
  -  Final Pay Estimate (releases retainage) 
   -  Copy of Maintenance Bond, Aspro, Inc 
 

The following lien waivers have been received, reviewed by the Engineering Division, and 
are on file with the City Clerk: 
 

Aspro Suppliers: 
BMC Aggregates  
Bituminous Materials & Supply Co. LP 
Manatts Inc 

 

 

Funding Source Attributed Costs 

Tax Increment Financing – College Hill  $155,677.13 

 
I certify that the public improvements for the College Hill Parking Lot Improvements were 
completed in reasonable compliance with the project plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________1/9/2023_______ 
            Ben Claypool   Date 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
  

111

Item 15.



112

Item 15.

claypoolb
PowerPoint Presentation

claypoolb
Text Box
1/9/23

claypoolb
Text Box
1/9/23



No. Retaianage Release

to

Project Number:

Contract Completion Date: 07/01/22

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

Bid                                                                   

Item                                   

Number

Description Unit

1 HMA Overlay, (ST), Base Course, 1.5", PG58-28S TON 418.50 127.50$              53,358.75$        876.83 -                      -$                    876.83 111,795.83$      -$                       111,795.83$      210% (58,437.08)$       X

2 HMA Overlay, (ST), Surface Course, 1.5", PG58-28S TON 454.60 129.00$              58,643.40$        -                      -                      -$                    -                      -$                    -$                       -$                    0% 58,643.40$        X

3 Full Depth Patching, PCC, 7" Depth SY 22.30 112.00$              2,497.60$          26.30 -                      -$                    26.30 2,945.60$          -$                       2,945.60$          118% (448.00)$            X

4 Milling, 3" SY 4,995.70 5.65$                  28,225.71$        4,995.70 -                      -$                    4,995.70 28,225.71$        -$                       28,225.71$        100% -$                    X

5 Painted Pavement Markings, Solvent/Waterborne STA 26.80 100.00$              2,680.00$          26.80 -                      -$                    26.80 2,680.00$          -$                       2,680.00$          100% -$                    X

6 Painted Pavement Symbols & Legends EACH 5.00 60.00$                300.00$              5.00 -                      -$                    5.00 300.00$              -$                       300.00$              100% -$                    X

7 Traffic Control LS 1.00 3,000.00$          3,000.00$          1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 3,000.00$          -$                       3,000.00$          100% -$                    X

8 Wattles LF 20.00 4.00$                  80.00$                20.00 -                      -$                    20.00 80.00$                -$                       80.00$                100% -$                    X

9 Mobilization LS 1.00 5,600.00$          5,600.00$          1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 5,600.00$          -$                       5,600.00$          100% -$                    X

10 PCC Curb Flume LS 1.00 1,050.00$          1,050.00$          1.00 -                      -$                    1.00 1,050.00$          -$                       1,050.00$          100% -$                    X

155,435.46$      -$                    155,677.13$      -$                       155,677.13$      (241.68)$            

College Hill Parking Lot Improvements

PL-101-3264

From (Contractor):

To (Owner):

Application Period:

Current Pay 

Application 

Quantities

Application Date: 01/09/22

Via (Engineer): Ben Claypool

Principal Engineer

06/30/22 01/09/23

City of Cedar Falls

Aspro, Inc

Balance to                               

Date                                                  

( F - M )

It
e

m
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

CONTRACTOR'S APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT Estimate

Totals

Current Pay 

Application                            

Value                                             

( E x H )

Estimated 

Quantity Installed                                    

( G + H )

Total                    

Completed                    

Value                                           

( E x J )

Value of Materials 

Presently Stored                                     

(Column M on 

Stored Materials)

Total Completed                  

and Stored                 

to Date                                     

( K + L )

% Original 

Contract                          

( M ÷ F )

           Item

Bid                             

Quantity

Unit                                     

Price

Bid                                       

Value

Previous Pay 

Application 

Quantities

113

Item 15.



18 
 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.    
 
 

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 
That we,  ,  as  Principal  (hereinafter  the  “Contractor”  or  “Principal” and 
   as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 

injured    by    any    breach    of    any    of    the    conditions    of    this    Bond    in    the    penal    sum   of 
 

($  ), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 
made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents. 

 
The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the  day of  , 2022, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 
undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

COLLEGE HILL PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

Project PL-101-3264 
 

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 

It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 
part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 

 

1. PERFORMANCE: The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by each 
and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 

part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 
from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 
perform as required. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 
required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 
employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 

2. PAYMENT: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 
performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 
for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 
tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of 

the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but 
the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of 
said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law. 
The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 
573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein. 

3. MAINTENANCE: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

114

Item 15.



19 
 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 
the Contract within the period of 2  year (s) from the date of acceptance of the work 
under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in construction of 

said work; 

 

B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 
C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 
Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

4. GENERAL: Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 

A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 
Contract; 

 
B. To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 
such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 
contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and 

 

C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 
Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 
extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 
liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 
notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to less 
than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 
Bond. 

 

E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 
shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 
interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable. Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 
would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 

rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 
Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 
Owner. It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 
claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 
the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 
Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position it 
would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 

115

Item 15.



20 
 

In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim 

as to which the Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement 

of the promises given by the Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved 

change orders, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the Contractor and Surety in 

this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make the Owner whole for all such 

outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this bond shall not exceed 

125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

 
In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 
thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk County, State of Iowa. If legal action is required by the 
Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the 
Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 
incurred therefor by the Owner. All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and 
not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law. The Owner 

may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor 
or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 
promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 
then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 
the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 
shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 
Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 

industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 
construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 
hereunder. The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

116

Item 15.



21 
 

Project No. PL-101-3264 
 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this  day of  , 2022. 
 

Surety Countersigned By: PRINCIPAL: 
 

 

Signature of Agent Contractor 

 
 

By:    

Signature 
 

Printed Name of Agent Title 
 

 

Company Name 

SURETY: 

 

 
  

Company Address Surety Company 
 

By:    
 

City, State, Zip Code Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

Company Telephone Number Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 
 

Company Name 

 
 

 

FORM APPROVED BY: 

Company Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 

 
Attorney for Owner Company Telephone Number 

 
 
 

NOTE: 
 

1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 
2. This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 
4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 

117

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 9, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Aureon Network Services 
   W. 2nd Street 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Aureon 
Network Services to install an additional long-distance telecommunications system 
consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of the City, in order to extend 
and upgrade services owned by Aureon Network Services along W. 2nd Street.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Iowa Network 
Services, now Aureon Network Services. The proposed License Agreement follows the 
terms and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to protect the City 
of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner consistent with federal 
and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends your approval of 
this proposed License Agreement. 
 
 
xc:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
  
 

118

Item 16.



119

Item 16.



120

Item 16.



121

Item 16.



122

Item 16.



123

Item 16.



124

Item 16.



125

Item 16.



126

Item 16.



127

Item 16.



128

Item 16.



129

Item 16.



EXHIBIT A 

TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR AUREON FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION IN CEDAR FALLS 

Page 1 of 1 

 

The facility shall consist of one (1) two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 96 

count fiber cable installed at minimum depths of: sixty (60”) inches below public roadways, forty-eight 

(48”) inches below private driveways, and forty-two (42”) inch “plan depths” in grassed areas.  

In general terms, within the north right-of-way of W 2nd Street and more particularly described as 

follows: 

1. The facility shall begin at the existing handhole located in the east right-of-way of Franklin Street 

at a point being thirty-one and a half (31.5’) feet easterly of the centerline of Franklin Street at 

station 200+45 and forty-three (43’) feet northerly of the W 2nd Street centerline at station 

100+33 also being station 1+00 of the facility alignment as shown on sheet “3 of 6”, Project No. 

2209627, Exhibit B, a copy of which is attached to this Exhibit A. 

2. Thence southeasterly to the north right-of-way of W 2nd Street seventeen and a half (17.5’) feet 

to station 1+17.5 @ 48” min. depth below W 2nd Street to a proposed bore pit as shown on 

sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

3. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street one-hundred twenty-eight and a half (128.5’) 

feet to station 2+46 @ 48” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a 

twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

4. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street seventeen (17’) feet to station 2+63 @ 48” 

min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

5. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street one-hundred and seventy-two (172’) feet to 

station 4+35 @ 60” min. depth below Clay Street as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

6. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street twelve (12’) feet to station 4+47 @ 60” min. 

depth and overpass the existing north-south sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

7. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street forty-eight (48’) feet @ 48” min. depth to a 

proposed hand-hole and receiving pit at station 4+77 also being station 104+03, 30.5’ Lt of the 

W 2nd Street alignment and station 300+34, 39.5’ Rt of the Clay Street alignment as shown on 

sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

8. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street one-hundred thirty-eight (138’) feet to station 

6+13 @ 48” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

9. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street three (3’) feet to station 6+16 @ 48” min. 

depth below 16.5’ alley way as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

10. Thence easterly on the north side of W 2nd Street seventeen (17’) feet to station 6+33 @ 48” 

min. depth to a proposed bore pit as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said Exhibit B. 

11. Thence northerly from said bore pit on the north side of W 2nd Street seven (7’) feet to the 

northerly right-of-way of W 2nd Street and being station 105+61 thirty-seven (37’) feet Lt of the 

W 2nd Street centerline alignment and out of City of Cedar Falls right-of way. Proposed fiber 

continues north on private property to customer hand-hole as shown on sheet “3 of 6” of said 

Exhibit B. 

130

Item 16.



EXHIBIT B

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

A
U

R
EO

N
 - 

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

C
ED

AR
 F

AL
LS

, I
O

W
A

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

/1
4/

20
22

PH
O

N
E:

 (5
15

) 3
69

-4
40

0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

2209.627

09/20/2022
DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

1/6

AUREON NETWORK SERVICES

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

UTILITY WARNING
ANY UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM MAPS AND RECORDS
OBTAINED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN COMPRISE ALL THE UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE
OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEYOR FURTHER DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE
UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION SHOWN.

NOTES

PROPOSED:
2" ORANGE CONDUIT = 553' (REFLECTS ESTIMATED VERTICAL AND/ OR
CURVED ALIGNMENT SECTION LENGTHS).
HANDHOLES = 1

1. CONTACT THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AT 319-273-8629 AT FORTY-EIGHT (48HRS) HOURS PRIOR TO STARTING CONSTRUCTION.
a. THE WORK CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT ALLOW ANY ENTITIES' VEHICLES THAT ARE, IN ANY WAY, ON SITE BECAUSE OF THE PROJECT WORK, TO BE DRIVEN ON ANY RECREATIONAL TRAIL

SECTIONS. ANY AND ALL DAMAGED SECTION(S) SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR, TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE CITY ENGINEER, AT NO COST TO THE CITY.
2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT PLACE ANY HANDHOLES IN ANY EXISTING OR PLANNED FUTURE SIDEWALK, HANDICAPPED RAMP OR RECREATIONAL TRAIL..
3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BORE UNDER ALL EXISTING OR PLANNED FUTURE STREETS, ROADS, DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS AND RECREATIONAL TRAILS, AS PER OTHER NOTES, VARIOUS
EXISTING AND PLANNED FUTURE UTILITY INFRASTRUCTURES.
4. CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) PROGRAM, INCLUDING ALL LOCAL
GOVERNMENTAL SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND CEDAR FALLS SPECIFICATIONS IN EFFECT WITHIN THE APPLICABLE JURISDICTION. ALL AREAS WHERE WORK IS PERFORMED OR
AFFECTED BY THE WORK SHALL BE RETURNED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION, THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION
WHETHER ALL "RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL AND ACCEPTABLE.
5. THE MINIMUM UNDERCROSSING CLEARANCE AT ALL STORM SEWERS AND STORM SEWER CULVERTS SHALL BE TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCHES. THE MINIMUM UNDERCROSSING CLEARANCE
UNDER WATERWAYS SHALL BE THIRTY-SIX (36") INCHES.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AT LEAST ONE FOOT (1') OF HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE FROM STORM SEWER PIPES AND STRUCTURES WITH THE ALIGNMENT. THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE
SHALL ALWAYS BE PLACED BELOW (UNDERPASS) AN EXISTING STORM SEWER OR POSSIBLE FUTURE STORM SEWER BOTTOM OF PIPE ELEVATION BY A MINIMUM CLEARANCE OF 2'
7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AT LEAST FOUR FEET (4') OF HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE FROM SANITARY SEWER PIPES AND STRUCTURES WITH THE ALIGNMENT. WHEN A 2' VERTICAL
CLEARANCE ABOVE AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER OR POSSIBLE FUTURE SANITARY SEWER IS IN CONFLICT WITH A MINIMUM DEPTH BELOW GRADE, THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED
BELOW (UNDERPASS) THE SANITARY SEWER BOTTOM OF PIPE ELEVATION BY THE MINIMUM CLEARANCE OF 2'.
8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN AT LEAST THREE FEET (3') OF HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE AND TWO FEET (2') VERTICAL CLEARANCE FROM WATER MAINS WITH THE ALIGNMENT. WHEN A 2'
VERTICAL CLEARANCE ABOVE A WATER MAIN OR SERVICE IS IN CONFLICT WITH A MINIMUM DEPTH BELOW GRADE, THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED BELOW (UNDERPASS) THE WATER
MAIN OR SERVICE BOTTOM OF PIPE ELEVATION BY THE MINIMUM CLEARANCE OF 2'.
9. DISTANCES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY CONDITIONS AND MATERIALS NEEDED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
10. IOWA STATE LAW REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY IOWA ONE-CALL AT LEAST 48 (FORTY-EIGHT) HOURS PRIOR TO ALL EXCAVATIONS (EXCLUDING SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS, AND LEGAL
HOLIDAYS).  CONTRACTORS MUST CAREFULLY HAND DIG WITHIN THE 24” SAFETY ZONE WHEN EXPOSING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES. IOWA ONE-CALL DOES NOT MARK ALL PRIVATE UTILITIES.
11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL CURRENT AND APPLICABLE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEATH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA), FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL RULES AND
REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES AND PROPER MATERIAL HANDLING DURING THE CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND RESTORATIONS ON THIS PROJECT.
12. WHEN PLOWING/TRENCHING FOR PLACEMENT OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE OR DUCT, A MARKER TAPE SHALL ALSO BE PLACED 18” BELOW EXISTING SURFACE, DIRECTLY ABOVE THE CABLE OR
DUCT BEING PLACED.
13. NO TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SITE SHALL BE LEFT UNATTENDED AT ANY TIME OR LEFT OPEN OVERNIGHT.
14. THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO TRAFFIC REGULATIONS DURING THE ENTIRE EXTENT OF THIS PROJECT WORK:

a. THERE SHALL BE AT ALL TIMES ADEQUATE VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR THE PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT WORK.
b. DURING NON-WORKING HOURS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE EXISTING TRAFFIC LANES CLEAR FROM INTERFERENCE, INCLUDING ALL APPROACHES AND INTERSECTIONS.
c. IF LANE BLOCKAGE IS UNAVOIDABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION, THE CITY MUNICIPAL OPERATIONS AND PROGRAMS DEPARTMENT, POLICE

DEPARTMENT, FIRE DEPARTMENT, AMBULANCE SERVICES, SCHOOL BUS GARAGES AND ALL OTHER AGENCIES OPERATIONS AS APPROPRIATE SO THAT THESE AGENCIES MAY PLAN TO
RE-ROUTE THEIR VEHICLES AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE(S).
15. FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF SIXTY (60”) INCHES BELOW PUBLIC ROADWAYS
AND PUBLIC DITCH LINES, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED WITHIN A NOTE PERTAINING TO AN INDIVIDUAL UNIQUE AREA ALONG AN ALIGNMENT ON THIS PLAN VIEW SHEET.  ALL CONDUITS AND
FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF TWENTY FOUR (24”) BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC SUBDRAINS, PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND /OR PUBLIC WATERWAYS
BEING CROSSED. ALL FIBER OPTIC CABLE IN AREAS WITH GRASS COVER SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND AT A MINIMUM
DISTANCE OF 2' FROM OTHER UTILITIES, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON THIS PLAN VIEW SHEET. WHEN A 2' VERTICAL CLEARANCE ABOVE A UTILITY IS IN CONFLICT WITH ANY MINIMUM
BURY DEPTH WHETHER IT BE 42" IN GRASSED AREAS, 48" UNDERCROSSING DRIVEWAYS OR 60" UNDERCROSSING STREETS, THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL UNDERPASS THE UTILITIES BY A
MINIMUM CLEARANCE OF 2'.
16. PLAN SET / DESIGN DEVELOPMENT BY: CIVIL DESIGN ADVANTAGE-WAYNE HOUSER 515-369-4400
17. THE CONTACTS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ENGINEERING DIVISION ARE MATTHEW TOLAN AND DAVE WICKE AT 319-268-5161.
18. BACKFILL COMPACTION FOR ALL AREAS EXCAVATED SHALL BE AS PER THE CURRENT IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) AND THE CURRENT CITY OF CEDAR
FALLS, IOWA SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AS FOLLOWS: USE NO MORE THAN EIGHT (8") INCH THICK LIFTS FOR BACKFILL AREAS MORE THAN THREE (3') FEET BELOW THE BOTTOM OF
PAVEMENT. USE NO MORE THAN SIX (6") INCH THICK LIFTS FOR BACKFILL AREAS LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO THREE (3') FEET BELOW THE BOTTOM OF PAVEMENT. COMPACTION TO AT LEAST 95%
OF STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY. OBTAIN REQUIRED COMPACTION WITHIN A SOIL MOISTURE RANGE OF OPTIMUM TO 4% ABOVE OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT. IN
AREAS TO REMAIN UNPAVED, TERMINATE BACKFILL MATERIAL EIGHT (8") INCHES BELOW FINISHED GRADE. USE TOPSOIL FOR THE FINAL EIGHT (8") INCHES ABOVE BACKFILL MATERIAL.

ROUND STORM SEWER INTAKE

TELEVISION PEDESTAL

SIGN

STORM SEWER MANHOLE

WATER VALVE
TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

STORM SEWER INTAKE

FIRE HYDRANT

FIBER OPTICS LINE
CABLE TELEVISION LINE
TELEPHONE LINE

POWER POLE
WATERMAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER
GAS LINE
ELECTRIC LINE
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

UNDERGROUND CONDUIT
HANDHOLE
FIBER OPTIC VAULT

H

MHFIBER OPTIC MANHOLE
FO

LEGEND

UTILITY PROVIDERS - IOWA ONE CALL DESIGN TICKET #552205859:
MEDIACOM
CONTACT NAME : BRIAN KADNER
CONTACT PHONE: 8455449656
CONTACT EMAIL: BKADNER@MEDIACOMCC.COM

CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES
CONTACT NAME : JERALD LUKENSMEYER
CONTACT PHONE: 3192685330
CONTACT EMAIL: JERALD.LUKENSMEYER@CFUNET.NET

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
CONTACT NAME : TYLER GRIFFIN
CONTACT PHONE: 3192738600
CONTACT EMAIL: TYLER.GRIFFIN@CEDARFALLS.COM

CENTURYLINK
CONTACT NAME : SADIE HULL
CONTACT PHONE: 9185470147
CONTACT EMAIL: SADIE.HULL@LUMEN.COM

AUREON NETWORK SERVICES
CONTACT NAME : JEFF KLOCKO
CONTACT PHONE: 5158300445
CONTACT EMAIL: JEFF.KLOCKO@AUREON.COM

131

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE: H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG FILE DATE: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT:   DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: COMMENT: PLOTTED BY: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: TECH:  ENG: ENG: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL A. BROONER, P.L.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
MICHAEL A. BROONER 15980

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS LAND SURVEYING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED AND THE RELATED SURVEY WORK WAS PERFORMED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF IOWA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS 1-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
OE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

MBrooner
Typewritten Text
9-14-2022

tolanm
Stamp

tolanm
PowerPoint Presentation

tolanm
Text Box

tolanm
Text Box
2209.627

tolanm
Text Box
11/28/2022

tolanm
Text Box
City of Cedar Falls Notes:- Contractor required to pothole and spot every utility crossing along alignment  



EXHIBIT B

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

A
U

R
EO

N
 - 

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

C
ED

AR
 F

AL
LS

, I
O

W
A

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

/1
4/

20
22

PH
O

N
E:

 (5
15

) 3
69

-4
40

0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

2209.627

09/20/2022
DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

2/6

SHEETS 3 & 4

W 2ND STREET

FR
AN

KL
IN

 S
TR

EE
T

LENGTH OF UTILITY, IN CEDAR FALLS CITY RIGHT OF WAY
BEGINNING @ EXISTING AUREON HH @ NORTHEAST CORNER OF W 2ND STREET & FRANKLIN STREET, SOUTHEAST IN NORTH ROW TO PROPOSED BORE PIT.

ENDING STA AND OFFSET                          BEGINNING STA AND OFFSET DISTANCE L.F.
100+45 30.5' LT- BP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN) 100+33 43' LT(W 2ND ST. ALIGN) 17.5

357.5

 TOTAL L.F. OF 2" ORANGE CONDUIT IN CITY OF CEDAR FALLS RIGHT-OF-WAY

BEGIN PROPOSED AUREON 2" HDPE
CONDUIT W/96CT FIBER OPTIC

END PROPOSED AUREON 2" HDPE
CONDUIT W/96CT FIBER OPTIC

FROM PROPOSED BORE PIT @  NORTHEAST CORNER OF W 2ND STREET & FRANKLIN STREET., EAST IN NORTH ROW OF W 2ND STREET, CROSSING CLAY STREET TO HH &  REC.  PIT.

FROM  HH & REC.  PIT. IN NORTH ROW OF W 2ND STREET, EAST TO BORE PIT. 158

7

540 L.F.

SHEET LAYOUT

C
LA

Y 
ST

R
EE

T

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

100+45 30.5' LT- BP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)104+03 30.5' LT- HH & RP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)

104+03 30.5' LT- HH & RP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)105+58 30.5' LT- BP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)

105+58 30.5' LT- BP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)105+58 37.5' LT- BP (W 2ND ST. ALIGN)
FROM  BORE  PIT. IN NORTH ROW OF W 2ND STREET, NORTH OUT OF CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ROW.

132

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE: H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG FILE DATE: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT:   DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: 9/14/2022 10:35 AM COMMENT: COMMENT: PLOTTED BY: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: TECH:  ENG: ENG: 



200+00

201+00

300+00

301+00

10
0+

00

10
1+

00

10
2+

00

10
3+

00

10
4+

00

10
5+

00

10
6+

00

CEDAR FALLS
WATER

CEDAR FALLS
FIBER OPTIC

EXISTING AUREON (INS) 32"X48"x48"
HANDHOLE & RECEIVING PIT 8.0' BOC @
STA 100+33 43' LT (W 2ND ST ALIGN.)
STA 200+45 31.5' RT (FRANKLIN ST ALIGN)

CENTURYLINK

PROPOSED AUREON (INS) 32"X48"x48"
HANDHOLE & RECEIVING PIT @ STA
104+03 30.5' LT (W 2ND STREET ALIGN)
STA 300+34 39.5' RT (CLAY STREET ALIGN)

CRITICAL CROSSING

CRITICAL CROSSING

CRITICAL CROSSINGCEDAR FALLS
GAS

CEDAR FALLS
WATER

CEDAR FALLS
STORM SEWER

CEDAR FALLS
SANITARY SEWER

W 2ND STREET

C
LA

Y 
ST

R
EE

T

FR
AN

KL
IN

 S
TR

EE
T

CENTURYLINK

PROPOSED 18"X30"60"
BORE PIT

STA 105+56 30.5'(FEET) LT
PROPOSED 18"X30"60"
BORE PIT
STA 100+45 30.5'(FEET) LT

PROPOSED 2" CONDUIT CROSSING
CLAY STREET ALIGNMENT

@ STA 300+34 @ 60" MINIMUM
DEPTH BELOW TOP OF CURB

CEDAR FALLS
ELECTRIC

MEDIACOM CEDAR FALLS
GAS

CEDAR FALLS
GAS

1+
00

2+
00

3+
00

4+
00

5+
00

6+
00

7+00

7+14

PROPOSED 18"X30"60"
RECEIVING PIT
STA 104+03 30.5'(FEET) LT

EXISTING
AUREON FIBER

CEDAR FALLS
FIBER OPTIC

BORE 17.5' (FEET) 2" HDPE
CONDUIT W/96 COUNT FIBER OPTIC
@ 48" MINIMUM BORE DEPTH
NORTHWEST FROM PROPOSED
BORE PIT @ STA.100+45 30.5'(FEET)
LT. TO EXISTING HAND-HOLE.

BORE 357.5' (FEET) 2" HDPE CONDUIT
W/96 COUNT FIBER OPTIC @ 48"

MINIMUM BORE DEPTH EAST FROM
PROPOSED BORE PIT @ STA.100+45

30.5'(FEET) LT. TO PROPOSED
HAND-HOLE & RECEIVING PIT @

STA.104+02.5 30.5' LT

BORE 158' (FEET) 2" HDPE CONDUIT
W/96 COUNT FIBER OPTIC @ 48"
MINIMUM BORE DEPTH EAST FROM
PROPOSED HAND-HOLE &
RECEIVING PIT @ STA.104+03 30.5' LT
TO PROPOSED BORE PIT @
STA.105+61 30.5'(FEET) LT.

BORE 7' (FEET) 2" HDPE CONDUIT W/96
COUNT FIBER OPTIC @ 48" MINIMUM

BORE DEPTH EAST FROM PROPOSED
BORE PIT @ STA.105+61 30.5'(FEET) LT.

TO STA 105+61 37.5' LT AND OUT OF
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ROW.

CEDAR FALLS
ELECTRIC

EXISTING CUSTOMER
HAND-HOLE

POTHOLE TO VERIFY
DEPTH OF HIGH PRESSURE GAS

H

H

H

850

855

860

865

870

875

880

885

890

895

1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00

850

855

860

865

870

875

880

885

890

895

EXHIBIT B

SEE: SHEET 4 OF 6

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

A
U

R
EO

N
 - 

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

C
ED

AR
 F

AL
LS

, I
O

W
A

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

/1
4/

20
22

PH
O

N
E:

 (5
15

) 3
69

-4
40

0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

2209.627

09/20/2022
DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

3/6
133

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
132'

AutoCAD SHX Text
132'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C61-T008

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C61-T020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
323 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
315 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
312 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
223 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
205 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE: H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG FILE DATE: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT:   DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: COMMENT: PLOTTED BY: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: TECH:  ENG: ENG: 

/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-131625&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-130582&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/t?PDTRAN-125073&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-113597&target=q


43.0'
HH TO ℄

200+00

201+00

300+00

301+00

10
0+

00

10
1+

00

10
2+

00

10
3+

00

10
4+

00

10
5+

00

10
6+

00

W 2ND STREET

C
LA

Y 
ST

R
EE

T

FR
AN

KL
IN

 S
TR

EE
T

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

30.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO ℄

1+
00

2+
00

3+
00

4+
00

5+
00

6+
00

7+00

7+14

31.5'
HH TO ℄

39.5'
ALIGNMENT

TO HH

H

H

H

8.0'
HH TO BOC

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW
7.0'

ALIGNMENT
TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW

7.0'
ALIGNMENT

TO ROW
7.0'

ALIGNMENT
TO ROW

850

855

860

865

870

875

880

885

890

895

850

855

860

865

870

875

880

885

890

895

1+00 2+00 3+00 4+00 5+00 6+00

EXHIBIT B

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

A
U

R
EO

N
 - 

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

C
ED

AR
 F

AL
LS

, I
O

W
A

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
09

/1
4/

20
22

PH
O

N
E:

 (5
15

) 3
69

-4
40

0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

2209.627

09/20/2022
DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

4/6
134

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
132'

AutoCAD SHX Text
132'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C61-T008

AutoCAD SHX Text
CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
C61-T020

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FV

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
323 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
315 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
312 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
223 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
205 W 2ND ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PROFILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE: H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG H:\2022\2209627\DWG\2209627-AUREON-FIB(CEDAR FALLS).DWG FILE DATE: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: 9/14/22  DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT:   DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: DATE PLOTTED: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: 9/14/2022 10:36 AM COMMENT: COMMENT: PLOTTED BY: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: WAYNE HOUSER TECH:  ENG: TECH:  ENG: ENG: 

/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-131625&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-130582&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?62130576&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/c?63125072&target=q
/cgi/t?PDTRAN-125073&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-125074&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-125077&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-121538&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-117914&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_OH-120415&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sv?Service_URD-117915&target=q
/cgi/sc?Secondary_URD-113597&target=q


135

Item 16.



136

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 9, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC 
   W. 12th Street & Union Road. 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and 
Windstream Intellectual Property Services, LLC to install an additional long-distance 
telecommunications system consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of 
the City, in order to extend and upgrade services owned by Windstream intellectual 
Property Services, LLC along W. 12th Street and Union Road. 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with other utility 
services such as Aureon Network Services. The proposed License Agreement follows the 
terms and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to protect the City 
of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner consistent with federal 
and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends your approval of 
this proposed License Agreement. 
 
 
xc:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
  
 

137

Item 17.



138

Item 17.



139

Item 17.



140

Item 17.



141

Item 17.



142

Item 17.



143

Item 17.



144

Item 17.



145

Item 17.



146

Item 17.



147

Item 17.



148

Item 17.



 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Description of Route of Windstream Fiber Optic Relocation along the Right Of Way 
of Union Road 

 
 

The facility shall consist of one (1) two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 

fiber cable installed at the minimum depths of forty-two (42”) inches in grassed areas, forty-eight 

(48”) inches undercrossing driveways and sidewalks, and sixty (60”) inches undercrossing streets. This 

work is to relocate the fiber cable and to transition from overlash to underground installation. The 

route of the facility shall be as follows: 

 

Right of Way (R.O.W.) of Union Road  

 

Commencing from a point that is 350’ south of the C.L. of W. 12 St. and two (2’) feet west of the east 

right of way line of Union Road (+ - 73’ east of the Union Rd. CL), thence splicing new fiber into the 

existing aerial strand on the existing pole, come down existing pole and into a bore pit to a minimum 

depth of forty-two (42”) inches at the beginning location station 0+00, 73’ east of the Union Rd. CL. 

 

Thence boring north a distance of two hundred (200’) feet (Sta. 2+00, seventy-three (73’) feet east of 

the Union Rd. CL), at a minimum depth of forty-two (42”) inches, 

 

Thence boring north a distance of one hundred twenty-four (124’) feet (Sta. 3+24, seventy-three (73’) 

feet east of the Union Rd. CL), from a minimum depth of forty-two (42”) inches to a minimum depth 

of sixty (60”) inches below the existing CL elevation at the centerline of West 12th St., to the north, 

 

Thence boring north a distance of eighty-one (81’) feet (to Sta. 4+05, seventy-three (73’) feet east of 

the Union Rd. CL), at a minimum depth of sixty (60”) inches below the existing CL elevation at the 

centerline of West 12th St., to the north, 

 

Thence boring west twenty-seven (27’) feet (to Sta. 4+05, forty-six (46’) feet east of the Union Rd. CL, 

transitioning from a minimum depth of sixty (60”) inches below the existing CL elevation at the 

centerline of West 12th St., to a minimum depth of forty-eight (48”) inches, 

 

Thence boring north one-hundred thirty-one (131’) feet (to Sta. 56+36, forty-six (46’) feet east of the 

Union Rd. CL, at a minimum depth of forty-eight (48”) inches, 

 

Thence boring west seventy-eight (78’) feet (to Sta. 5+36, thirty-two (32’) feet west of Union Rd. CL) 

at a minimum depth of sixty (60”) inches below the elevation line from the east top of curb to the 

west top of curb of Union Rd., 

 

Thence boring north twenty (20’) feet (to Sta. 5+56, thirty-two (32’) feet west of Union Rd. CL), at a 

minimum depth of forty-two (42”) inches. 

149

Item 17.



SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

01 OF 10 07/15/2021

VICINITY MAP

03

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND

FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET

GUTTER TO SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS

AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR

THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS,

SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT

OF WAY,

C) FORTY-TWO (42") IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT OF

WAY,

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITDINAL SUBDRAINS,

E) TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC

CULVERTS, AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S) BEING CROSSED,

AND

F) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICAL

UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 

1

2

') FEET FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.

(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN INDIVIDUAL PLAN

VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET

OF THE PLAN SET.)

DISCLAIMER:

UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING

ARE APPROXIMATE AND SHOULD NOT BE

SOLELY RELIED UPON TO LOCATE

UNDERGROUND FACILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR

SHALL BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR

COMPLIANCE WITH STATEWIDE AND/OR LOCAL

AREA "ONE CALL" PROGRAMS AND

REQUIREMENTS.

CALL BEFORE DIGGING

UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER OF IOWA

811- 1-800-292-898

NOTE: ON PLAN SET SUBMITTALS THAT DEPICT BOTH

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD INSTALLATIONS

WITH ALL STARTING POINTS AND ALL ENDING POINTS FULLY

SHOWN AND DESCRIBED, CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF ALL

UNDERGROUND WORK CAN BE GIVEN BY THE CITY

ENGINEERING DIVISION AFTER REVIEW ITEMS, RELATING TO

UNDERGROUND INSTALLATIONS ONLY, ARE PROPERLY

ADDRESSED EXCLUDING TRANSITION OF OVERLASH OR

ABOVE GROUND INSTALLATIONS ON POLES IS AT THE

DISCRETION OF CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES (CFU). SUBMIT A

POLE STUDY TO CFU FOR ADDITIONAL LOADING. CONTACT

JOHN OSTERHAUS AT THE CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES (CFU)

ELECTRIC DIVISION AT (319) 268-5298

707402475

12/14/2022

Exhibit B

150

Item 17.



ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

02 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

UNIT SUMMARY

CENTER

BOC BOC BOC BOC BOC BOC

CURB

ROW

ROW ROW ROW

S/W S/W S/W

BOC BOC

SD

R/W

SD

BOC

SD

R/W

BOC

SD

BOC

SD

R/W

W W W W W W

WATER

LINE

(BUR)

E E E E E E

BOC

SD

DRAIN

SANITARY

LINE

TO BE

REMOVED (FOC)

EXISTING

C C C C C C

PROPOSED

FIBER (BUR)

PROPOSED

FIBER

MARKER ROD

TEL/ELEC

POLE

R/WR/WR/W

S/WS/WS/W

ROWROWROW

LEGEND

LINE

BACK OF

LINE

SIDEWALK

NEW CONST.

LINES

COMMUNICATIONS

ELECTRICAL

(BUR)

STORM

CONDUIT

CONDUIT

COMMS

PEDESTAL

PROPOSED

HANDHOLE

GROUND SLACK

FOC LOOP

PROPOSED

BORE PIT

CATCH

BASIN

FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL

CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE

STREET GUTTER TO SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON

PUBLIC STREETS AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION

LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS,

RECREATIONAL TRAILS, SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL

DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

C) FORTY-TWO (42") IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC

RIGHT OF WAY,

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITDINAL

SUBDRAINS,

E) TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS,

PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)

BEING CROSSED, AND

F) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM

ELECTRICAL UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 

1

2

') FEET FROM

ALL OTHER UTILITIES.

(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN

INDIVIDUAL PLAN VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW 

OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET OF THE PLAN SET.)

151

Item 17.



ROWROWROWROWROW

ROWROWROWROWROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

ROW

R
O

W

R
O

W

C C

C C C C C C C

R
O

W

E
O

R
E

O
R

E

O

R

E

O

R

EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR

C

1
+

0
0

2
+

0
0

3
+

0
0

4
+

0
0

5
+

0
0

100'

B

M

5

3

F

S
T

A
0

+
0

0
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T
.

B
E

G
I
N

 
B

O
R

E

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

O
L

E

100'

S
T

A
5

+
3

6
,
 
4

6
'
 
R

T

S
T

A
5

+
5

6
,
 
3

2
'
 
L

T
.
E

N
D

 
T

R
E

N
C

H

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

O
L

E

S
T

A
1

+
5

0
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T
.

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
P

O
L

E

B
M

5
3
F

100'

100'

CO180

NO COUNTS

CO180

NO COUNTS

8
1
'

1
5
0
'

84'

R
/
W

CO

3
3
'

4
8
'

4
6
'

2'

7
5
'

7
5
'

7
3
'

2'

33'
33'

UNION RD

P.C.C.

UNION RD

ASPHALT

W
 
1

2
T

H
 
S

T

P
.
C

.
C

W
 
1

2
T

H
 
S

T

P
.
C

.
C

.

SIDEWALK

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W
W

W
W

W

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

E
E

E

EE

E

E
E

E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
E

E
EE

EE
EE

E

THE RISER POLE ON THE SOUTH

SIDE OF 12TH ST. PLACE NEW

BF0288I @ 2' WEST OF THE ROW LINE.

"STA. 0+00,73' RT. TO STA. 2+50, 73' RT",

INSTALL NEW SPL CASE AND PLACE

RISER DOWN POLE. LOOP SLACK INTO

SNOWSHOE. BORE 250' OF 2'' DUCT@

MIN. 48" DEPTH FROM THE RISE POLE

TO BEGINNING OF DEPTH INCREASE

VERTICAL CURVE.

HAPO(288)-1

BM80-1

PM92-1

WHO1(A)-288

HOMW(A)-288

BM53FI-1

PE1-3

PF1-5A

NOTE:CUT 100' OF EXISTING FIBER FOR NEW SPLICE

"STA. 5+36, 46' RT. TO STA.

5+36, 32' LT",

BORE 78' OF 2" DUCT @ MIN

60" DEPTH BELOW A LINE

FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE

STREET GUTTER OF UNION

ROAD TO RECEIVING PIT.

BORE PIT @ 5+36. 40 SQ FT

APPROXIMATELY 2X3 PIECE

OF CONCRETE WILL NEED

TO BE REMOVED AND

REPLACED FOR

A TRENCH FROM BORE PIT

TO POWER POLE.

BM73-40'

DELASH EXISTING LOOP AND CUT

EXISTING AERIAL FIBER. INSTALL

NEW SPL CASE AND PLACE RISER

DOWN POLE.  LOOP SLACK INTO

SNOWSHOE.

HAPO(288)-1

BM80-1

PM92-1

WHO1(A)-288

HOMW(A)-288

BM53FI-1

PLACE ANCHOR

& GUY

PE1-3

PF1-5A

S
T

A
4

+
0

5
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T
.
 
B

O
R

E
 
P

I
T

73'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
3
'

7
3
'

4
6
'

4
6
'

10'

EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR

E

O

R

E

O

R

E
O

R
E

O
R

E
O

R
E

O
R

E
O

R
E

O
R

EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR

E

O

R

E

O

R

E
O

R
E

O
R

3
1
'

E
O

R
E

O
R

E
O

R
E

O
R

E
O

R
E

O
R

E

O

R

E

O

R

EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR EOR

17.5'

3
2
.
5
'

21'

(4'x5') BORE

PIT DEPTH 48"

25'

24'

24'

BORE AND PLACE 1.25"

INNERDUCT @MIN 48" DEPTH

FROM @STA 4+05 TO @STA

5+36. PULL 48 WS FOC WITHIN

BORE AND PLACE

1.25" INNERDUCT

@MIN 60" DEPTH

FROM  @STA 5+36,

46' RT TO @STA

5+36, 32' LT. PULL

48 WS FOC WITHIN

"STA. 2+50,73' RT. TO STA. 4+06,73' RT",

BORE 156' OF 2'' DUCT@ DEPTH FROM ,IN. 48''

DEPTH TO MIN. 54'' DEPTH BELOW EDGES OF W.

12TH ST. PAVEMENT&TO 54'' DEPTH BORE PIT

FOR 4' DIA. TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE WEST.

R
O

W

R
O

W

S
T

A
3

+
2

3
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T

E

"STA. 4+05,73' RT. TO STA. 4+05,46' RT",

BORE 27' OF 2'' DUCT@ MIN. 48'' DEPTH

TO 54'' DEPTH RECEIVER PIT FOR 4' DIA.

TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE NORTH.

2'

2
7
'

42'

"STA. 4+05,46' RT. TO STA. 5+36, 46' RT",

BORE 130' OF 2'' DUCT@ MIN. 48'' DEPTH

TO 54'' DEPTH BORE PIT FOR 4' DIA.

TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE WEST.

S
T

A
4

+
0

5
,
 
4

6
'
 
R

T
B

O
R

E
 
P

I
T

25'

28'

NOTE: TIGHT RADIUS

BEND TO BE USED

DELASH EXISTING

LOOP AND CUT

EXISTING AERIAL

FIBER.

XXCO(48)

2'

40' 33'

S
T

A
5

+
3

6
,
 
3

2
'
 
L

T
.

E
N

D
 
B

O
R

E

B
E

G
I
N

 
T

R
E

N
C

H

S
T

A
3

+
4

4
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T

S
T

A
3

+
6

8
,
 
7

3
'
 
R

T

R60'

R60'

R60'

R60'

NOTE(TRANSITION OF OVERLASH TO UNDERGROUND): ON PLAN

SETS SUBMITTALS THAT DEPICT BOTH PROPOSED UNDERGROUND

AND OVERHEAD INSTALLATIONS WITH ALL STARTING POINTS AND

ALL ENDING POINTS FULLY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED, CONDITIONAL

APPROVAL OF ALL UNDERGROUND WORK CAN BE GIVEN BY THE

CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION AFTER REVIEW ITEMS RELATING TO

UNDERGROUND INSTALLATION ONLY, ARE PROPERLY ADDRESSED

EXCLUDING TRANSITION OF OVERLASH OR ABOVE GROUND

INSTALLATIONS ON POLES IS AT THE DISCRETION OF CEDAR FALLS

UTILITIES (CFU).  SUBMIT A POLE STUDY TO CFU FOR ADDITIONAL

LOADING.  CONTACT JOHN OSTERHAUS AT THE CEDAR FALLS

UTILITIES (CFU) ELECTRIC DIVISION AT (319)268-5298.

FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL

CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE

STREET GUTTER TO SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON

PUBLIC STREETS AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION

LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS,

RECREATIONAL TRAILS, SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL

DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

C) FORTY-TWO (42") IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC

RIGHT OF WAY,

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITDINAL

SUBDRAINS,

E) TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS,

PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)

BEING CROSSED, AND

F) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM

ELECTRICAL UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 

1

2

') FEET FROM

ALL OTHER UTILITIES.

(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN

INDIVIDUAL PLAN VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW 

OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET OF THE PLAN SET.)

W W

SANITATION

STORM

CENTURYLINK FIBER

WATER

G

UTILITY KEY

ELECTRIC E E

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMA1:50

707402475

CDFLIA

03 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

GAS

FOLLOW BELOW SECTION LENGTH AND SECTION DEPTH AS FOLLOW:-

1. STA. 0+00, 73' RT. TO STA. 2+50, 73' RT., BORE 250' OF 2" DUCT @MIN. 48" DEPTH

FROM THE RISER POLE TO BEGINNING OF DEPTH INCREASE VERTICAL CURVE.

2. STA. 2+50, 73' RT. TO STA. 4+06, 73' RT., BORE 156' OF 2" DUCT @ DEPTH INCREASE

FROM MIN. 48" DEPTH TO MIN. 54" DEPTH BELOW EDGES OF W. 12TH ST. PAVEMENT

& TO 54" DEPTH BORE PIT FOR 4' DIA.TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE WEST.

3. STA. 4+06, 73' RT. TO STA. 4+06, 46' RT., BORE 27' OF 2" DUCT @MIN. 48" DEPTH TO

54" DEPTH RECEIVER PIT FOR 4' DIA. TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE NORTH.

4. STA. 4+06, 46' RT. TO STA. 5+36, 46' RT., BORE 130' OF 2" DUCT @ MIN.48" DEPTH TO

54" DEPTH BORE PIT FOR 4' DIA. TIGHT RADIUS BEND TO THE WEST.

5. STA. 5+36, 46' RT. TO STA. 5+36, 32' LT., BORE 78' OF 2" DUCT @MIN. 60" DEPTH

BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER TO SIX (6") INCHES

ABOVE STREET GUTTER OF UNION ROAD TO RECEIVING PIT.

152

Item 17.



33'

BORE PROFILE W12TH ST

LOOKING WEST VIEW

R
O

W

12"

24"

36"

48"

60"

10'
20' 30'

40'

50'

60'

70' 81'

B
O

C

C
/
L

B
O

C

17' 31'

3' 7' 7' 13' 10' 12' 3' 6' 2'

6
+

1
7

6
+

0
7

5
+

9
7

5
+

8
7

5
+

7
7

5
+

6
7

5
+

5
7

5
+

4
7

5
+

3
6

BORE PROFILE UNION RD.

LOOKING NORTH VIEW

PROPOSED HH

BORE IN

8'

BORE PIT

(3'WX5'LX4'D)

BORE PIT

(3'WX5'LX4'D)

BORE OUT

RECEIVING PIT

R
O

W

0.00

+12"

+24"

SIDEWALK

R
O

W

12"

24"

36"

48"

60"

10'

20' 30'

40'

50'

60'

70'

E
O

R

C
/
L

E
O

R

21' 24'

PROPOSED HH

BORE IN

BORE PIT

(2'WX5'LX4'D)

R
O

W

0.00

+12"

+24"

M
I
N

.
 
6

0
"

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

M
I
N

.
 
4

8
"

M
I
N

.
 
4

8
"

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

M
I
N

.
 
4

8
"

10'

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

72"

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

M
I
N

.
 
5

4
"

BORE CONTINUES

WEST @ 48" DEPTH

BORE CONTINUES

SOUTH @ 48"  DEPTH

BORE CONTINUES

SOUTH @ 48" DEPTH

BORE ENDS

TRENCH 20' NORTH TO

POLE @ 48" DEPTH.

SIDEWALK

0'

28'

10'13' 2'

73'

72"

3'

SS

N

ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMA1:50

707402475

CDFLIA

04 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

BORE PROFILES

153

Item 17.



ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

05 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

1.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL COMPANY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES AND ALL REQUIREMENTS FROM LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITIES.  THE VARIOUS PERMITS OBTAINED FOR THE PROJECT WILL BE ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE WINDSTREAM ENGINEER AND A COPY SHALL BE

AVAILABLE AT ALL TIMES AT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE.  NO CONSTRUCTION, EXCAVATION OR IMPROVEMENTS OF ANY KIND SHALL BEGIN ON THE SURFACE, IN THE SUBSURFACE OR ABOVE THE SURFACE WITHOUT A SIGNED PERMIT FROM THE GOVERNING PERMIT AUTHORITY OF AUTHORITIES.

2. CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE CURRENT STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) PROGRAM, INCLUDING ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS AND CEDAR FALLS SPECIFICATIONS IN EFFECT WITHIN THE

APPLICABLE JURISDICTION.  ALL AREAS WHERE WORK IS PERFORMED OR AFFECTED BY THE WORK SHALL BE RETURNED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION.  THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL "RETURNED

CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL (AND ACCEPTABLE).

3. MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS SUCH AS SIGN POSTS, MAIL BOXES, METER BOXES, ETC., SHALL BE AVOIDED OR REMOVED AND REINSTALLED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION.  THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL

DETERMINATION WHETHER ALL RETURNED CONDITIONS ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE AT ALL TIMES FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF STREETS AND OTHER UTILITIES AFFECTED BY CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.  DEBRIS SHALL NOT BE PERMITTED TO ACCUMULATE AND ALL PREMISES SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND WORKMANLIKE

CONDITION.  THE CITY ENGINEER OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS WILL REVIEW ALL PROPOSED DISPOSAL SITES, PRIOR TO THEIR USE, TO DETERMINE ACCEPTABILITY.

5. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE ADEQUATE PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT EXISTING FACILITIES, SIDEWALKS, CURBS, PAVEMENTS, UTILITIES, FOLIAGE AND ADJOINING PROPERTY AND STRUCTURES OUTSIDE OF RIGHT-OF-WAY AND TO AVOID DAMAGE THERETO.

6. THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO TRAFFIC REGULATIONS DURING THE ENTIRE EXTENT OF THIS PROJECT WORK:

A. THERE SHALL BE AT ALL TIMES ADEQUATE VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS FOR THE PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT WORK.

B. DURING NON-WORKING HOURS THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE EXISTING TRAFFIC LANES CLEAR FROM INTERFERENCE, INCLUDING ALL APPROACHES AND INTERSECTIONS.

C. IF LANE BLOCKAGE IS UNAVOIDABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY TRAFFIC ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT, POLICE DEPARTMENT, FIRE DEPARTMENT, AMBULANCE SERVICES, SCHOOL BUS GARAGES, AND ALL OTHER AGENCIES OPERATIONS AS APPROPRIATE SO THAT THESE

AGENCIES MAY PLAN TO RE-ROUTE THEIR VEHICLES AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE(S).

7.  WHERE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS EXIST, PROPER SIGNING, FLAGGING, AND BARRICADING SHALL BE PROVIDED AS DIRECTED BY THE WINDSTREAM ENGINEER OR THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER.  SUPPLEMENTAL SIGNS, FLAG PERSON(S) AND BARRICADES SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE

CONTRACTOR.  NO TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SITE SHALL BE  LEFT UNATTENDED, AT ANY TIME, OR OPEN OVERNIGHT.

8. TRENCHES IN PAVED AREAS SHALL BE SAW CUT TO THE FULL DEPTH OF THE PAVEMENT AS REQUIRED BY THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY.  PAVED SURFACES SHALL BE REPAIRED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PERMITTING AUTHORITY'S SPECIFICATIONS (CURRENT SUDAS) AND THE CURRENT

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS TO THEM.

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL CURRENT AND APPLICABLE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA), FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL RULES AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING THE SAFETY OF EMPLOYEES AND PROPER MATERIAL HANDLING DURING THE

CONSTRUCTION, INSTALLATION, AND/OR RESTORATIONS ON THIS PROJECT.

10. RIGHT OF WAY RESTORATION AND STREET/SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LOCAL PERMITTING AUTHORITY.

11. FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:

A.  SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER TO SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON PUBLIC STREETS AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B.  FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS, SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

C. FORTY-TWO (42") IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

D. TWELVE (12") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS,

  E,    TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S) BEING CROSSED, AND

  F.     AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICAL UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 

1

2

') FEET FROM ALL OTHER      UTILITIES.

(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN INDIVIDUAL PLAN VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET OF THE PLAN SET.)

  12.  FOR ALL DITCHLINES AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS, ALL CABLES SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DITCHLINES AND PRIVATE DRIVEWAYS.

13. INNERDUCTS CONTAINING CABLE SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION POINTS USING RUBBER PLUGS AND COMPRESSION BANDS.  VACANT INNERDUCTS OR CONDUIT RUNS SHALL BE SEALED AT TERMINATION  POINTS WITH RUBBER PLUGS EQUIPPED WITH A PULL LINE ATTACHMENT RING ON

WHICH TO TERMINATE THE PULL LINE.  APPROPRIATE SEALANT COMPOUND SHALL BE USED TO SEAL ANY GAPS.

14. WHEN PLOWING/TRENCHING FOR PLACEMENT OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION, A MARKER TAPE SHALL BE PLACED EIGHTEEN (18")  INCHES BELOW EXISTING SURFACE OR BELOW PROPOSED FINISH GRADE WHICHEVER IS APPLICABLE, DIRECTLY IN VERTICAL LINE

ABOVE THE FIBER OPTIC CABLE OR DUCT OR ANY OTHER INSTALLATION BEING PLACED AT THE MINIMUM DEPTH OR FORTY-TWO (42") INCHES.

  15. BRUSHING AND TRIMMING SHALL BE DONE AS REQUIRED.  BRUSH, BRANCHES, AND REFUSE FROM CLEARING OPERATIONS SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY REMOVED FROM THE VICINITY OF THE RIGHT OF WAY.

16. IOWA STATE LAW  REQUIRES EXCAVATORS TO NOTIFY IOWA ONE-CALL AT LEAST FORTY-EIGHT (48 HRS) HOURS PRIOR TO ALL EXCAVATIONS (EXCLUDING SATURDAYS, SUNDAYS, AND LEGAL HOLIDAYS). CONTRACTOR SHALL CAREFULLY HAND DIG WITHIN THE TWENTY-FOUR (24") INCH SAFETY

ZONE WHEN EXPOSING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.  IOWA ONE-CALL DOES NOT MARK ALL PRIVATE UTILITIES.

17. CONTACTS FOR THIS PROJECT:

PERMIT AUTHORITIES AND UTILITIES:

IOWA ONE-CALL(1-800-292-8989) (811 LOCAL ACCESS)

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (I.D.O.T.)

CONSTRUCTION COORDINATOR

(NA  - NAME, PHONE#)

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS (1-319-272-8600)

(MATTHEW TOLAN (319)368-5164 OR DAVID WICKE (319)268-5162)

CEDAR FALLS UTIL., ELECTRIC(C.F.U.)(1-319-266-1761)

JOHN OSTERHAUS

CEDAR FALLS UTIL., WATER & GAS(C.F.U.)(1-319-266-1761)

JERALD LUKENSMEYER

OTHER:

WINDSTREAM CONTACTS

WINDSTREAM CONSTRUCTION COORDINATOR

(STEPHEN KNESS 1-319-790-7678)

18. BACKFILL COMPACTION FOR ALL AREAS EXCAVATED SHALL BE AS PER THE CURRENT IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS)  AND THE CURRENT CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS TO THE (SUDAS)

 SPECIFICATIONS AS FOLLOWS:  USE NO MORE THAN EIGHT(8") INCH THICK LIFTS FOR BACKFILL AREAS MORE THAN THREE (3') FEET BELOW THE BOTTOM OF PAVEMENT.  USE NO MORE THAN 6 INCH THICK LIFTS FOR BACKFILL AREAS LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO THREE (3') FEET BELOW THE BOTTOM

OF PAVEMENT.  COMPACTION TO AT LEAST NINETY-FIVE (95%) PERCENT OF STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY WITHIN RIGHT-OF-WAY.  OBTAIN REQUIRED COMPACTION WITHIN A SOIL MOISTURE RANGE OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE TO FOUR (4%) PERCENT ABOVE OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT.  IN

AREAS TO REMAIN UNPAVED, TERMINATE BACKFILL MATERIAL EIGHT (8") INCHES BELOW FINISHED GRADE.  USE TOPSOIL FOR THE FINAL EIGHT (8")INCHES ABOVE BACKFILL MATERIAL.

19. SENDING AND RECEIVING PIT AREAS SHALL BE RESTORED TO CONDITIONS EXISTING BEFORE CONSTRUCTION.  SEED WITH AN APPROVED IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS(SUDAS) SEED MIX.

20. PROTECTIVE BARRICADE FENCING SHALL BE IN PLACE AT HAZARDS TO THE PUBLIC WHEN WORKERS ARE NOT PRESENT. TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PROTECTION SHALL BE UTILIZED AT ALL TIMES IN CONFORMANCE WITH IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS OR AS MODIFIED PER

THE CITY ENGINEER OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALL, IOWA.

21. AERIAL INSTALLATION OF UTILITY SERVICES WITHIN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED.

PLAN NOTES:

154

Item 17.



ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMA1:50

707402475

CDFLIA

06 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

NOTE(TRANSITION OF OVERLASH TO

UNDERGROUND): ON PLAN SETS

SUBMITTALS THAT DEPICT BOTH

PROPOSED UNDERGROUND AND

OVERHEAD INSTALLATIONS WITH ALL

STARTING POINTS AND ALL ENDING

POINTS FULLY SHOWN AND DESCRIBED,

CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF ALL

UNDERGROUND WORK CAN BE GIVEN BY

THE CITY ENGINEERING DIVISION AFTER

REVIEW ITEMS RELATING TO

UNDERGROUND INSTALLATION ONLY,

ARE PROPERLY ADDRESSED EXCLUDING

TRANSITION OF OVERLASH OR ABOVE

GROUND INSTALLATIONS ON POLES IS

AT THE DISCRETION OF CEDAR FALLS

UTILITIES (CFU).  SUBMIT A POLE STUDY

TO CFU FOR ADDITIONAL LOADING.

CONTACT JOHN OSTERHAUS AT THE

CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES (CFU) ELECTRIC

DIVISION AT (319)268-5298.

WS-48

FOC

WS-48 FOC

155

Item 17.



ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

07 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

TRAFFIC CONTROLPLAN (TCP) NOTES

1. TRAFFIC CONTROL CONFORMING TO CURRENT IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION(I.D.O.T.) AND

THE CURRENT MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES(M.U.T.C.D.) SHALL BE CONTRACTOR'S

RESPONSIBILITY.

2. TRAFFIC CONTROL CONFORMING TO CURRENT IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION(I.D.O.T.) AND

THE CURRENT MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES(M.U.T.C.D.) SHALL BE CONTRACTOR'S

RESPONSIBILITY.

3.THE FOLLOWING SPECIAL PROVISIONS SHALL APPLY TO TRAFFIC REGULATIONS DURING THE ENTIRE EXTENT

OF THE PROJECT WORK:

A. THERE SHALL BE AT ALL TIMES ADEQUATE VEHICLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS

FOR THE PROPERTIES ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT WORK.

B. DURING NON-WORKING HOURS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL KEEP THE EXISTING TRAFFIC LANES CLEAR FROM

INTERFERENCE, INCLUDING ALL APPROACHES AND INTERSECTIONS.

C. IF LANE BLOCKAGE IS UNAVOIDABLE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE CITY TRAFFIC ENGNEERING

DEPARTMENT, POLICE DEPARTMENT, FIRE DEPARTMENT, AMBULANCE SERVICES, SCHOOL BUS GARAGES, AND

ALL OTHER AGENCIES OPERATIONS AS APPROPRIATE SO THAT THESE AGENCIES MAY PLAN TO RE ROUTE THEIR

VEHICLES AROUND THE CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE(S).

4. THE CONTRACTOR, TH CONSTRUCTION, WINDSTREAM'S INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME THE

ROLE OF TRAFFIC CONTROL SUPERVISOR(TCS).

5. IF THE UTILITY WORK INSTALLATION DEVIATES FROM THE PLAN SET DESIGN, THE TRAFFIC CONTROL

SUPERVISOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING WITH THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS ENGINEERING DIVISION

AND THE WINDSTREAM ENGINEER, STEPHEN KNESS, THAT TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN CHANGES ARE NOT REQUIRED

FOR MAXIMUM SAFETY FOR WORKERS AND THE PUBLIC.

6. WHERE HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS EXIST, PROPER SIGNING, FLAGGING, AND BARRICADING SHALL BE

PROVIDED AS DIRECTED BY THE WINDSTREAM ENGINEER OR THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER.

SUPPLEMENTAL SIGNS, FLAG PERSON(S) AND BARRICADES SHALL BE PROVIDED BY THE CONTRACTOR. NO

TRENCH OR EXCAVATION SIDE SHALL BE LEFT UNATTENDED, AT ANY TIME, OR OPEN OVERNIGHT. ALL

EXCAVATION SHALL BE FENCED AND COVERED WHEN THE INSTALLATION CONTRACTOR IS NOT PRESENT.

GENERAL NOTES

1. CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFIRM TO THE CURRENT STATEWIDE

URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS) PROGRAM, INCLUDING ALL LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL SUPLEMENTAL

SPECIFICATIONS AND CEDAR FALLS SPECIFICATIONS IN EFFECT WITHIN THE APPLICABLE JURISDICTION. ALL

AREAS WHERE WORK IS PERFORMED OR AFFECTED BY THE WORK SHALL BE RETURN TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO

BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION

WHETHER ALL "RETURNED CONDITIONS" ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL(AND ACCEPTABLE).

2.CONTRACTOR PRACTICES AND ALL FINISHED WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL CURRENT STANDARD DRAWINGS PER

NOTE NUMBER 1. AND ALL OTHER STANDARD DRAWINGS PER THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA.

3. THE APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF KNOWN CABLES AND UTILITIES ARE ARE INDICATED ON THE PLANS.

ALL CABLES AND AND UTILITIES MAY NOT BE SHOWN. PRIOR TO BEGINNING ANY WORK ALL CONTRACTORS

SHALL HAVE CONTACTED ONE CALL TO LOCATE TELEPHONE, GAS, WATER, SEWER, COMMUNICATION,

LIGHTING LINES AND OTHER CABLES/UTILITIES WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION SITE. UNDERGROUND

UTILITIES,  SHOWN OR NOT, WILL BE LOCATED AND FLAGGED BY THE OWNER OF THE UTILITY

UPON THE REQUEST OF THE CONTRACTOR. NO EXCAVATION WILL BE PERMITTED IN THE AREA OF THE

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES UNTIL ALL SUCH FACILITIES HAVE BEEN LOCATED AND IDENTIFIED TO

SATISFACTION OF ALL PARTIES. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PROTECTION OF

ALL UNDERGROUND AND AERIAL UTILITIES AND CONSTRUCTION.

4.DIMENSIONS SHOWN ON THE PLAN SHEETS ARE ONLY ESTIMATIONS BY THE PEARCE SERVICES "FIELD

ENGINEER", TROY OZBUN, AND PEARCE SERVICES TECHNICIAN, GENNIFER HANKINS AND RACHITA SHARMA.

THE CONTRACTOR'S BID SHALL INCLUDE VERIFYING EXACT DIMENSIONS.

5.FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE

PLACED AT A MINIMUM DEPTH OF:

A. SIXTY(60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX (6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER TO SIX(6") ABOVE STREET GUTTER

ON PUBLIC STREETS AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B. FORTY EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS, RECREATIONAL TRAILS, SIDEWALKS, AND

LONGITUDINAL RURAL DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

C. FORTY TWO(42")INCHES IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTIONS, PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

D. TWELVE (12") BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITUDINAL SUBDRAINS,

E. TWENTY FOUR(24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS, PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND /OR

PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S) BEING CROSSED, AND

F. AT A MINIMUM CLEARENCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM ELECTRICAL UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF(1

1

2

') FEET

FROM ALL OTHER UTILITIES.

6. ALL POTHOLES IN SIDEWALK SHALL BE REPLACED WITH FULL PANEL REPLACEMENT CONSTRUCTION.

7. MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS SUCH AS SIGN POSTS, MAIL BOXES, METER BOX, ETC., SHALL BE AVOIDED OR

REMOVED AND REINSTALLED TO A CONDITION EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THEIR ORIGINAL CONDITION. THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER

WILL GIVE FINAL DETERMINATION WHETHER  ALL RETURNED CONDITIONS ARE EQUAL TO OR BETTER THAN THE ORIGINAL. EXISTING PAVEMENTS, TURF,

ROADS, CABLES, UTILITIES, AND INCIDENTALS THAT ARE DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR BY NO COST OF OWNER.

8. EXCAVATIONS THAT WILL BE OCCUPIED BY PERSONNEL SHALL BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA) CONSTRUCTION STANDARD-29 CFR PART 1926,

SUBPART P-EXCAVATIONS OSHA STATES THAT A SOIL SHALL BE RECLASSIFICATION CHANGE IN ANY WAY.

SHEET PILING AND OR SHORING WILL BE NECESSARY IF THE SIDES OF THE EXCAVATION CANNOT

BE SLOPED TO MEET OSHA REGULATIONS.

9. WHEN ANY CONFLICT(S) ARE IDENTIFIED DURING CONSTRUCTION WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ADVISE THE CEDAR FALLS CITY ENGINEER

AND THE WINDSTREAM ENGINEER, STEPHEN KNESS

10. CONSTRUCTION VEHICLES MUST HAVE COMPANY NAME AND CONTACT INFORMATION DISPLAYED.

11. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTIFICATION TO PROPERTY OWNERS PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

12. RIGHT OF WAY RESTORATION AND STREET/SIDEWALK REPAIR/REPLACEMENT SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LOCAL PERMITTING

AUTHORITY. ANY SIDEWALK REMOVED SHALL BECOME A PRIORITY TO BE REPLACED PER ALL THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS SIDEWALK PERMIT

REQUIREMENTS AND GUIDELINES.

FOR ALL PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AND PUBLIC PROPERTIES; ALL

CONDUITS AND FIBER OPTIC CABLE SHALL BE PLACED AT A MINIMUM

DEPTH OF:

A) SIXTY (60") INCHES BELOW A LINE FROM SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE

STREET GUTTER TO SIX(6") INCHES ABOVE STREET GUTTER ON

PUBLIC STREETS AND FOR ALLEYS, BELOW THE CROSS SECTION

LOW POINT OF ALLEYS, FOR THE ENTIRE ALLEY WIDTH,

B) FORTY-EIGHT (48") INCHES BELOW ALL DRIVEWAYS,

RECREATIONAL TRAILS, SIDEWALKS, AND LONGITUDINAL RURAL

DITCH LINES IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY,

C) FORTY-TWO (42") IN THE GRASSED, SUBURBAN SECTION, PUBLIC

RIGHT OF WAY,

D) TWELVE (12") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STREET LONGITDINAL

SUBDRAINS,

E) TWENTY FOUR (24") INCHES BELOW PUBLIC STORM SEWERS,

PUBLIC CULVERTS, AND/OR PUBLIC WATERWAY FLOW LINE(S)

BEING CROSSED, AND

F) AT A MINIMUM CLEARANCE DISTANCE OF TWO (2') FEET FROM

ELECTRICAL UTILITIES AND ONE AND ONE HALF (1 

1

2

') FEET FROM

ALL OTHER UTILITIES.

(ALL DIMENSIONS APPLY, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED ON AN

INDIVIDUAL PLAN VIEW, INDIVIDUAL PLAN AND PROFILE VIEW 

OR INDIVIDUAL PROFILE VIEW SHEET OF THE PLAN SET.)

156

Item 17.



STANDARD BORE DETAILS OF THE

TELCO  PLACEMENT

STANDARD TRENCH DETAILS OF THE

TELCO PLACEMENT

TYPICAL STORM SEWER CROSSING

STORM SEWER

M
I
N

 
2
'
 
V

E
R

T
I
C

A
L

C
L
E

A
R

E
N

C
E

PIPE DIA

UNDERGROUND CROSSING UTILITY

367'

4
8
"
 
M

I
N

C
L
E

A
R

E
N

C
E

3
6
"
 
M

I
N

C
L
E

A
R

E
N

C
E

PLACE CABLE IN A DUCTPLACE CABLE IN A DUCT

EXISTING

GRADE

EXISTING

GRADE

ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

08 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

157

Item 17.



ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

09 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

STOP SIGN

GRAVEL

W
E

S
T

 
1
2
T

H
 
S

T

RECREATIONAL

PLANS

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN A

MINIMUM 2' HORIZONTAL CLEARANCE

BETWEEN POLES AND EDGE OF TRAIL.

158

Item 17.



Notes for Figure 6H-3—Typical Application 3

Work on the Shoulders

Guidance:

1. A SHOULDER WORK sign should be placed on the left side of the roadway for a divided or

one-way

street only if the left shoulder is affected.

Option:

2. The Workers symbol signs may be used instead of SHOULDER WORK signs.

3. The SHOULDER WORK AHEAD sign on an intersecting roadway may be omitted where drivers

emerging from that roadway will encounter another advance warning sign prior to this activity area.

4. For short duration operations of 60 minutes or less, all signs and channelizing devices may be

eliminated

if a vehicle with activated high-intensity rotating, flashing, oscillating, or strobe lights is used.

5. Vehicle hazard warning signals may be used to supplement high-intensity rotating, flashing,

oscillating,

or strobe lights.

Standard:

6. Vehicle hazard warning signals shall not be used instead of the vehicle’s high-intensity rotating,

flashing, oscillating, or strobe lights.

7. When paved shoulders having a width of 8 feet or more are closed, at least one advance warning

sign shall be used. In addition, channelizing devices shall be used to close the shoulder in advance

to delineate the beginning of the work space and direct vehicular traffic to remain within the

traveled way.

ENGINEER:

SHEET:       

PROJECT:

FIELD ENGINEER:

PEARCE SERVICES

PEARCE SERVICES

WINDSTREAM - 

DRAWN BY:

SCALE:

EXCHANGE:

DATE:

STEPHEN KNESS

TROY OZBUN

RACHITA SHARMANTS

707402475

CDFLIA

10 OF 10 07/15/2021

ADDRESS: W 12TH ST & UNION RD, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IA

PERMIT REQUIED- CITY

LOCATE ALL FACILITIES PRIOR TO DIGGING

IA - IOWA ONE CALL - 811 - 1-800-292-898

159

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
  City Project Number: SA-002-3182 
  Temporary Easement 
 
The City of Cedar Falls has completed the final design of the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer 
Repair Project. With the installation of a new sanitary sewer pump station, one (1) 
additional acquisition was necessary for the right-of-way needs. The project will require 
the acquisition of one (1) additional temporary from a total of 9 properties to complete the 
repairs. 
 
The owner of the following property has accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

122 Tahseen & Shameem Husain 2915 Minnetonka Drive Temporary 

 
The City will use Sewer Rental Funds for the design and right of way portion of this 
project.  
 
Staff recommends that the City Council state their support in the form of a resolution 
approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the 
Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

160

Item 18.



161

Item 18.



162

Item 18.



163

Item 18.



164

Item 18.



165

Item 18.



166

Item 18.



167

Item 18.



168

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 17, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition 
  Final Acceptance of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 454 – 3258 
 
Construction work has been completed on the public improvements in the Wild Horse 
Ridge Fifth Addition. The project was designed by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 
and has been completed in accordance with the project plans and the City of Cedar 
Falls Standard Specifications. The project was inspected by the City of Cedar Falls 
Engineering Division. 
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed and approved the project plans and 
specifications, inspected the project through the construction process; and has received 
and reviewed the project reports and certifications. The project documentation is in 
order and the project is complete and ready for City Council acceptance. Attached are 
copies of the Maintenance Bonds from the developer, Midwest Development, and the 
Final Plat for the Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition. 
 
The Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition has been constructed in reasonable compliance 
with the project plans and specifications. The Engineering Division recommends that the 
City Council approve and accept the public improvements for the Wild Horse Ridge Fifth 
Addition.  
 
 
__________________________________________January 9, 2023     __ 
Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II                    Date 
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
      David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 

169

Item 19.



EXHIBIT A

170

Item 19.

trs246
Travis Stewart

trs246
Text Box
7-20-2022



EXHIBIT A

171

Item 19.



EXHIBIT A

172

Item 19.



EXHIBIT A

173

Item 19.



174

Item 19.



175

Item 19.



176

Item 19.



177

Item 19.



178

Item 19.



179

Item 19.



180

Item 19.



181

Item 19.



182

Item 19.



183

Item 19.



184

Item 19.



185

Item 19.



186

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 17, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition 
  Final Acceptance of Improvements 
  Project No. SU – 454 – 3258 
 
Construction work has been completed on the public improvements in the Wild Horse 
Ridge Sixth Addition. The project was designed by Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc. 
and has been completed in accordance with the project plans and the City of Cedar 
Falls Standard Specifications. The project was inspected by the City of Cedar Falls 
Engineering Division. 
 
The Engineering Division has reviewed and approved the project plans and 
specifications, inspected the project through the construction process; and has received 
and reviewed the project reports and certifications. The project documentation is in 
order and the project is complete and ready for City Council acceptance. Attached are 
copies of the Maintenance Bonds from the developer, Midwest Development, and the 
Final Plat for the Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition. 
 
The Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition has been constructed in reasonable compliance 
with the project plans and specifications. The Engineering Division recommends that the 
City Council approve and accept the public improvements for the Wild Horse Ridge 
Sixth Addition.  
 
 
__________________________________________January 9, 2023     __ 
Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II                    Date 
 
 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works  
      David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 

187

Item 20.



188

Item 20.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

1213

14 15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

NE CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14

FND RAILROAD SPIKE
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

E 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14

FND 1/2" REBAR IN MONUMENT BOX

CENTER
SECTION 16-89-14
FND PINCHED PIPE

N 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 16-89-14
FND 5/8" REBAR

POINT OF
BEGINNING

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

2652.79'
S89°18'39"E

26
49

.3
1'

S
0°

00
'0

9"
E

2658.44'
N89°20'45"W

26
50

.8
8'

N
0°

07
'1

3"
E

12
12

.5
7'

N
0°

41
'2

1"
E

1363.93'
N89°18'39"W

1288.86'
S89°18'39"E

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

2 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

300'0

SCALE 1"=300'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 2.dwg - Sheet 2 -  11-17-22 - 7:33am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

DESCRIPTION
A CERTAIN PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN PART OF PARCEL "C" AND IN PART OF PARCEL "D" OF A PLAT OF SURVEY FILED ON DOCUMENT
NO. 2016-00015368 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY AND BEING PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHEAST 1/4 AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 IN SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH
P.M., IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE
14 WEST OF THE 5TH P.M.; THENCE, N89°18'39"W 1363.93' ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 16; THENCE,
S0°41'21"W 1212.57' TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 15 OF WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, RECORDED ON DOCUMENT
NO. 2023-00006880 IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY; THENCE, S45°25'18"W 35.57' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY
LINE OF SAID LOT 15, SAID POINT ALSO BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE, S45°25'18"W 55.85' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE
OF SAID LOT 15 TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 14 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION; THENCE, S39°26'18W 93.50'
ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 14 TO THE NORTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 13 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH
ADDITION; THENCE, S36°16'01"W 368.69' ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF LOTS 13, 12, 11 AND 10 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH
ADDITION TO THE SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OF LOT 10 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE
NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF WILD HORSE DRIVE; THENCE, NORTHWESTERLY 16.95' ALONG A 270.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE
NORTHEASTERLY HAVING A CHORD BEARING N58°42'40"W AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 16.94' ALONG THE NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF SAID WILD HORSE DRIVE; THENCE, S33°05'13"W 225.59' ALONG A WESTERLY LINE OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION
TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 9 OF SAID WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION, SAID POINT ALSO BEING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY
LINE OF TRACT "A" OF WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION AS RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. 2008-00021274 IN THE OFFICE OF THE
RECORDER, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA; THENCE, N60°06'20"W 44.07' ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY LINE; THENCE, N43°50'08"W 149.78';
THENCE, N30°12'30"W 295.00'; THENCE, N48°53'51"W 75.07'; THENCE, N89°21'04"W 145.14'. THE AFORESAID ALL BEING ALONG SAID
NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF TRACT "A"; THENCE, N0°39'15"E 220.00'; THENCE, S89°20'45"E 25.17'; THENCE, N0°07'18"E 140.00'; THENCE,
S89°20'56"E 191.39'; THENCE, S68°37'20"E 65.82'; THENCE, S53°43'59"E 295.00'; THENCE, N36°16'01"E 258.05'; THENCE, S50°37'48"E 136.34';
THENCE, NORTHEASTERLY 12.95' ALONG THE ARC OF A 780.00' RADIUS CURVE, CONCAVE SOUTHEASTERLY ,HAVING A CHORD BEARING
OF N39°50'43"E AND A CHORD DISTANCE OF 12.95'; THENCE, S49°40'44"E 212.64' TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 9.36 ACRES
INCLUDING 1.99 ACRES OF ROAD RIGHT OF WAY.  SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, IF ANY.

189

Item 20.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE SECOND ADDITION INSTR #2013-00005774

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 12TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLAIR RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKY RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED INSTR #2021-00007865

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED DOC #556-687

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FOURTH ADDITION INSTR #2020-00008475

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #000000

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE THIRD ADDITION INSTR #2018-00007259

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
SE1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOB CIRCLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE



105.00' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

80.13'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

100.25'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

POINT OF
BEGINNING

SH
EE

T 
4

LOT 1
11283 SF
0.26 AC

C1

N53°43'59"W

144.32'

LOT 2
11089 SF
0.25 AC

78
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

144.32'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 3
10920 SF
0.25 AC

78
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 4
11480 SF
0.26 AC

82
.00

'

82
.00

'N53°43'59"W

140.00'83
.46

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 6
16923 SF
0.39 AC

C3

C2

C4

C5

LOT 8
19388 SF
0.45 AC

105.00'

LOT 9
17848 SF
0.41 AC

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

C6

LOT 16
16710 SF
0.38 AC

100.00'

C12

LOT 18
18391 SF
0.42 AC

S53°43'59"E135.00'

C15

LOT 19
10260 SF
0.24 AC

53
.70

'

22
.30

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'
S53°43'59"E135.00'

LOT 20
10260 SF
0.24 AC

76
.00

' S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

LOT 21
10530 SF
0.24 AC

78
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

78
.00

'

LOT 22
10558 SF
0.24 AC

81
.75

'

C1
6

LOT 17
19197 SF
0.44 AC

C1
3

N3
6°

16
'01

"E
11

6.7
6'

C14

S68°37'20"E

295.00'

S53°43'59"E

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

11
9.1

9'

25
8.

05
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

135.00'
22

.30
'

136.34'

S50°37'48"E

C17

212.64'

S49°40'44"E

55
.85

'

S45
°2

5'1
8"W

93
.5

0'

S3
9°

26
'18

"W

36
8.

69
'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

152.64'

L1

78
.00

'

83
.46

'

C18

12
5.2

3'

22
5.

59
'

S3
3°

05
'13

"W

44.07'
N60°06'20"W

149.78'

N43°50'08"W

N
30°12'30"W

78
.12

'

  S
36

°1
6'0

1"
W

  3
92

.0
8'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W
  4

39
.4

1'

N
30°12'31"W

  213.08'

S30°12'31"E  109.09'

C19

41.19'

16
5.5

9'

10
9.3

2'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

12
9.9

4'

32
.14

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

30
.38

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

16
3.

02
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

60.00'

60
.0

0'

60.00'

66.89'

TR
ACT 

"A
"

86
,76

1 S
F

1.9
9 A

C

SH
EE

T 
3

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM
'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

L4

50'R
TURNAROUND
EASEMENT (TYP)

LOT 5
11684 SF
0.27 AC

87
.58

'

M
AT

CH L
IN

E

LOT 7
19951 SF
0.46 AC

LOT 10
17608 SF
0.40 AC

C7

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

295.00'

49.53'

Curve Table

CURVE DATA

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

C12

C13

C14

ARC LENGTH

50.95'

30.61'

125.41'

95.58'

58.23'

48.99'

144.60'

139.65'

17.64'

74.24'

90.63'

21.44'

22.25'

125.86'

RADIUS

720.00'

25.00'

270.00'

330.00'

330.00'

321.82'

320.00'

320.00'

380.00'

380.00'

380.00'

15.00'

15.00'

380.40'

DELTA ANGLE

4°03'15"

70°09'44"

26°36'50"

16°35'39"

10°06'37"

8°43'17"

25°53'27"

25°00'17"

2°39'34"

11°11'38"

13°39'55"

81°54'21"

85°00'23"

18°57'23"

CHORD BEARING

S38°17'38"W

S1°11'09"W

S47°12'08"E

S48°36'58"E

S35°15'50"E

N34°04'52"W

N51°23'45"W

N76°50'37"W

N88°00'59"W

N81°05'23"W

N68°39'36"W

N77°13'11"E

S6°14'11"E

N39°15'23"W

CHORD

50.94'

28.74'

124.29'

95.24'

58.16'

48.94'

143.37'

138.55'

17.64'

74.12'

90.42'

19.66'

20.27'

125.28'

Curve Table

CURVE DATA

C15

C16

C17

C18

C19

C20

C21

ARC LENGTH

49.53'

42.25'

12.95'

16.95'

153.81'

333.24'

182.51'

RADIUS

25.00'

780.00'

780.00'

270.00'

330.00'

320.05'

380.00'

DELTA ANGLE

113°31'28"

3°06'12"

0°57'05"

3°35'46"

26°42'16"

59°39'25"

27°31'07"

CHORD BEARING

S86°58'15"E

S37°49'06"W

N39°50'43"E

N58°42'40"W

S43°33'39"E

N59°30'54"W

N75°35'12"W

CHORD

41.82'

42.24'

12.95'

16.94'

152.42'

318.39'

180.76'

LINE DATA

LINE NUMBER

L1

L2

L3

L4

BEARING

S39°26'18"W

S89°20'45"E

S89°20'45"E

S45°25'18"W

DISTANCE

15.38'

4.02'

25.17'

35.57'

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

3 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

80'0

SCALE 1"=80'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 3.dwg - Sheet 3 -  11-17-22 - 7:34am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

190

Item 20.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRANITE RIDGE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #000000

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIFTH ADDITION INSTR #2023-00006880

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHILIP E KENEALY AND COLEEN A KENEALY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368



105.00' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

80.13'

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

91.58' N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

100.25'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

94.30' 97.09'
BOUNDARY LINE BETWEEN
PARCEL "C" AND PARCEL "D"

SH
EE

T 
4

82
.00

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'83
.46

'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

LOT 6
16923 SF
0.39 AC

C3

C2

C4

C5

LOT 8
19388 SF
0.45 AC

105.00'

LOT 9
17848 SF
0.41 AC

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

C6

C8

55.14'

N0
°3

9'
15

"E

16
0.

00
'LOT 13

14400 SF
0.33 AC

90.00'

S3
°1

8'
49

"W

14
0.

56
'

C9 C10

S2
4°

23
'19

"W

15
2.

20
'

LOT 16
16710 SF
0.38 AC

C11

100.00'

C12

LOT 18
18391 SF
0.42 AC

S53°43'59"E135.00'

C15

LOT 19
10260 SF
0.24 AC

53
.70

'

22
.30

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

LOT 20
10260 SF
0.24 AC

76
.00

' S53°43'59"E135.00'

76
.00

'

LOT 21
10530 SF
0.24 AC

78
.00

'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

78
.00

'

LOT 22
10558 SF
0.24 AC

81
.75

'

LOT 17
19197 SF
0.44 AC

C1
3

N3
6°

16
'01

"E
11

6.7
6'

C14

191.39'
S89°20'56"E

65.82'

S68°37'20"E

295.00'

S53°43'59"E

32.68'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W

11
9.1

9'

25
8.

05
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

135.00'

22
.30

'

C18

12
5.2

3'

22
5.

59
'

S3
3°

05
'13

"W

44.07'
N60°06'20"W

149.78'

N43°50'08"W

N
30°12'30"W

75.07'

N48°53'51"W

145.14'
N89°21'04"W

22.11'

22
0.

00
'

N
0°

39
'1

5"
E

90.00'

L3

14
0.

00
'

N
0°

07
'1

8"
E

LOT 14
12658 SF
0.29 AC

LOT 15
14947 SF
0.34 AC

33.15'

  S
36

°1
6'0

1"
W

  3
92

.0
8'

S3
6°

16
'01

"W
  4

39
.4

1'

N
30°12'31"W

  213.08'

S30°12'31"E  109.09'

C19

41.19'

16
5.5

9'

10
9.3

2'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

12
9.9

4'

S53°43'59"E135.00'

N53°43'59"W

140.00'

16
3.

02
'

N36
°1

6'0
1"

E

60
.0

0'

60.00'

60
.0

0'

94.02'
S89°20'45"E

94.02'
S89°20'45"E

N0
°3

9'
15

"E

16
0.

00
'

16
0.

00
'

C20

C21

S2
4°

23
'19

"W

15
2.

20
'

S3
°1

8'
49

"W

14
0.

56
'

68.85'

66.89'

L2

TR
ACT 

"A
"

86
,76

1 S
F

1.9
9 A

C

SH
EE

T 
3

10.00' PUE (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25
' B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LIN
E

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

25' BUILDING LINE

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

10
.0

0' 
PU

E 
(T

YP
)

10.00' PUE (TY
P)

20.00' DRAINAGE ESM
'T (TYP)

10.00'

10.00'

50'R
TURNAROUND
EASEMENT (TYP)

LOT 5
11684 SF
0.27 AC

87
.58

'

M
AT

CH L
IN

E

MATCH LINE
SHEET 4

SHEET 3

LOT 12
17185 SF
0.39 AC

LOT 7
19951 SF
0.46 AC

LOT 10
17608 SF
0.40 AC

LOT 11
17661 SF
0.41 AC

18.29'

C7

N59°47'29"E

169.98'

N2
5°

39
'32

"E
15

9.
26

'

N51°32'58"E

168.41'

N49°40'52"E

166.02'

295.00'

49.53'

52.96'

N

CAQ

7-5-2022 5805.05

4 OF 4
PROJECT NO.DATE

DRAWN SHEET NO.

80'0

SCALE 1"=80'

J:\5805\dwgs\Survey\Final Plat\Final Plat Sixth Addition\5805 Final Plat  Sixth Addition Sheet 3.dwg - Sheet 4 -  11-17-22 - 7:34am - caq288

CGA
16 East Main Street

Marshalltown, Iowa 50158
Ph 641-752-6701

www.cgaconsultants.com

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc

FINAL PLAT
WILD HORSE RIDGE SIXTH ADDITION

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

191

Item 20.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SONOMA DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE FIRST ADDITION INSTR #2008-00021274

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NW1/4 NE1/4 SEC. 16-89-14

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEBBLE STONE PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "C" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
WILD HORSE RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D" INSTR #2016-00015368

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWEST DEVELOPMENT COMPANY



192

Item 20.



193

Item 20.



194

Item 20.



195

Item 20.



196

Item 20.



197

Item 20.



198

Item 20.



199

Item 20.



200

Item 20.



201

Item 20.



202

Item 20.



203

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: January 5, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Warranty Deed 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4-lane roadway to a 3-lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project required partial acquisition for new city ROW from nine (9) 
properties. In addition, two (2) total take acquisitions were required to accommodate the 
new roundabout at the 12th/Main intersection. The City has closed on the following 
acquisition: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

124 St. Patrick’s Church 705 Main Street Partial 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the warranty deed for 
this property acquisition. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

204

Item 21.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

205

Item 21.

AndreasenL
Line



206

Item 21.



207

Item 21.



208

Item 21.



209

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: January 6, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Various Intersection Improvements  
  City Project Number: TS-000-3294 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the Various intersection improvements. 
 

We recommend setting Monday, February 6, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time for 
the public hearing on this project. This project is under the direction of the City of Cedar 
Falls.  
 

This project consists of improvements at three city intersections. A new traffic signal at 
Hudson/Ridgeway, and landscaping improvements in the roundabout intersections at 
Prairie Parkway/Prairie View Road and Prairie Parkway/Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 

The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $724,625.00. There is a 
$40,000 private contribution for the roundabout landscaping in this project. The 
remaining funds will be provided by General Obligation Bonds, Local Sales Tax, Street 
Construction Fund, and Tax increment Financing. 
 

The electronic plans, specifications, and estimate are available upon request for your 
review at the City Clerk’s Office. The Engineering Division of the Public Works 
Department recommends approving the plans, specifications, and estimate. 
 
xc: David Wicke, P.E., City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

210

Item 22.



1 

 
PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS 

FOR 
HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE 

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Project TS-000-3294 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION 

 

 
I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 
________________________________________ Date: 01/03/23 
Patrick D.Schwickerath, P.E.   Iowa License No. P18652 
My license renewal date is December 31, 2023 
 
Pages or sheets covered by this seal: 1-34. 

 

 
 
  

211

Item 22.



2 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
    Page Number 
 
TITLE SHEET  1 
 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-3 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5-7 
 
DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders 
 

00 Pre-Bid Meeting 8 
01 Definition and Terms 8 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 8-9 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 9 
04 Taxes  10 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 10 
Form of Proposal 11-13 
Bid Bond  14 
Bidder Status Form 15 
Authorization to transact business 16 
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 17 
Form of Contract 18-19 
Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 20-23 
Notice to Proceed 24 

 
DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

01 Award of Contract 25 
02 Availability of Site 25 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 25 
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 26 
05 Contract Time 26 
06 Work Progress and Schedule 26 
07 Weekly record of Calendar Days 26 
08 Liquidated Damages 26 
09 Progress Payments and Vouchers 27 
10 Pollution Prevention Plan 27-28 
11 Method of Measurement 29 
12 Basis of Payment 29 
 

  

212

Item 22.



3 

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications 

 
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2022 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the 
City’s Standard Specification. 
 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS Statewide Urban Design and 
Specifications Program. Water main installation shall be per Municipal Water Utility 
of the City of Cedar Falls Water Main Materials and Installation of Water Mains 
and their Appurtenances Standards as approved and amended February 14, 2020. 

 

 Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
 www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  30 
 
DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 31-34 
 
 

213

Item 22.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


4 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, 
FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE  
HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 
TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER 
PERSONS INTERESTED: 
 

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

Total Cost for the construction of the HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE 

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 6th day of February 

2023, said meeting to be held in the Council Chambers in the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated Total Cost are now 

on file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be 

inspected by any persons interested. 

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement. 

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    By: _______________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC  

City Clerk 

214

Item 22.



5 

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Time and Place of Pre-bid Meeting: There will NOT be a pre-bid meeting. 
 
Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Proposals will only be accepted electronically on the 
Quest CDN website before 2:00 p.m. on the 9th day of February 2023.  
 
Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be 
publicly opened online at 2:00 p.m. on the 9th day of February 2023 at www.questcdn.com, for 
consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its meeting at 7:00 PM on the 20th day of 
February 2023 or at such later time and place as may be fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals including without limitation, nonconforming, 
nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 
 
Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed 

and shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. Contractor 
shall fully complete the project no later than September 30th, 2023.  
 
Bid Security: Bidders shall provide a bid security in the amount defined in the Instructions to 
Bidders- Division 1 Section 05. A scanned copy of the Bid Bond must be included with the online 
bid submitted at www.questcdn.com. 
 
Performance and Payment Bonds: The successful Bidder shall furnish to the City a performance 
bond in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, guaranteeing 
faithful performance of the contract and guaranteeing the completed project against defective 
workmanship and materials for a period of two (2) years from and after completion and 
acceptance by the City. The successful Bidder shall also provide a payment bond in an amount 
equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price guaranteeing payment of all persons 
supplying labor and materials, or both, in the execution of the work provided for in the contract. 
 
Contract Documents: The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN 
and www.questCDN.com . This contract is QuestCDN project number #8315726. A contractor 
may view the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To be 
considered a Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. Registering as 
a planholder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors as Planholders will 
receive automatic notice of addenda and other contract document updates via QuestCDN. 
Contact QuestCDN Customer Support at (952) 233-1632 or info@questcdn.com for assistance 
in membership registration, downloading digital project information and vBid online bid submittal 
questions. To access the electronic bid form, download the project documents and click the online 
bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page. Bids will only be received and accepted via 
the online electronic bid service through QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, 
download the project documents and click on the online bid button at the top of the bid 
advertisement page. Prospective bidders must be on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for 
bids to be accepted.  
 
Downloading electronic contract documents is strongly encouraged, but hard copies of the project 
documents may be obtained from Snyder & Associates, Inc. 5005 Bowling Street SW, Suite A 

215

Item 22.

http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.questcdn.com/
http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


6 

Cedar Rapids, IA 52404 at no cost. Those desiring to obtain hard copies must make an 
appointment to pick up the documents by calling 319.362.9394 and asking for Patricia Foote. No 
drop-ins will be allowed. 
 
If any prospective bidder is in doubt as to the true meaning of any parts of the contract documents, 
the bidder may request an interpretation from the Engineer, in writing, through email. Questions 
received less than five (5) days prior to the date for opening bids may not be answered. 
 
Contact individuals shall be as follows: 
 
Luke Anderson, PE, CFM 
City of Cedar Falls 
Department of Public Works 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, IA 50613 
Luke.Anderson@cedarfalls.com 
 
Any interpretation of the contract documents will be made in writing and only by addendum with 
online notification given to bidders. Only questions answered by Addenda will be binding. Oral 
and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal effect. Addenda may be issued to 
clarify, correct or change the contract documents as deemed advisable by the City of Cedar Falls 
or the Engineer of record.  
 
Preference for Iowa Products and Labor: By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 

to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa. 
 
In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which 
the nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a 
nonresident bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement 
in this state as would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or 
foreign country in which the nonresident bidder is a resident. 
 
Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected. 
 
Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 

Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance 
of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as 
provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 

 
  

216

Item 22.



7 

Project Description: This project generally consists of the installation of traffic signals at the 
intersection of Hudson Road and Ridgeway Avenue, and landscaping within the center median 
of two roundabouts along Prairie Parkway, at the intersections with Prairie View Road and 
Brandilynn Boulevard. 

 

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 
   CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
   BY: __________________________ 
       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
        City Clerk 

  

217

Item 22.



8 

DIVISION I – Instructions to Bidders 

 
The work comprising the HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS shall be constructed in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the SUDAS 
and as further modified by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the 
special provisions included in the contract documents. The terms used in the contract 
revision of the documents are defined in said Standard Specifications. 
 
Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements. Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents 
and to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read. 
 
00     Pre-bid Meeting 
 
There will NOT be a pre-bid meeting. 
 
01 Definition and Terms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03: 
 
Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa 
 
Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative.  
 
Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council. 
 
Project:  HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
  Project No(s). TS-000-3294 
 
02 Qualification of the Bidder 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01: 
 
To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below: 
 
The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; 
A financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a 
satisfactory manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the 
approximate contract amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts 

218

Item 22.



9 

which resulted in lawsuits; A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder 
indicating whether or not the bidder has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a 
like nature or magnitude; A list of officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm 
or the employ of previous firms, were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, 
contracts defaulted or filed for bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel 
guaranteed to be employed in responsible charge of the work stating whether the 
personnel have or have not performed satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and 
magnitude or comparable difficulty at similar rate of progress; Such additional information 
as will assist the Owner in determining whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill 
the contract. Owner’s decision as to qualifications of the bidder will be final. 
 
The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for 
an award. 
 
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02: 
 
The contract documents are available at www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN and 
www.questCDN.com.This contract is QuestCDN project number #8315726. A contractor 
may view the contract documents at no cost prior to deciding to become a Planholder. To 
be considered a Planholder for bids, a contractor must register with QuestCDN.com. 
Registering as a planholder is recommended for all prime contractors and subcontractors 
as Planholders will receive automatic notice of addenda and other contract document 
updates via QuestCDN. Contact QuestCDN Customer Support at (952) 233-1632 or 
info@questcdn.com for assistance in membership registration, downloading digital 
project information and vBid online bid submittal questions. To access the electronic bid 
form, download the project documents and click the online bid button at the top of the bid 
advertisement page. Bids will only be received and accepted via the online electronic bid 
service through QuestCDN.com. To access the electronic bid form, download the project 
documents and click on the online bid button at the top of the bid advertisement page. 
Prospective bidders must be on the Planholder list through QuestCDN for bids to be 
accepted. 
 
  

219

Item 22.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/QuestCDN
http://www.questcdn.com/
mailto:info@questcdn.com


10 

04 Taxes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08: 
 
Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be 
exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45. 
 
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12: 
 
The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including 
all add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates). The bid security shall 
be in the form of a cashier's check or certified check drawn on a state-chartered or federally 
chartered bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered 
credit union, or a bidder's bond with corporate surety satisfactory to the City. The bid bond 
must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are 
acceptable. All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) 
of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable. Bid security other than said bid bond 
shall be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”. 
 
“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued 
by persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not 
acceptable bid security. 
 

Proposals will only be accepted electronically on the Quest CDN website. Bidders 
will also be required to submit the following forms online with their bid: bid security, 
bidder status form and non-collusion Affidavit. 

 
  

220

Item 22.



11 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT NO. TS-000-3294 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 

 

To the Mayor and City Council 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies that __________________________ have personally 

and carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract 

annexed hereto. Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to 

construct the improvements for the HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY INTERSECTION 

IMPROVEMENTS in accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of 

the City Clerk, the published Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, 

complying with all the laws of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) 

years from the date of final acceptance thereof at the following prices, to-wit: 

BID 
ITEM 

# 
DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

EXTENDED 
PRICE 

1 Topsoil, Off-site CY 674   

2 Excavation, Class 10 CY 2199   

3 Traffic Signal LS 1   

4 Painted Pavement Markings, 
Waterborne 

STA 5.77 
  

5 Painted Symbols and Legends EA 4   

6 Temporary Traffic Control LS 1   

7 Sign Panels SF 38.3   

8 Sign Posts LF 88   

9 Removal of Sign EA 4   

221

Item 22.



12 

BID 

ITEM 

# 
DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE 

EXTENDED 

PRICE 

10 Removal and Reinstallation of Sign EA 4   

11 Conventional Seeding, Seeding, 
Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 2 
Seed Mixture 

AC 0.08 
  

12 Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, 
Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 1 
Seed Mixture 

AC 0.41 
  

13 Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, 
Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 2 
Seed Mixture 

AC 0.21 
  

14 Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, 
Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 4 
Seed Mixture 

AC 0.21 
  

15 Plants, Lump Sum, With Warranty LS 1   

16 Mulch, Shredded Bark CY 40   

17 Mulch, Rock CY 8   

18 SWPPP Management LS 1   

19 Filter Sock, 12” LF 846   

20 Filter Sock, Removal LF 846   

21 Temporary RECP, Type 2C SY 403   

22 Silt Fence LF 285   

23 Silt Fence Removal of Sediment LF 285   

24 Silt Fence Removal of Device LF 285   

25 Monument Preservation and 
Replacement 

LS 1 
  

26 Mobilization LS 1   

27 Concrete Washout LS 1   

28 Monument EA 8   

29 Limestone Edging, 6” WIDE TON 22   

30 Electrical & Lighting LS 1   

 

TOTAL BID: $________________________ 
 
Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. A unit price shall be submitted 
for each of the items. The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating the Total 
Bid shown above. Failure to submit a bid on any item, shall be just cause for 
disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled in ink, typed or computer 

222

Item 22.



13 

generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to delete any part or 
all of any item. 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 
reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry 
and evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder 
if the Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an 
award to that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not 
involving price, time or changes in the work. 
 

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the 
undersigned within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time 
thereafter before this bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an 
agreement in the prescribed form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar 
days after the Contract is presented to the Contractor for signature, and start work within 
ten (10) calendar days after the date as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed. 
 
 
Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders. 
 

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request. 
The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda: 
 

Addendum No.  ______________   Date _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
  ______________ _____________ 
 
The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal. 
 

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001. 
 
Name of bidder 
________________________________  _____________________________ 

   By 
________________________________  _____________________________  
Official Address   Title  
 

223

Item 22.



14 

BID BOND 
 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________ 
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________ 
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In 
the penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the 
United States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 
administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted 
the accompanying bid dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for 
______________________________________ 
____________________________________________________________________________________. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, 
 
(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate, 
 
(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and 

shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing 
labor or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement 
created by the acceptance of said Bid, 

 
Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood 
and agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount 
of this obligation as herein stated. 
 
By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of 
damages sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in 
the specifications or by law. 
 
The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be 
in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute 
such contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them 
as are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their 
proper officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____. 
 
 
 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Principal 

 
 
_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title) 
Witness 

_________________________________ (Seal) 
Surety 

 
_______________________________________ By____________________________________ 
Witness                  Attorney-in-fact 

224

Item 22.



15 

225

Item 22.



16 

226

Item 22.



 

17 

         NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER      
        PROJECT NO(S): TS-000-3294 

 
STATE OF _______________________  

              ss 
COUNTY OF _____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that: 
 
(1)  We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________     
  (Owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent) 
 
_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid: 
 
(2)  We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all 
pertinent circumstances respecting such bid: 
 
(3)  Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid: 
 
(4)  Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, Owners, agents, representatives, 
employees or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or 
agreed, directly or indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in 
connection with the Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in 
connection with such Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion 
or communication or conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the 
attached bid or of any other Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any 
other Bidder, or to secure through any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any 
advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and 
 
(5)  The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, 
representatives, Owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant. 
 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 

Signed      
  __________________________________________ 

    Title 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me 
 
this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ 
 
________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________ 
Title 
 
My Commission expires ______________________.

227

Item 22.



 

18 

FORM OF CONTRACT 

 
This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2023, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor. 

WITNESSETH: 

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of: HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY 

INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS, Project No(s). TS-000-3294 all in the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

by Resolution duly passed on the 16th day of January 2023 and shown and described in 

the Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City. 

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications. 

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No(s). TS-000-

3294 attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim: 

a. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement 
b. Plans 
c. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications 
d. Notice to Bidders 
e. Instructions to Bidders 
f. Supplemental Conditions 
g. General Conditions 
h. Project Specifications 
i. Form of Proposal 
j. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond 
k. Form of Contract 
l. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 

 m. Bidders Status Form 
 

 

228

Item 22.



 

19 

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first  
 
herein written.   
 

 __________________________ 
 Contractor 

 
 
    CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
    By____________________________ 

  Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
 
Attest: _________________________ 
 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
 City Clerk 

229

Item 22.



 

20 

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 
 

SURETY BOND NO.           

 

 

 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

  

 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 

____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons 

who may be injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 

made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these 

presents. 

  

 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2023, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said 

Contractor undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements: 

 

HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Project TS-000-3294 
 

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in 

a good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.  
 
It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions 

are a part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit: 
 
1. PERFORMANCE: The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by  

each and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference 

made a part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless 

the Owner from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or 

failure to perform as required. The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to 

perform as required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, 

agents, or employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract. 
   
 2. PAYMENT: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims 

for all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and 

tools, consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out 

of the portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, 

but the Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the 

claims of said claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as 

provided by law. The Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions 

set forth in Chapter 573 of the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though 

fully set out herein. 
   
 

 

 

230

Item 22.



 

21 

 

  3. MAINTENANCE: The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense: 

 

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed 

under the Contract within the period of   2   year (s) from the date of acceptance of 

the work under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in 

construction of said work; 

 

   B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and 

 

   C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any 

defects are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result 

of Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section. 

 

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted. 
 

 4. GENERAL: Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 

 

   A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform 

the Contract; 

 

   B.  To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 

such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 

contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and  

 

    C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 

extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 

liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor. 

 

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions: 
 
      D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to   less 

than five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this 

Bond. 
   
      E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, 

but shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner 

including interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable. Accordingly, “all outlay and 

expense” would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all 

equipment usage or rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including 

overhead expenses of the Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation 

as they are incurred by the Owner. It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend 

and indemnify the Owner on all claims made against the Owner on account of 

Contractor’s failure to perform as required in  

 

 

 

231

Item 22.



 

22 

     the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 

Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the position 

it would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as required. 
   
In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as to which the 

Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the 

Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change orders, or in the enforcement of the 

promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will 

make the Owner whole for all such outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this 

bond shall not exceed 125% of the penal sum of this bond. 

  

In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 

thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Polk County, State of Iowa. If legal action is required by the 

Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of 

the Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 

incurred therefor by the Owner. All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative 

and not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law. 

The Owner may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought 

against the Contractor or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all 

the promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this 

Bond, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this 

Bond, the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract 

Documents, it shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if 

not defined in the Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning 

in the construction industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, 

it shall be interpreted or construed according to its common or customary usage. 

 

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit 

liability hereunder. The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond. 

 

 

232

Item 22.



 

23 

     Project No(s). TS-000-3294 

 

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ___________, 2023. 

 

  Surety Countersigned By:                PRINCIPAL: 

 

   ___________________________________          _________________________________ 
      Signature of Agent                 Contractor 

  

 

 By:   _________________________________  

                     Signature 

   ___________________________________          _________________________________      

            Printed Name of Agent                   Title 

 

 ___________________________________  SURETY: 
             Company Name           

 

 ___________________________________          _________________________________ 
             Company Address                        Surety Company 

 

 ___________________________________   By:   _________________________________ 
             City, State, Zip Code                        Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

 ______________________________________    ____________________________________ 
          Company Telephone Number                  Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer 

 

                                                 _________________________________ 
                        Company Name 

 

                                               _________________________________ 
                                Company Address 

  FORM APPROVED BY: 

                                                       _________________________________ 
                     City, State, Zip Code 

 

 ________________________________________________   _____________________________________________ 

             Attorney for Owner                               Company Telephone Number 

 

 

 

NOTE: 

  

 1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures 

in ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted. 

 2.  This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and 

sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal. 

 4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond. 

 
  

233

Item 22.



 

24 

NOTICE TO PROCEED 
 
TO:     DATE:    
 
    PROJECT: HUDSON ROAD & W 

RIDGEWAY INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS  

             Cedar Falls, Iowa 
       
 
 
You are hereby notified to commence WORK in accordance with the Agreement dated  
                     , 2023, within ten (10) calendar days of                     , 2023 and you are to 
complete the WORK as follows: furnish all labor, material and equipment necessary for 
construction of the HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION 
IMPROVEMENTS. 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar days after 

the date set forth in this written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly and 

diligently through the duration of the project. Contractor shall fully complete the project no 

later than November 10th, 2023. Liquidated damages in the amount of $1,000 per calendar 

day will be assessed for work not completed within the designated contract term. 

      
 
 City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  

  (OWNER) 

 

 By                 

 Title               

  

  

234

Item 22.



 

25 

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions 
 

 
Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect. 
 
01 Award of Contract 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03: 
 
The Owner shall have the right to accept Alternates in any order or combination, unless 
otherwise specifically provided in the Bidding Documents. The low Bidder shall be 
determined on the basis of the Base Bid.  
 
The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls. 
 
02 Availability of Site 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04: 
 
During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate all 
operations with those of other Contractors/event staff working within the same area of the 
following projects and/or events: 
 

1) Cedar Falls Utilities Gas Main and Water Main Replacement Projects 
2) Cedar Falls Utilities Overhead to Underground Electric Conversion. 
3) UNI Fall Classes Resume – August 2023 
4) Cedar Falls Public Schools Resume – August 2023 
5) UNI Home Football Games – September through November 2023 
6) UNI Homecoming – September/October 2023 

 
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10: 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 72 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. The Contractor shall be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and 
if any survey stakes or marks are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor, Contractor 
will be charged for the cost of replacing them. 
  

235

Item 22.



 

26 

04 Borrow and Waste Sites 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13: 
 
It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for 
excess material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this 
project (excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for 
material hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all proposed disposal sites and 
determine the acceptability of each. Overhaul will not be measured or paid for but will be 
considered incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this project. 
 
05 Contract Time 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02: 
 
The work under the proposed contract shall commence within ten (10) calendar days after 
the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and shall be performed regularly and 
diligently throughout the duration of the project. Contractor shall fully complete the project 
no later than September 30th, 2023.  

 
 
06 Work Progress and Schedule 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03: 
 
The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the calendar 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the 
calendar days, three-eighths of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-
fourths of the calendar days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole 
work shall be completed at the expiration of the calendar days. 
 
07 Weekly Record of Calendar Days 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06: 
 
Work shall not begin before 6:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset. Work on Sundays shall 
be allowed only after prior approval by the Engineer. 
 
08 Liquidated Damages 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12: 
 
Liquidated damages in the amount of one thousand ($1,000.00) dollars per calendar 

day will be assessed for work not completed within the designated contract term as 

described in the Notice to Proceed.  

  

236

Item 22.



 

27 

09 Progress Payments and Vouchers 
 
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01: 
 
Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the First and Third 
Mondays of each month. 
 
Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may 
be legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and 
General Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion 
of the City Council. 
 
See Division 2 – Special Provisions Section 06- Contract time for liquidated damages for 
Intermediate calendar days. 
 
Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for 
such materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a 
period of ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless 
satisfied that material and laborers have been paid in full. 
 
10 Pollution Prevention Plan 
 
1. Site Description 
 
This project generally consists of the installation of traffic signals at the intersection of 
Hudson Road and Ridgeway Avenue, and landscaping within the center median of two 
roundabouts along Prairie Parkway, at the intersections with Prairie View Road and 
Brandilynn Boulevard. 
 
Access to the site shall be from adjacent City right-of-way. 
 
2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 
 
Construction activities that disturb subgrade soils are shown in the construction staging 
plan as included in the Project plan set. The primary means of controlling silt movement 
during construction is by minimizing the exposure of subgrade soils by way of a 
designated staging plan. In addition, sediment filters shall be installed on intake wells in 
sump locations and at the low point of the construction stage. Sediment filters shall also 
be placed on finished intake openings until the areas between the back of curb and the 
existing undisturbed grass are sodded or have established growth from seeding. 
 
Stabilizing of all disturbed areas shall be by sodding or seeding as shown in the Project 
plan as soon as practical after completion of the backfilling of the curbs and the placement 
of the topsoil. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of all 
erosion control measures as described in the Project plan. The Contractor may elect to 
delegate portions of these tasks to subcontractors. 

237

Item 22.



 

28 

 
All contractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent contamination of storm 
water runoff, groundwater and soils by hazardous material and/or pollutants caused by 
work operations or encountered in their work. All waste building materials and supplies 
must be removed from the site. If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on the site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids. 
 
The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities. 
 
Each and every Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner to: 
 

1. Execute Contractor’s part of the Pollution Prevention Plan as described. 
2. Conduct all activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 

stabilizing vegetation. If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs 
with no additional cost to the Owner. 

3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction. 

 
3. Storm Water Management  
 
Storm water shall be routed by means of existing concrete curb intakes, storm sewer, and 
ditches. Storm water runoff volumes will not change as a result of the construction project, 
but storm water runoff shall be managed during construction to minimize erosion. 
 
4. Pollution Prevention Plan Reporting and Updates 
 
The Owner or a representative is to insure compliance with the Pollution Prevention Plan 
will carry out regular inspections. Owner designated and qualified personnel will inspect 
disturbed areas of the construction site that have not reached “final stabilization” at least 
once every seven (7) calendar days. Owner will be responsible for executing the Plan 
towards the goal of a stabilized site. Owner will make determination of Contractors 
compliance with the plan and may direct additional measures to be taken by any 
Contractor. When a plan deficiency or the occurrence of a pollutant entering the drainage 
system is observed, corrective action shall be taken. The Pollution Prevention Plan will 
be revised and modifications made to the control facilities as needed. 
 
Intermittent reports based on site observation will be made and will become part of the 
pollution prevention plan. A final report and Notice of Discontinuation will be filed 30 days 
after final stabilization of the project has occurred. 
  

238

Item 22.



 

29 

11  METHOD OF MEASUREMENT 
 
The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY 
INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS project in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the 
SUDAS and as further modified by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental Specifications 
to the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS Statewide Urban Design and Specifications Program 
and the special provisions included in the contract documents. 
 
12 BASIS OF PAYMENT 
 
Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2022 Edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental Specifications to the 2021 Edition of 
the SUDAS Statewide Urban Design and Specifications Program and the special 
provisions included in the contract documents. 

239

Item 22.



 

30 

DIVISION 3 
 

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 
 

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2022 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the City’s 
Standard Specification. 

 
This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 Edition of the SUDAS Statewide Urban Design and 
Specifications Program. Water main installation shall be per Municipal Water Utility of the 
City of Cedar Falls Water Main Materials and Installation of Water Mains and their 
Appurtenances Standards as approved and amended February 14, 2020. 
 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at: 
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  

 

240

Item 22.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


 

31 

DIVISION 4 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the HUDSON 
ROAD & W RIDGEWAY INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS in accordance with the 2022 
Edition of the SUDAS as amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental 
Specifications to the 2021 Edition of SUDAS, except as amended or supplemented as 
follows: 
 

ADD SECTION 8940 TRAFFIC SIGNS AND POSTS 

 
PART 1 – GENERAL 
 
Comply with Division 1 of SUDAS - General Provisions and Covenants 
 
1.01 SECTION INCLUDES: 

 

A. Traffic Signs 

B. Traffic Sign Posts 

C. Removal of Signs and Posts 

 
1.02 DESCRIPTION OF WORK 
 

Includes requirements for traffic sign panels and posts for installation. 
 

1.03 SUBMITTALS 

 
Comply with Division 1 – General Provisions and Covenants. 
 

1.04 SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

Comply with Division 1- General Provisions and Covenants. 
 

1.05 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 
 

Comply with Division 1- General Provisions and Covenants. 
 

1.06 SCHEDULING AND CONFLICTS 
 

Comply with Division 1- General Provisions and Covenants. 
 
Notify the Engineer at least 72 hours in advance of all removals. 
 

1.07 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

None. 
 

  

241

Item 22.



 

32 

1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 

A. Sign Panels 

 
1. Measurement:   Per square foot of sign area. 
 
2. Payment:  Per unit price per square foot of sign area as installed. 

 

B. Sign Posts 

 
1. Measurement: Per linear foot. 

 
2. Payment: At unit price per linear foot. 

 
3. Includes:  All post sections, anchor, and associated hardware for installation of 

posts and Erection of signs. 
 

C. Removal of Sign 

 
1. Measurement: Each sign and post assembly will be counted. 

 
2. Payment: Payment will be at the unit price for each sign and post assembly. 

 
3. Includes: Unit price includes, but is not limited to, removal, disposal, and 

backfilling as necessary. 
 

D. Removal and Reinstallation of Sign 

 
1. Measurement: Each reinstalled sign and post assembly will be counted. 

 
2. Payment: Payment will be at the unit price for each reinstalled sign and post 

assembly. 
 

3. Includes: Unit price includes, but is not limited to removal, protection, and 
reinstallation.  New posts, if necessary due to damage or if specified are 
incidental. 

 

E. Removal and Salvage of Sign 

 
1. Measurement: Each sign and post assembly will be counted. 

 
2. Payment: Payment will be at the unit price for each sign and post assembly 

removed. 
 

3. Includes: Unit price includes, but is not limited to, removal, protection, salvage as 
designated in the contract documents, and backfilling as necessary. 

 
  

242

Item 22.



 

33 

PART 2 – PRODUCTS 
 
2.03 Sign Panels 

 
A. Fabricate signs from sheet aluminum in accordance with Section 4186.02 A. of the 

Iowa Department of Transportation Standard Specifications. 
B. Retroreflective Sheeting in accordance with Section 4186.03 of the Iowa Department 

of Transportation Standard Specifications. 
C. Sign fabrication in accordance with Section 4186.06 of the Iowa Department of 

Transportation Standard Specifications. 
D. Fastening accessories in accordance with Section 4186.09 A. of the Iowa Department 

of Transportation Standard Specifications. 

 
2.04 Sign Posts 

 
A. Perforated Square Steel Tube, 2 inches square with 14- gauge wall, 11 feet in length. 
B. Steel in conformance with ASTM A1011, Grade 50. 
C. Average minimum yield strength after cold-forming: 60,000 psi. 
D. Corner welded, scarfed, zinc coated. 
E. Chromate conversion coating, clear organic polymer topcoat. 
F. Galvanized interior and exterior. 
G. Made in USA. 

 
2.05 Anchor Post 

 
A. Perforated Square Steel Tube, 2 ¼ inch square, 12- gauge wall, 48 inch in length. 
B. Steel in conformance with ASTM A1011, Grade 50. 
C. Average minimum yield strength after cold-forming: 60,000 psi. 
D. Corner welded, scarfed, zinc coated. 
E. Chromate conversion coating, clear organic polymer topcoat. 
F. Galvanized interior and exterior. 
G. Made in USA. 

 
2.06 Sign Post Extension 

 
A. Perforated Square Steel Tube, 1 ¾ inch square, 14- gauge wall, 30 inch in length. 
B. Steel in conformance with ASTM A10111, Grade 50. 
C. Average minimum yield strength after cold-forming: 60,000 psi. 
D. Corner welded, scarfed, zinc coated. 
E. Chromate conversion coating, clear organic polymer topcoat. 
F. Galvanized interior and exterior. 
G. Made in USA. 

 
2.07 Omni-Directional Soil Stabilizing Anchor Sleeve 

 
A. Perforated Square Steel Tube, 2 ½ inch square, 12- gauge wall, 18 inch in length. 
B. Steel in conformance with ASTM1011, Grade 50. 
C. Average minimum yield strength after cold-forming: 60,000 psi. 
D. Corner welded, scarfed, zinc coated. 
E. Chromate conversion coating, clear organic polymer topcoat. 
F. Galvanized interior and exterior. 

243

Item 22.



 

34 

G. Made in USA. 
H. Weld 4, 4 “x 12”, 10- gauge triangular wing plates to each corner of the tube at 45 

degree angles at 2 1/2inches from top of tube. 

 
2.08 Medium Corner Bolt 
 

A. 5/16 inch diameter, 2 bend truss head, 18 grade. 
B. Steel in conformance with ASTM A307. 
C. Zinc plated in conformance with ASTM B633. 
D. Made in USA. 

 
PART 3 – EXECUTION 
 
3.01 Sign Panels 
 

A. Erect in accordance with Section 2524.03.B.1. of Iowa Department of Transportation 
Standard Specifications. 

 
3.02 Sign Posts 

 
A. Install posts and anchors in accordance with Section 2524.03.B.3 of Iowa Department 

of Transportation Standard Specifications. 

 
3.03 Sign Post Extension 

 
A. For use to mount street name signs above stop signs. 

 
3.04 Omni-Directional Soil Stabilizing Anchor Sleeve 

 
A. For use in stabilizing sign assemblies which include multiple signs. 
B. Sleeves shall slide over the anchor stubs and line up with the top of the anchor stub. 

 

 
END OF SECTION 

 

 
 

244

Item 22.



HUDSON ROAD & W RIDGEWAY AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS - FINAL 01/04/2023

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

Division 1: INT-1 & INT 2 ROUNDABOUT LANDSCAPING TS-000-3294

Division 2: RIDGEWAY & HUDSON ROAD TRAFFIC SIGNALS 121.1031.08

DIV 1 DIV 2 DIV 1 DIV 2

Roundabouts

Traffic 

Signal Roundabouts Traffic Signal

1 2010-D-3 Topsoil, Off-site CY 674 0 35.00$          23,590.00$         -$                 23,590.00$            

2 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 CY 2199 0 35.00$          76,965.00$         -$                 76,965.00$            

3 8010-A Traffic Signal LS 0 1 286,000.00$ -$                   286,000.00$     286,000.00$          

4 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Waterborne STA 0 5.77 450.00$        -$                   2,596.50$        2,596.50$              

5 8020-G Painted Symbols and Legends EA 0 4 150.00$        -$                   600.00$           600.00$                 

6 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 0.5 0.5 15,000.00$   7,500.00$           7,500.00$        15,000.00$            

7 8940-A Sign Panels SF 32.0 6.3 60.00$          1,920.00$           378.00$           2,298.00$              

8 8940-B Sign Posts LF 88 0 90.00$          7,920.00$           -$                 7,920.00$              

9 8940-C Removal of Sign EA 4 0 150.00$        600.00$              -$                 600.00$                 

10 8940-D Removal and Reinstallation of Sign EA 4 0 500.00$        2,000.00$           -$                 2,000.00$              

11 9010-A Convetional Seeding, Fertlizing, and Mulching, Native Seed AC 0.08 0 34,000.00$   2,720.00$           -$                 2,720.00$              

12 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 1 Seed Mixture AC 0.41 0 5,000.00$     2,050.00$           -$                 2,050.00$              

13 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 2 Seed Mixture AC 0 0.21 4,000.00$     -$                   840.00$           840.00$                 

14 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Type 4 Seed Mixture AC 0 0.21 3,500.00$     -$                   735.00$           735.00$                 

15 9030-B Plants, Lump Sum, With Warranty LS 1 0 41,000.00$   41,000.00$         -$                 41,000.00$            

16 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark CY 40 0 270.00$        10,800.00$         -$                 10,800.00$            

17 9030-999-B Mulch, Rock CY 8 0 432.00$        3,456.00$           -$                 3,456.00$              

18 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 0.55 0.45 4,000.00$     2,200.00$           1,800.00$        4,000.00$              

19 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 12" LF 792 54 4.00$            3,168.00$           216.00$           3,384.00$              

20 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 792 54 1.25$            990.00$              67.50$             1,057.50$              

21 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 2C SY 403 0 5.00$            2,015.00$           -$                 2,015.00$              

22 9040-N-1 Silt Fence LF 0 285 3.00$            -$                   855.00$           855.00$                 

23 9040-N-2 Silt Fence Removal of Sediment LF 0 285 0.60$            -$                   171.00$           171.00$                 

24 9040-N-3 Silt Fence Removal of Device LF 0 285 1.20$            -$                   342.00$           342.00$                 

25 11010-A Monument Preservation and Replacement LS 0 1 2,500.00$     -$                   2,500.00$        2,500.00$              

26 11020-A Mobilization LS 0.55 0.45 50,000.00$   27,500.00$         22,500.00$      50,000.00$            

27 11050-A Concrete Washout LS 1 0 2,000.00$     2,000.00$           -$                 2,000.00$              

28 000-9999-A Monument EA 8 0 18,000.00$   144,000.00$       -$                 144,000.00$          

29 000-9999-B Limestone Edging, 6" WIDE TON 22 0 915.00$        20,130.00$         -$                 20,130.00$            

30 000-9999-C Electrical & Lighting LS 1 0 15,000.00$   15,000.00$         -$                 15,000.00$            

397,524.00$    327,101.00$  724,625.00$       CONSTRUCTION TOTAL:

 TOTAL COST 

OPINION OF PROBABLE PROJECT COSTS

ITEM 

#
ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT

QUANTITY

UNIT PRICE

EXTENDED PRICE

245

Item 22.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: January 17, 2023 
 
 SUBJECT: Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project 
  City Project Number: SA-002-3182 
  Request for PS&E Approval 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project. 
 
We recommend setting Monday, February 6th, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. as the date and time 
for the public hearing on this project and Friday, February 10, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. as the 
date and time for receiving and opening bids. We also request that the Notice to Bidders 
be published by Friday, January 20th, 2023, The Plans and Specifications will be ready 
for distribution to contractors on Friday, January 20th, 2023 allowing more than two (2) 
weeks of review before contract letting. 
 
This project involves the installation of a lift station on Minnetonka Drive in Cedar Falls, 
IA, installation of 498 linear feet of force main, 166 linear feet of gravity sewer, and 66 
linear feet of water main. The project also includes replacement of storm sewer and 
subdrain, PCC pavement and sidewalks, landscaping, electrical work, erosion control, 
seeding, and other miscellaneous items required to complete the work. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $442,200.00. The City will 
use Sanitary Sewer Revenue Bonds for the design, right of way, and construction of this 
project. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the Oak Park Sanitary 
Sewer Repair Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 

246

Item 23.



1

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

FOR

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Project SA-002-3182

Cedar Falls, Iowa

ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this engineering document was prepared by me or 
under my direct personal supervision and that I am a duly licensed 
professional engineer under the laws of the State of Iowa.

________________________________________  Date: 1/6/2023
Lindsay Beaman, P.E.      Iowa License No. 19971
My license renewal date is December 31, 2023

Pages or sheets covered by this seal: All.

247

Item 23.



2

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Number

TITLE SHEET 1

TABLE OF CONTENTS 2-3

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 4

NOTICE TO BIDDERS 5-6

DIVISION 1 – Instruction to Bidders
01 Definition and Terms 7
02 Qualification of the Bidder 7-8
03 Contents of the Proposal Forms 8
04 Taxes 8
05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security 8-9
Form of Proposal 10-13
Bid Bond 14
Bidder Status Form 15
Authorization to transact business 16
Non-Collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 17
Form of Contract 18-19
Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond 20-23

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions
01 Award of Contract 24
02 Availability of Site 24
03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes 24
04 Borrow and Waste Sites 25
05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract 25
06 Contract Time 25
07 Work Progress and Schedule 25
08 Weekly record of Working Days 25
09 Liquidated Damages 26
10 Progress Payments and Vouchers 26
11 Pollution Prevention Plan 26-28
12 Method of Measurement 28
13 Basis of Payment                                                                             28

248

Item 23.



3

DIVISION 3 – Standard Specifications
The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2023 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the 
City’s Standard Specification.

This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Current 
Supplemental Specifications to SUDAS. 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at:
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  29

DIVISION 4 – Supplemental Plans and Specifications
SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS 30-35

SECTION 33 32 16 - PACKAGED UTILITY Separate Numbering
WASTEWATER PUMPING STATIONS

DIVISION 5 – Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing Separate Numbering

249

Item 23.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


4

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS,

FORM OF CONTRACT, AND ESTIMATE OF COST FOR THE 

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT IN THE

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

TO ALL TAXPAYERS OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND OTHER PERSONS 
INTERESTED:

Public notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

will conduct a Public Hearing on Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated 

Total Cost for the construction of the OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT in said City at 7:00 p.m. on the 6th day of February 2023, said meeting to be 

held in the Council Chambers in the City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa.

Said Plans, Specifications, Form of Contract, and Estimated Total Cost are now on 

file in the office of the City Clerk in the City Hall in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and may be inspected 

by any persons interested.

Any person interested may appear at said meeting of the City Council for the 

purpose of making objections to said Plans, Specifications, Contract, or Estimated Total 

Cost of making said improvement.

This notice given by order of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

By: _______________________________

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 

City Clerk

250

Item 23.



5

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Time and Place for Filing Sealed Proposals: Sealed proposals will be received at the City Clerk's 
office at City Hall, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa by the City Engineer or an authorized 
representative of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, before 2:00 p.m. on the 10th day of February 2023.

Time and Place Sealed Proposals will be Opened and Considered: Sealed proposals will be opened 
and read at 2:00 p.m. on the 10th day of February 2023 in the City Council Chambers at City Hall, 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, for consideration by the City of Cedar Falls City Council at its 
meeting at 7:00 PM on the 20th day of February 2023 or at such later time and place as may be 
fixed. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to reject any and all proposals including without 
limitation, nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. 

Time for Commencement and Completion of Work: The work under the proposed contract shall 
commence within ten (10) calendar days after the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed and 
shall be performed regularly and diligently throughout the duration of the project. All work shall be 
completed within One Hundred Twenty  (120) working days. Working days will be accumulated 
concurrently from the date set forth in the written Notice to Proceed.

Bid Security: Each Form of Proposal shall be accompanied in a separate envelope by a bid security 
as defined in the Instructions to Bidders- Division 1 Section 05.

Contract Documents: Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the City 
Engineer's office, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613. Contract documents are also available 
electronically by calling 319-268-5161 for FTP site location and access rights. 

Preference for Iowa Products and Labor:  By virtue of statutory authority, a preference will be given 
to products and provisions grown and coal produced within the State of Iowa.

In accordance with Iowa statutes, a resident bidder shall be allowed a preference as against a 
nonresident bidder from a state or foreign country if that state or foreign country gives or requires 
any preference to bidders from that state or foreign country, including but not limited to any 
preference to bidders, the imposition of any type of labor force preference, or any other form of 
preferential treatment to bidders or laborers from that state or foreign country. The preference 
allowed shall be equal to the preference given or required by the state or foreign country in which the 
nonresident bidder is a resident. In the instance of a resident labor force preference, a nonresident 
bidder shall apply the same resident labor force preference to a public improvement in this state as 
would be required in the construction of a public improvement by the state or foreign country in 
which the nonresident bidder is a resident.

Failure to submit a fully completed Bidder Status Form with the bid may result in the bid being 
deemed nonresponsive and rejected.

Sales Tax: Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the performance of 
this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project shall be exempt from tax as provided 
by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45.

251

Item 23.



6

Project Description: The project involves the installation of a lift station on Minnetonka Dr in Cedar 
Falls, IA, installation of 498 LF of force main, 166 LF of gravity sewer, and 66 LF of water main. The 
project also includes replacement of storm sewer and subdrain, PCC pavement and sidewalks, 
landscaping, electrical work, erosion control, seeding, and other miscellaneous items required to 
complete the work. 

Published upon order of the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa.

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
BY: __________________________
       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC

        City Clerk

252

Item 23.



7

DIVISION I – Instructions to Bidders

The work comprising the Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project shall be constructed in 
accordance with the 2023 Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified by the City of Cedar 
Falls’ Supplemental Specifications and the special provision included in the contract 
documents. The terms used in the contract revision of the documents are defined in said 
Standard Specifications.

Before submitting your bid, please review the requirements of “Division One, General 
Provisions and Covenants”, in particular the sections regarding proposal requirements, 
bonding, contract execution, and insurance requirements.  Please be certain that all 
documents have been completed properly; as failure to complete and sign all documents and 
to comply with the requirements listed below can cause your bid not to be read.

01 Definition and Terms

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1010 – 1.03:

Code of Iowa: The latest edition of the Code of Iowa

Engineer: The City Engineer of Cedar Falls, Iowa or an authorized representative.

Owner: The City of Cedar Falls, Iowa acting through its City Council.

Project: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT
Project No. SA-002-3182

02 Qualification of the Bidder

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.01:

To demonstrate bidder’s qualifications to perform the work, within five days of the Owners 
request, bidder shall submit written evidence such as may be called for below:

The address and description of the bidder’s place of business; The number of years 
engaged in the contracting business under the present firm name, and the name of the 
state where incorporated; A list of the property and equipment available to the bidder to 
evaluate if the bidder can complete the work in accordance with the bidding documents; A 
financial statement of the bidder showing that the bidder has the financial resources to 
meet all obligations incidental to the work; The bidder’s performance record giving the 
description, location, and telephone number of similar projects constructed in a satisfactory 
manner by the bidder; A list of projects presently under contract, the approximate contract 
amount and the percent of completion of each; A list of contracts which resulted in lawsuits; 
A list of contracts defaulted; A statement of the bidder indicating whether or not the bidder 
has ever filed bankruptcy while performing work of a like nature or magnitude;  A list of 

253

Item 23.



8

officers of the firm who, while in the employ of the firm or the employ of previous firms, 
were associated with contracts which resulted in lawsuits, contracts defaulted or filed for 
bankruptcy; The technical experience of personnel guaranteed to be employed in 
responsible charge of the work stating whether the personnel have or have not performed 
satisfactorily on other contracts of like nature and magnitude or comparable difficulty at 
similar rate of progress; Such additional information as will assist the Owner in determining 
whether the bidder is adequately prepared to fulfill the contract. Owner’s decision as to 
qualifications of the bidder will be final.

The Owner hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that in any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises will be 
afforded full opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color or national origin in consideration for an 
award.

03 Contents of the Proposal Forms

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.02:

Plans, specifications, and proposal forms may be obtained from the office of the City 
Engineer. Plans, specifications, and proposal forms have been approved by the City 
Council and are now on file for public examination in the office of the City Clerk.

04 Taxes

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.08:

Contractors and approved subcontractors will be provided a Sales Tax Exemption 
Certification to purchase building materials, supplies or equipment to be used in the 
performance of this project. Products utilized in the construction of this project will be 
exempt from tax as provided by Code of Iowa Sections 423.2 and 423.45.

05 Submission of the Proposal, Identity of Bidder and Bid Security

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1020 – 1.12:

The bid security must be in the minimum amount of 10% of the total bid amount including all 
add alternates (do not deduct the amount of deduct alternates). The bid security shall be in 
the form of a cashier's check or certified check drawn on a state-chartered or federally 
chartered bank, or a certified share draft drawn on a state-chartered or federally chartered 
credit union, or a bidder's bond with corporate surety satisfactory to the City. The bid bond 
must be submitted on the enclosed Bid Bond form, as no other bid bond forms are 
acceptable.  All signatures on the bid bond must be original signatures in ink; facsimile (fax) 
of any signature on the bid bond is not acceptable.  Bid security other than said bid bond shall 
be made payable to City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls”.

254

Item 23.



9

“Miscellaneous Bank checks”, as well as “Money Orders” and “Traveler’s Checks” issued by 
persons, firms or corporations licensed under Code of Iowa Chapter 533B are not acceptable 
bid security.

The bid shall be submitted on the Form of Proposal included herewith or on a computer 
printed proposal. All entries on this proposal shall be filled in ink, typed or computer printed. 
The bidder shall not alter the quantity, unit price or the extension that has been provided for 
items that have been predetermined by the contracting authority.

If the proposal is computer generated, the bidder shall submit a form titled as “Form of 
Proposal,” followed by: the project name, project number, the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa and 
the bidder's name. The form shall then include the item numbers, item descriptions, and 
units and their quantities. The bidder shall specify a unit price in figures of dollars and cents 
for all pay items, the extensions for the respective unit prices and quantities in figures in a 
column provided for the purpose, and the total amount of the proposal obtained by adding 
the amounts of the several items. The form shall then conclude with the bidder's name, that 
of its representative and the representative's signature.

The computer generated proposal then is to be attached to the Form of Proposal included 
herewith, which has the following entries completed: bid security sum and form, the name 
of the bidder and its official address, and the bidder's representative's name, signature, and 
title. Also the total bid shall be completed with the entry of "see attached."

The proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope separate from the bid security, 
bidders status form and non-collusion Affidavit. The envelope shall bear the return address 
of the bidder and shall be addressed as follows:

To: City Clerk
City of Cedar Falls
City Hall
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Proposal for: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT
Project No. SA-002-3182

255

Item 23.



10

FORM OF PROPOSAL

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT

PROJECT NO. SA-002-3182

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa

The undersigned hereby certifies that __________________________ have personally 

and carefully examined the specifications, general conditions, and form of contract 

annexed hereto. Having made such examination, the undersigned hereby proposes to 

construct the improvements for the OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

in accordance with the plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk, the 

published Notice to Bidders and the Form of Contract, herewith, complying with all the laws 

of the State of Iowa, and the Rules, Regulations and Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

and to the satisfaction of the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, including the 

guaranteeing of this Project for a period of two (2) years from the date of final acceptance 

thereof at the following prices, to-wit:

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

1
Clearing and Grubbing LS 1   

2
Topsoil, On-site CY 190   

3
Subgrade Preparation SY 276   

4
Subbase, 12" Modified SY 191   

5
Removal of Structure LS 1   

6
Compaction Testing LS 1

7
Trench Foundation TON 18

256

Item 23.



11

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

8
Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill 
Material

CY
119

9
Trench Compaction Testing LS 1

10
Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
PVC, SDR 26, 8"

LF
166

11
Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenched, 
HDPE, 2"

LF
156

12
Sanitary Sewer Force Main, 
Trenchless, HDPE, 2"

LF
300

13
Sanitary Sewer Force Main with Casing 
Pipe, Trenched, HDPE, 2"

LF
42

14
Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, 
SDR 23.5, 4"

LF
24

15
Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types 
and Sizes

LF
277

16
Sanitary Sewer Cleanout EA 2

17
Sanitary Sewer Abandonment, Fill and 
Plug

LF
50

18
Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 20

19
Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 15" LF 20

20 Subdrain, Type 1, 6" LF 50

21 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6" LF 66

22 Water Main Fittings, 6" EA 4

23 Water Main Removal, 6" LF 51

24
Manhole, SW-303, 48" EA 1

25
Internal Drop Connection EA 1

26
External Drop Connection EA 1

27
Connection to Existing Manhole EA 1

28
Remove Manhole EA 2

29
Pavement, PCC,  7" SY 171

30
HMA Overlay TON 28.1

31
Removal of Sidewalk SY 61

32
Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 61

33
Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6” SY 46

34
Pavement Removal SY 216

257

Item 23.



12

BID 
ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNITS QUANTITY UNIT PRICE EXTENDED PRICE

35
Temporary Traffic Control LS 1

36
Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, 
and Mulching, Slope Mix

AC
0.24

37
Sod SQ 42

38
Plants with Warranty LS 1

39
Mulch, Shredded Bark SF 635

40
Landscape Boulders EA 5

41
SWPPP Management LS 1

42
Filter Sock, 12" LF 1560

43
Filter Sock, Removal LF 1560

44
Temporary RECP, Type 4 SY 245

45
Stabilized Construction Entrance SY 94

46
Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock EA 2

47
Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 2

48
Lift Station Column LS 1

49
Mobilization LS 1

50 Concrete Washout LS 1

51 Electrical LS 1

52 Lift Station, Complete LS 1

TOTAL BID

Bidders may not independently bid on selective items of work. In this project, all items 
constitute one indivisible work that will be let to one bidder. A unit price shall be submitted 
for each of the items (Items 1-52). The successful bidder will be determined by evaluating 
the Total Bid shown above. Failure to submit a bid on any item shall be just cause for 
disqualification of the entire proposal. Unit bids must be filled in ink, typed or computer 
generated, or the bid will be rejected. The Owner reserves the right to delete any part or all 
of any item.

The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, including without limitation, 
nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced, or conditional bids. The Owner further 
reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder whom it finds, after reasonable inquiry and 
evaluation, to be non-responsible. The Owner may also reject the bid of any bidder if the 
Owner believes that it would not be in the best interest of the project to make an award to 
that bidder. The Owner also reserves the right to waive all informalities not involving price, 
time or changes in the work.

258

Item 23.



13

If written notice of approval of award is mailed, telegraphed or delivered to the undersigned 
within thirty (30) calendar days after the opening thereof, or any time thereafter before this 
bid is withdrawn, the undersigned agrees to execute and deliver an agreement in the 
prescribed form and furnish the required bond within ten (10) calendar days after the 
Contract is presented to the Contractor for signature, and start work within ten (10) 
calendar days after the date as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed.

Bid Security in the sum of _________________________________ in the form of 
__________________________________, is submitted herewith in accordance with the 
Instructions to Bidders.

The bidder is prepared to submit a financial and experience statement upon request.

The bidder has received the following Addendum or Addenda:

Addendum No. ______________     Date _____________
______________ _____________

The bidder has filled in all blanks on this Proposal.

Note: The Penalty for making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.A., Section 
1001.

Name of bidder
________________________________  _____________________________

 By
________________________________  _____________________________ 
Official Address  Title 

259

Item 23.



14

BID BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, ___________________________________________
__________________________, as Principal, and ___________________________________________
as Surety are held and firmly bound unto the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as Obligee, hereinafter called "OBLIGEE," In the 
penal sum of______________________________________ Dollars ($______________) lawful money of the United 
States, for the payment of which sum will and truly be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and 
successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. Whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying bid 
dated the _______ day of_______________________, 20_____, for ______________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________.

NOW THEREFORE,

(a) If said Bid shall be rejected, or in the alternate,

(b) If said Bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a contract in the form specified and shall 
furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for the payment of all persons performing labor 
or furnishing materials in connection therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by 
the acceptance of said Bid,

Then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain in force and effect; it being expressly understood and 
agreed that the liability of the Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of this 
obligation as herein stated.

By virtue of statutory authority, the full amount of this bid bond shall be forfeited to the Obligee in liquidation of damages 
sustained in the event that the Principal fails to execute the contract and provide the bond as provided in the 
specifications or by law.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said Surety and its bond shall be in 
no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time within which the Obligee may accept such Bid or execute such 
contract; and said Surety does hereby waive notice of any such extension.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety, have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of them as 
are corporations, have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be signed by their proper 
officers this ______ day of ____________________, A.D., 20_____.

_________________________________ (Seal)
Principal

_______________________________________ By_______________________________ (Title)
Witness

_________________________________ (Seal)
Surety

_______________________________________ By____________________________________
Witness                                Attorney-in-fact

260

Item 23.



15

 

261

Item 23.



16

262

Item 23.



17

                 NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT OF PRIME BIDDER          

 PROJECT NO. RC-000-3153

STATE OF _______________________ 
                           ss

COUNTY OF _____________________

__________________________________, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that:

(1) We are _______________________________________________________ of ______________        
  (Owner, partner, officer, representative, or agent)

_____________________________, the Bidder that has submitted the attached bid:

(2) We are fully informed respecting the preparation and contents of the attached bid and of all pertinent 
circumstances respecting such bid:

(3)  Such bid is genuine and is not a collusive or sham bid:

(4) Neither the said Bidder nor any of its officers, partners, Owners, agents, representatives, employees 
or parties in interest, including this affiant, has in any way colluded, conspired, connived or agreed, directly or 
indirectly, with any other Bidder, firm or person to submit a collusive or sham bid in connection with the 
Contract for which the attached bid has been submitted or to refrain from bidding in connection with such 
Contract, or has in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement or collusion or communication or 
conference with any other Bidder, firm or person to fix the price or prices in the attached bid or of any other 
Bidder, or, to fix any overhead, profit or cost element of the bid price of any other Bidder, or to secure through 
any collusion, conspiracy, connivance, or unlawful agreement any advantage against the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa, or any person interested in the proposed Contract; and

(5)  The price or prices quoted in the attached bid are fair and proper and are not tainted by a collusion, 
conspiracy, connivance or unlawful agreement on the part of the Bidder or any of its agents, representatives, 
Owners, employees or parties in interest, including this affiant.

__________________________________________
Signed
__________________________________________
Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me

this _______ day of ________________, 20_____

________________________________________

_________________________________________
Title

My Commission expires ______________________.

263

Item 23.



18

FORM OF CONTRACT

This Contract entered into in quadruplicate at Cedar Falls, Iowa, this ____ day of 

_________, 2023, by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter called the 

Owner, and_____________ of ___________________, hereinafter called the Contractor.

WITNESSETH:

The Contractor hereby agrees to furnish all labor, tools, materials and equipment 

and construct the public improvement consisting of: OAK PARK BLVD SEWER 

REPLACEMENT PROJECT, Project No. SA-002-3182 all in the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

ordered to be constructed by the City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, by 

Resolution duly passed on the 6th day of February 2023, and shown and described in the 

Plans and Specifications therefore now on file with the City Clerk of said City.

Said improvement shall be constructed strictly in accordance with said Plans and 

Specifications.

The following parts of the Plans and Specifications for said Project No. SA-002-3182 

attached hereto shall be made a part of this contract as fully as though set out herein 

verbatim:

a. Resolution ordering construction of the improvement
b. Plans
c. Notice of Public Hearing on Plans and Specifications
d. Notice to Bidders
e. Instructions to Bidders
f. Supplemental Conditions
g. General Conditions
h. Project Specifications
i. Form of Proposal
j. Performance, Payment, and Maintenance Bond
k. Form of Contract
l. Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder
m. Bidders Status Form

264

Item 23.



19

In Witness whereof, this Contract has been executed in quadruplicate on the date first 

herein written.

__________________________
Contractor

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

By____________________________
    James P. Brown, Mayor

Attest: _________________________
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC
City Clerk

265

Item 23.



20

Performance, Payment and Maintenance Bond

SURETY  BOND NO. 

 KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

 

 That we, __________________________, as Principal (hereinafter the “Contractor” or “Principal” and 

____________________________________________________ as Surety are held and firmly bound unto CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, as Obligee (hereinafter referred to as “the Owner”), and to all persons who may be 

injured by any breach of any of the conditions of this Bond in the penal sum of 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

($_______________), lawful money of the United States, for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be 

made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, legal representatives and assigns, jointly or severally, firmly by these presents.

 

 The conditions of the above obligations are such that whereas said Contractor entered into a contract with the 

Owner, bearing date the _______ day of __________, 2023, hereinafter the “Contract”) wherein said Contractor 

undertakes and agrees to construct the following described improvements:

Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project

Wastewater Collection

Project SA-002-3182

and to faithfully perform all the terms and requirements of said Contract within the time therein specified, in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in accordance with the Contract Documents.  

It is expressly understood and agreed by the Contractor and Surety in this bond that the following provisions are a 

part of this Bond and are binding upon said Contractor and Surety, to-wit:

1. PERFORMANCE:  The Contractor shall well and faithfully observe, perform, fulfill, and abide by   each 

and every covenant, condition, and part of said Contract and Contract Documents, by reference made a 

part hereof, for the above referenced improvements, and shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner 

from all outlay and expense incurred by the Owner by reason of the Contractor’s default or failure to 

perform as required.  The Contractor shall also be responsible for the default or failure to perform as 

required under the Contract and Contract Documents by all its subcontractors, suppliers, agents, or 

employees furnishing materials or providing labor in the performance of the Contract.
    
2. PAYMENT:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agreed to pay all just claims submitted 

by persons, firms, subcontractors, and corporations furnishing materials for or performing labor in the 

performance of the Contract on account of which this Bond is given, including but not limited to claims for 

all amounts due for labor, materials, lubricants, oil, gasoline, repairs on machinery, equipment, and tools, 

consumed or used by the Contractor or any subcontractor, wherein the same are not satisfied out of the 

portion of the contract price the Owner is required to retain until completion of the improvement, but the 

Contractor and Surety shall not be liable to said persons, firms, or corporations unless the claims of said 

claimants against said portion of the contract price shall have been established as provided by law.  The 

Contractor and Surety hereby bind themselves to the obligations and conditions set forth in Chapter 573 of 

the Iowa Code, which by this reference is made a part hereof as though fully set out herein.
    

266

Item 23.



21

3. MAINTENANCE:  The Contractor and the Surety on this Bond hereby agree, at their own expense:

A. To remedy any and all defects that may develop in or result from work to be performed under 

the Contract within the period of 2  year (s) from the date of acceptance of the 

work under the Contract, by reason of defects in workmanship or materials used in 

construction of said work;

B. To keep all work in continuous good repair; and

C. To pay the Owner’s reasonable costs of monitoring and inspection to assure that any defects 

are remedied, and to repay the Owner all outlay and expense incurred as a result of 

Contractor’s and Surety’s failure to remedy any defect as required by this section.

Contractor’s and Surety’s agreement herein made extends to defects in workmanship or 

materials not discovered or known to the Owner at the time such work was accepted.

4. GENERAL:  Every Surety on this Bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions:

A. To consent without notice to any extension of time to the Contractor in which to perform the 

Contract;

B. To consent without notice to any change in the Contract or Contract Documents, which 

thereby increases the total contract price and the penal sum of this bond, provided that all 

such changes do not, in the aggregate, involve an increase of more than 20% of the total 

contract price, and that this bond shall then be released as to such excess increase; and 

C. To consent without notice that this Bond shall remain in full force and effect until the 

Contract is completed, whether completed within the specified contract period, within an 

extension thereof, or within a period of time after the contract period has elapsed and the 

liquidated damage penalty is being charged against the Contractor.

The Contractor and every Surety on the bond shall be deemed and held bound, any contract to the contrary 

notwithstanding, to the following provisions:

    D. That no provision of this Bond or of any other contract shall be valid that limits to     less than 

five years after the acceptance of the work under the Contract the right to sue on this Bond.

    E. That as used herein, the phrase “all outlay and expense” is not to be limited in any way, but 

shall include the actual and reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Owner including 

interest, benefits, and overhead where applicable.  Accordingly, “all outlay and expense” 

would include but not be limited to all contract or employee expense, all equipment usage or 

rental, materials, testing, outside experts, attorney’s fees (including overhead expenses of the 

Owner’s staff attorneys), and all costs and expenses of litigation as they are incurred by the 

Owner.  It is intended the Contractor and Surety will defend and indemnify the Owner on all 

claims made against the Owner on account of Contractor’s failure to perform as required in 

the Contract and Contract Documents, that all agreements and promises set forth in the 

Contract and Contract Documents, in approved change orders, and in this Bond will be 

fulfilled, and that the Owner will be fully indemnified so that it will be put into the 

267

Item 23.



22

position it would have been in had the Contract been performed in the first instance as 

required.
    
In the event the Owner incurs any “outlay and expense” in defending itself against any claim as to which the 

Contractor or Surety should have provided the defense, or in the enforcement of the promises given by the 

Contractor in the Contract, Contract Documents, or approved change orders, or in the enforcement of the 

promises given by the Contractor and Surety in this Bond, the Contractor and Surety agree that they will make 

the Owner whole for all such outlay and expense, provided that the Surety’s obligation under this bond shall 

not exceed 125% of the penal sum of this bond.

In the event that any actions or proceedings are initiated regarding this Bond, the parties agree that the venue 

thereof shall be in the Iowa District Court for Blackhawk County, State of Iowa.  If legal action is required by the 

Owner to enforce the provisions of this Bond or to collect the monetary obligation incurring to the benefit of the 

Owner, the Contractor and the Surety agree, jointly, and severally, to pay the Owner all outlay and expense 

incurred therefor by the Owner.  All rights, powers, and remedies of the Owner hereunder shall be cumulative and 

not alternative and shall be in addition to all rights, powers, and remedies given to the Owner, by law.  The Owner 

may proceed against surety for any amount guaranteed hereunder whether action is brought against the Contractor 

or whether Contractor is joined in any such action(s) or not.

NOW THEREFORE, the condition of this obligation is such that if said Principal shall faithfully perform all the 

promises of the Principal, as set forth and provided in the Contract, in the Contract Documents, and in this Bond, 

then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

When a work, term, or phrase is used in this Bond, it shall be interpreted or construed first as defined in this Bond, 

the Contract, or the Contract Documents; second, if not defined in the Bond, Contract, or Contract Documents, it 

shall be interpreted or construed as defined in applicable provisions of the Iowa Code; third, if not defined in the 

Iowa Code, it shall be interpreted or construed according to its generally accepted meaning in the construction 

industry; and fourth, if it has no generally accepted meaning in the construction industry, it shall be interpreted or 

construed according to its common or customary usage.

Failure to specify or particularize shall not exclude terms or provisions not mentioned and shall not limit liability 

hereunder.  The Contract and Contract Documents are hereby made a part of this Bond.

268

Item 23.



23

        Project No. SA-002-3182

Witness our hands, in triplicate, this _______ day of ____________, 2023.

Surety Countersigned By:                                PRINCIPAL:

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________
Signature of Agent      Contractor

By:  _________________________________  

                                     Signature

     ___________________________________                   _________________________________         

               Printed Name of Agent        Title

___________________________________ SURETY:
                                 Company Name  

___________________________________                   _________________________________
                         Company Address                                Surety Company

___________________________________     By:      _________________________________
                       City, State, Zip Code                                           Signature Attorney-in-Fact Officer

______________________________________ ____________________________________
                    Company Telephone Number                             Printed Name of Attorney-in-Fact Officer

                                                                                       _________________________________
             Company Name

                                                                                    _________________________________
                                           Company Address

 FORM APPROVED BY: 

                                                                                                             _________________________________
  City, State, Zip Code

________________________________________________ _____________________________________________

                             Attorney for Owner                                                              Company Telephone Number

NOTE:

1. All signatures on this performance, payment, and maintenance bond must be original signatures in 

ink; copies, facsimile, or electronic signatures will not be accepted.

2. This bond must be sealed with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal.

3. The Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond must be valid on its face and sealed 

with the Surety’s raised, embossing seal.

4. The name and signature of the Surety’s Attorney-in-Fact/Officer entered on this bond must be 

exactly as listed on the Certificate or Power of Attorney accompanying this bond.

269

Item 23.



24

DIVISION 2 – Special Provisions

Special Provisions are intended to amend or supplement the General Provisions and 
Covenants of the SUDAS Standard Specifications. All sections that are not amended or 
supplemented remain in full force and effect.

01 Award of Contract

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1030 – 1.03:

The lowest responsive bidder shall be required to furnish a performance, payment and 
maintenance bond in the sum equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the total bid. The 
maintenance bond shall guarantee the maintenance of the improvements for a period of 
two (2) years from and after its completion and acceptance by the City of Cedar Falls.

02 Availability of Site 

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.04:

During construction of this project, the Contractor shall be required to coordinate all 
operations with those of other Contractors working within the same area of the following 
projects and/or events:

1) None identified

03 Protection of Line and Grade Stakes

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1050 – 1.10:

The Contractor shall notify the Engineer at least 72 hours prior to the need for survey 
stakes. One set of survey stakes will be provided for each operation. The Contractor shall 
be responsible for preserving survey stakes and marks and if any survey stakes or marks 
are destroyed or disturbed by the Contractor due to construction, the Contractor will be 
charged for the cost of replacing them.

270

Item 23.



25

04 Borrow and Waste Sites
Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1070 – 2.13:

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide waste areas or disposal sites for excess 
material which is not desirable to be incorporated in the work involved on this project 
(excavation or broken concrete). No payment for overhaul will be allowed for material 
hauled to these sites. The Engineer shall review all proposed disposal sites and determine 
the acceptability of each. Overhaul will not be measured or paid for but will be considered 
incidental to pavement removal or roadway excavation on this project.

05 Subletting or Assignment of Contract

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.01:

The Contractor's own organization shall perform work amounting to not less than thirty five 
(35%) percent of the total contract cost unless otherwise specified. Item designated as a 
specialty item may be performed by subcontract, and the cost of any such specialty item as 
performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before computing the 
amount of work required by the Contractor's organization. 

06 Contract Time

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.02:

The work on the Contract shall commence ten calendar days after the date set forth in the 
written Notice to Proceed and shall be completed within One Hundred Twenty  (120) 
working days as set forth in the written Notice to Proceed.

07 Work Progress and Schedule

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.03:

The progress of the work shall be such that at the expiration of one-fourth of the working 
days, one-eighth of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of one-half of the working 
days, three-eighths of the work shall be completed; at the expiration of three-fourths of the 
working days, the work shall be three-fourths completed, and the whole work shall be 
completed at the expiration of the working days.

08 Weekly Record of Working Days

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.06:

Work shall not begin before 7:00 a.m. and shall stop at sunset. Work on Sundays and 
Holidays shall only be allowed after prior written approval by the Engineer.

271

Item 23.



26

09 Liquidated Damages

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1080 – 1.12:

Liquidated damages in the amount of One Thousand  ($1000.00) dollars per working day 
will be assessed for each working day that the work remains uncompleted after the 
expiration of the contract time.

10 Progress Payments and Vouchers

Add the following to Standard Specification Section 1090 – 1.01:

Pay estimates will be submitted to the City Council for approval on the First and Third 
Mondays of each month.

Payment to the Contractor will be made in cash from such cash funds of said City as may 
be legally used for said purposes, including the proceeds of the Local Option Tax and
General Obligation Bonds. Any other combination of funds may be used at the discretion of 
the City Council.

Before final payment is made, the Contractor shall furnish vouchers showing that all 
subcontractors and all persons furnishing labor and materials have been fully paid for such 
materials and labor and that the City may retain the last month's payment for a period of 
ninety (90) calendar days following such completion and approval, unless satisfied that 
material and laborers have been paid in full.

11 Pollution Prevention Plan

1. Site Description

The proposed Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project involves  installation of a lift 
station on Minnetonka Dr in Cedar Falls, IA, installation of 498 LF of force main, 166 LF of 
gravity sewer, and 66 LF of water main. The project also includes replacement of storm 
sewer and subdrain, PCC pavement and sidewalks, landscaping, electrical work, erosion 
control, seeding, and other miscellaneous items required to complete the work.

Access to the site shall be from Minnetonka Dr and Oak Park Blvd.

2. Erosion and Sediment Controls 

Construction activities that disturb soils are shown in the project plan set. The primary 
means of controlling silt movement during construction is by minimizing the exposure of 
subgrade soils by way of the Erosion Control Devices shown in the plans.

Stabilizing of all disturbed areas shall be by sodding or seeding as shown in the Project 
plan as soon as practical after completion of the backfilling of the curbs and/or the 

272

Item 23.



27

placement of the topsoil. The Contractor shall be responsible for installation and 
maintenance of all erosion control measures as described in the Project plan. The 
Contractor may elect to delegate portions of these tasks to subcontractors.

All contractors operating on the site shall take efforts to prevent contamination of storm 
water runoff, groundwater and soils by hazardous material and/or pollutants caused by 
work operations or encountered in their work. All waste building materials and supplies 
must be removed from the site. If construction equipment maintenance or repair is 
performed on the site, provisions must be made to capture and remove any lubricants or 
other fluids.

The Contractor shall notify the Owner immediately upon finding a hazardous material 
contamination either existing at the site or caused by construction activities.

Each and every Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner to:
1. Execute Contractor’s part of the Pollution Prevention Plan as described.
2. Conduct all activities to not damage an existing erosion control measure or 

stabilizing vegetation.  If damages occur, the Contractor shall make repairs 
with no additional cost to the Owner.

3. Coordinate with the Owner for installation of additional erosion control 
measures that may be needed during construction.

3. Storm Water Management 

Storm water shall be routed by means of concrete curb intakes and storm sewer. Concrete 
and plastic pipes shall be used to channel water from curb intakes to the existing main 
storm sewer pipes. The storm sewer pipes will range in size up to 48-inch diameter.  
Longitudinal sub-drains shall be included behind the curb line on both sides of the street. 
The sub-drains shall tie into the concrete curb intakes. The storm water collection system 
was designed for the 5-year storm water event in accordance with local design standards. 
Temporary sediment basins were not incorporated because of the limited area exposed in 
each stage of street construction. Sediment filters shall be incorporated in specific intakes 
to serve as sediment control structures during each stage. Storm water runoff volumes will 
not change as a result of the street construction project, but storm water runoff shall be 
managed during construction to minimize erosion.

4. Pollution Prevention Plan Reporting and Updates

The Owner or a representative is to insure compliance with the Pollution Prevention Plan 
will carry out regular inspections. Owner designated and qualified personnel will inspect 
disturbed areas of the construction site that have not reached “final stabilization” at least 
once every seven (7) calendar days. Owner will be responsible for executing the Plan 
towards the goal of a stabilized site. Owner will make determination of Contractors 
compliance with the plan and may direct additional measures to be taken by any 
Contractor. When a plan deficiency or the occurrence of a pollutant entering the drainage 

273

Item 23.



28

system is observed, corrective action shall be taken. The Pollution Prevention Plan will be 
revised and modifications made to the control facilities as needed.

Intermittent reports based on site observation will be made and will become part of the 
pollution prevention plan. A final report and Notice of Discontinuation will be filed 30 days 
after final stabilization of the project has occurred.

5. Certification Statement

N.P.D.E.S. CERTIFICATION

PROJECT NO. SA-002-3182

Contractor certifies under penalty of law that they understand the terms and conditions of 
the general National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that 
authorizes the storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the 
construction site as part of this certification. Further, by signing and entering into contract 
for this work, the contractor understands that they are becoming a co-permittee, along with 
the owner(s) and other contractors and subcontractors, to the Iowa Department of Natural 
Resources NPDES General Permit No. 2 for “Storm Water Discharge Associated with 
Industrial Activity for Construction Activities” at the identified site. As co-permittee, the 
contractor understands that they and their company are legally required under the Clean 
Water Act and the Code of Iowa, to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
Storm Pollution Prevention Plan developed under this NPDES permit and the terms of this 
NPDES permit.

12        METHOD OF MEASUREMENT

The Engineer will measure the items of work that have been acceptably constructed as 
specified in the contract documents for the Oak Park Blvd Sewer Replacement Project in 
accordance with the 2023 Edition of the SUDAS and as further modified by the Current City 
of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications of the SUDAS Statewide Urban Design and 
Specifications Program and the special provisions included in the contract documents.

13 BASIS OF PAYMENT

Payment for the items listed in the Method of Measurement shall be determined by 
multiplying the item quantity (as determined in the Method of Measurement) by the unit 
price as bid on the proposal form in accordance with the 2023 Edition of the SUDAS and as 
further modified by the Current City of Cedar Falls’ Supplemental Specifications to SUDAS.

274

Item 23.



29

DIVISION 3

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

The City of Cedar Falls has adopted the 2023 Edition of the STATEWIDE URBAN 
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS (SUDAS) as the City’s 
Standard Specification.

This Standard Specification is amended by the “City of Cedar Falls” Current Supplemental 
Specifications to SUDAS. 

Links to both documents can be found on the City’s website at:
www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards  

275

Item 23.

http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards
http://www.cedarfalls.com/designstandards


30

DIVISION 4

SUPPLEMENTAL PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS
All work shall be constructed as specified in the Contract documents for the Oak Park Blvd 
Sewer Replacement Project in accordance with the 2023 Edition of the SUDAS as 
amended by the City of Cedar Falls’ Current Supplemental Specifications to t SUDAS, 
except as amended or supplemented as follows:

Division 2 – Earthwork

Part 3 – Execution

ADD 3.10 STRUCTURE REMOVALS

1. Contractor to remove the existing aerial sanitary sewer crossing structure located between Oak 

Park Blvd. and Minnetonka Dr.  Structure removal includes, but is not limited to, the removal of 

concrete footings, truss beam, wooden beam, and protective tarp.

2. Aerial structure footings shall be removed no deeper than one (1) foot below the existing ground 

elevation.

3. Contractor to haul and dispose of aerial crossing structure after removal.  Disposal shall be in 

accordance with all rules and regulations set forth by the City of Cedar Falls and the State of 

Iowa.

Division 3 – Trench Excavation and Backfill

SECTION 3010:  Trench Excavation and Backill

MODIFY Part 1 – General as follows:

1.03 SUBMITTALS

C. Submit a dewatering operation plan including methods and discharge points.  Select suitable 

discharge locations to prevent damage or flooding of private or public property.  Submit a 

dewatering plan to the Engineer for review prior to construction.

D. Submit a trench sheeting, shoring, and bracing plan prepared by a licensed Professional Engineer 

in the State of Iowa for excavations greater than twenty (20) feet in depth.  Submission shall 

include a drawing indicating materials and dimensions of the sheeting, shoring, and bracing 

materials as well as a plan and cross section view of the excavation which the sheeting, shoring, 

and bracing is necessary.

ADD Part 1 – General as follows:

1.07 SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

276

Item 23.



31

A. Construction site dewatering may require a variety of permits depending on dewatering 

methods. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining all permits necessary to dewater the 

construction site prior to the beginning of these operations (including fee payments).  The 

Contractor shall be fully liable for all fines applied to the project for not acquiring proper permits 

prior to construction or failure to meet the conditions of the permits set forth therein.  The 

following is a partial list of permits and/or requirements that may be necessary:

1. Iowa DNR National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit No. 

6 for well construction and well service discharges if discharge from well construction 

reaches waters of the United States of America.

2. Iowa DNR General Permit No. 9

1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

A.  General

1. Hazardous waste disposal including, but not limited to, removal and disposal of all 

hazardous materials from the project site to comply with all local, state, and federal law. 

 A waste is determined to be hazardous if it is specifically listed on one of four lists (F, K, 

P, and U) found in title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) in Section 261.

SECTION 3020:  TRENCHLESS CONSTRUCTION

ADD Part 1 – General as follows:

1.03 SUBMITTALS

E.  Provide a contingency plan that includes actions that will be taken in case any surface subsidence, 

subsurface difficulties, above normal groundwater or surface water conditions, running sands, 

or solid rock (including bedrock) present themselves.

F.  Plan showing location and arrangement of the tunneling and receiving pits including details on pit 

construction that illustrate equipment used, installation methods, handling of excavated 

materials, backfilling of pits, and certified sheeting and shoring plan prepared by a licensed 

Professional Engineer in the State of Iowa if pit exceeds 20-feet in depth.

1.09 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

No price adjustment or additional compensation will be made for variations in the rate of tunnel 

production, amount of dewatering, removal of rock (including bed rock), debris, cobbles, boulders, 

or other subterranean objects.

ADD Part 3 – Execution as follows:

3.04 TRENCHLESS INSTALLATION

E.  Should a solid rock face, debris, or boulder(s) be encountered the Contractor shall notify the 

277

Item 23.



32

Engineer of the conditions encountered immediately.

Division 4 – Sewers and Drains

Section 4010 – Sanitary Sewers

MODIFY Part 1 – General as follows:

1.08 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

A.  Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main:

1. Trenched:

c. Includes:  Unit price includes, but is not limited to, furnishing and installing pipe; trench 

excavation, dewatering, furnishing bedding material, placing bedding and backfilling 

material, wyes, and other fittings, pipe joints, pipe connections, testing, bypass 

pumping, and inspection.

2. Trenchless:

c. Includes:  Unit price includes, but is not limited to, furnishing and installing pipe; 

trenchless installation materials and equipment, pit excavation, dewatering, and placing 

backfill material; pipe connections; bypass pumping; testing; and inspection.

C. Sanitary Sewer Force Main:

1. Trenched

c. Includes: Unit price includes, but is not limited to, trench excavation; dewatering; 

furnishing and installing pipe; furnishing, placing, and compacting bedding and backfill; 

wyes and other fittings; tracer wire and tracer wire stations installed at no greater 

distance than manufacturer’s recommendations; pipe joints; testing; and inspection.

2. Trenchless

c. Includes: Unit price includes, but is not limited to, furnishing and installing pipe; 

trenchless installation materials and equipment; pit excavation; dewatering; placing and 

compacting backfill material; ; tracer wire and tracer wire stations installed at no 

greater distance than manufacturer’s recommendations; pipe connections; testing; and 

inspection.

ADD 2.02 Sanitary Sewer Force Mains

F. High-Density Polyethylene Pipe (HDPE) ¾ in. to 3 in.:

1. Material:  AWWA C901-17 or AWW C906-15

2. Thickness: SDR 13.5

278

Item 23.



33

3. Joints: Heat Fusion, Mechanical Joint Where Required

4. Fittings: Mechanical Joint as Required

G. Solid Wall Polyvinyl Chloride Pipe (PVC) Smaller than 4 in.:

1. Material:  ASTM D-1785

2. Thickness: Sch 80

3. Joints: Solvent Weld

4. Fittings: Solvent Weld

REPLACE 2.02 Sanitary Sewer Force Mains - C. Sewage Air Release Valve

1. Scope

i. This specification is intended to cover the design, manufacture, and testing of 1 in. (25 mm) 

through 8 in. (200 mm) Wastewater Combination Air Valves suitable for pressures up to 150 

psig (1000 kPa).

ii. Wastewater Combination Air Valves shall be automatic float operated valves designed to 

exhaust large quantities of air during the filling of a piping system and close upon liquid entry. 

The valve shall open during draining or if a negative pressure occurs. The valve shall also 

release accumulated air from a piping system while the system is in operation and under 

pressure. The valve shall perform the functions of both Wastewater Air Release and 

Wastewater Air/Vacuum Valves and furnished as a single body or dual body type as indicated 

on the plans.

2. Standards, Approvals and Verification

i. Valves shall be manufactured and tested in accordance with American Water Works 

Association (AWWA) Standard C512.

ii. Manufacturer shall have a quality management system that is certified to ISO 9001 by an 

accredited, certifying body.

3. Connections

i. Single body valves sizes 4 in. (100 mm) and smaller shall have full size NPT inlets and outlets 

equal to the nominal valve size with a 2 in. (50 mm) inlet on 1 in. (25 mm) valves. The body inlet 

connections shall be hexagonal for a wrench connection. The body shall have 2” NPT cleanout 

and 1” NPT drain connection on the side of the casting.

ii. Dual body valves sizes 3 in. (75 mm) and smaller shall have full size NPT inlets and outlets equal 

to the nominal valve size with a 2 in. (50 mm) inlet on 1 in. (25 mm) valves. The body inlet 

connection shall be hexagonal for a wrench connection. Valve sizes 4 in. (100 mm) through 6 in. 

(150mm) shall have bolted flanged inlets and NPT outlets. 8 in. (200 mm) valves shall have 

flanged inlets and outlets. Flanges shall be in accordance with ANSI B16.1 for Class 125 iron 

flanges.

iii. The valve shall have three additional NPT connections for the addition of backwash accessories.

4. Design

i. Both single and dual body valves shall provide an extended body with a through flow area 

equal to the nominal size. Floats shall be unconditionally guaranteed against failure including 

279

Item 23.



34

pressure surges. A resilient bumper shall be provided on 4 in. (100 mm) and larger sizes to 

cushion the float during sudden opening conditions. The seat shall provide drop tight shut off 

to the full valve pressure rating.

ii. Dual body valves shall consist of a Wastewater Air Release Valve piped to a Wastewater 

Air/Vacuum Valve with a full-ported brass ball valve.

a. The Wastewater Air Release Valve shall have an extended leverage mechanism with 

sufficient mechanical advantage so that the valve will open under full operating 

pressure. An adjustable threaded resilient orifice button shall be used to seal the 

precision discharge orifice in the cover.

b. The Wastewater Air/Vacuum Valve sizes 4 in. (100 mm) and larger shall have a cover 

fitted to the valve body by means of a machined register to maintain concentricity 

between the top and bottom guide bushings at all times. The tandem float assembly 

shall have a hexagonal guide shaft supported in the body by circular bushings to prevent 

binding from debris. The upper float shall be protected against direct water impact by 

an internal baffle. The seat shall be a minimum of .5 in. (12 mm) thick on 2 in. (50 mm) 

and larger valves and secured in such a manner as to prevent distortion.

iii. Single body valves shall have a full port orifice, a double guided plug, and an adjustable 

threaded orifice button. The 1 in. (25 mm) body shall be globe style to increase float clearance 

and reduce clogging. The plug shall be protected against direct water impact by an internal 

baffle and an extended float stem. The plug shall have a precision orifice drilled through the 

center stem. The float shall include a sensitivity skirt to minimize spillage.

5. Materials

i. The valve body and cover shall be constructed of ASTM A126 Class B cast iron.

ii. The float, plug, guide shafts, and bushings shall be constructed of Type 316 stainless steel. Non-

metallic guides and bushings are not acceptable. Resilient seats shall be Buna-N.

6. Options

i. Backwash accessories shall be furnished when specified and shall consist of an inlet shut-off 

valve, a blow-off valve, a clean water inlet valve, rubber supply hose, and quick disconnect 

couplings. Accessory valves shall be quarter-turn, full ported bronze ball valves.

ii. An optional Regulated Exhaust Device shall be provided when specified to reduce pressure 

surges due to column separation or rapid changes in velocity and pressure in the pipeline.

a. The Regulated Exhaust Device shall be mounted on the outlet of the Wastewater 

Combination Air Valve, allow free air flow in and out of the valve, close upon rapid air 

exhaust, and control the air exhaust rate to reduce pressure surges.

b. The device shall have a threaded or flanged globe-style body with a center guided disc 

and seat assembly. The disc shall have threaded holes to provide adjustment of the air 

exhaust rate through the valve. The holes shall provide for a flow area of 5% of the 

nominal valve size.

c. The material of the body shall be consistent with the Wastewater Combination Air Valve. 

The seat and disc shall be ASTM A351 Grade CF8M stainless steel.

iii. Optional body materials include ASTM A536 Grade 65-45-12 ductile iron, ASTM A351 Grade 

CF8M stainless steel, and ASTM B584 Alloy 836 cast bronze.

iv. Valve interiors and exteriors shall be coated with an NSF/ANSI 61 certified fusion bonded epoxy 

in accordance with AWWA C550 when specified.

280

Item 23.



35

v. Low Durometer seat and orifice button shall be furnished for low pressure applications.

7. Manufacturer

i. The manufacturer shall demonstrate a minimum of (5) years’ experience in the manufacture of 

wastewater air valves. The valves shall be manufactured and tested in accordance with 

American Water Works Association Standard (AWWA) C512. When requested, the 

manufacturer shall provide test certificates, dimensional drawings, parts list drawings, and 

operation and maintenance manuals.

ii. The exterior of the valve shall be coated with a universal alkyd primer.

iii. Wastewater Combination Air Valves shall be Series 800 or 48A/300 as manufactured by Val-

Matic Valve and Manufacturing Corporation, Elmhurst, Il, USA or approved equal.

ADD Part 3 – Execution as follows:

3.14 BYPASS PUMPING

Comply with bypass pumping per Section 4050 3.02.

Section 4050 – Pipe Rehabilitation

ADD 3.02 – Bypassing Sewage

D. Contractor shall furnish, install and operate temporary sewage bypass conveyance methods 

at such times, locations, and durations as necessary to complete the work and maintain 

continuous flow of raw sewage.

E. Contractor shall obtain Owner agreement on means and methods to ensure continuous 

sewage conveyance without causing backup, and operations and emergency response.  

Contractor remains solely responsible for means and methods.

F. Contractor shall be available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week during bypass conveyance to 

ensure sewage backup will not occur.  Provide temporary failure/backup alarm system.  

Provide personnel and response equipment within a maximum 20 minute response time.

G. Provide multiple pumps.  If more than one pump is used at a bypass connection, contractor 

shall provide above-grade temporary discharge header as needed.  A minimum of one pump 

shall be provided at each bypass pump connection.  

END OF SECTION

281

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 1

SECTION 33 32 16

PACKAGED UTILITY WASTEWATER PUMPING STATIONS

PART 1- GENERAL

1.01 - DESCRIPTION

A. This section includes furnishing and installing a duplex submersible centrifugal sewage grinder 
pump station with remote mounted control panel for pumping raw sewage.

B. The pumping system shall be provided to the jobsite complete with all controls, accessories 
and other appurtenances as specified and as required for a complete operating installation.

1.02 – SUBMITTALS

A. Shop drawings: complete fabrication and installation drawings; including layout, dimensions, 
component dimensions, weights, details, installation information necessary to show 
compliance with specifications, and recommended installation procedures.  

B. Engineering calculations: as necessary to show compliance with the specifications.

C. Maintenance and operation instructions.

1. Submit three copies of manufacturer’s maintenance and operation instructions.

2. Include parts list and lubrication instructions.

1.03 – PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Deliver equipment in manufacturer’s original unopened protective packaging or skids.

B. Cover and store equipment above ground so as to keep free from water or other deteriorating 
elements.

C. Handle carefully to prevent equipment damage during installation.

1.04 – QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The manufacturer shall provide evidence of satisfactory performance on a minimum of ten (10) 
similar projects of equal service conditions for a minimum period of five (5) years in the United 
States.  Submit past project lists with Owner contact name/phone number data.

1.06 – OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS

A. Submit operations and maintenance manuals for the equipment in compliance with the 
Contract documents, prior to shipment. Manuals shall include:
1. Name, address, and telephone number of the nearest competent service representative 

who can furnish parts and technical service.

2. Descriptive literature, including illustrations, covering the operational features of the 
equipment, specific for the particular installation, with all inapplicable information omitted 
or marked out.

3. Operating, maintenance and troubleshooting information.

4. Complete maintenance parts list.

282

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 2

5. Complete connection, interconnecting and assembly diagrams.

6. Approved shop drawings including complete electrical information.

1.07 – QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. The manufacturer shall provide evidence of satisfactory performance on a minimum of ten (10) 
similar projects of equal service conditions for a minimum period of five (5) years in the United 
States.  Submit past projects list with the Owner contact name/phone number data.

1.08 – APPROVED MANUFACTURERS

A. All of the following equipment will be supplied by single provider.

B. Pumps: HPGHHX-750 as manufactured by Pentair Hydromatic. 

C. Fiberglass Basin: Topps Industries as supplied by Allied Systems, Inc. 2200 E. Douglas Ave 
Des Moines, IA  50313.

D. Control Panel: Alderon Industries, Hawley, MN

E. Other products or substitutions require pre-approval by Engineer. No substitutions.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 PRESSURE SEWER GRINDER PACKAGE LIFT STATION

A. Two submersible centrifugal submersible grinder pumps designed to reduce all material found 
in normal domestic sewage, including plastics, rubber, sanitary napkins, and disposable 
diapers into a finely ground slurry shall be provided. 

B. The resultant slurry is then pumped through small diameter piping, gravity interceptor, or 
treatment facility. The temperature limitation of the liquid being pumped is 104°F (40°C) 
continuous.

C. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals required to provide one 
duplex submersible centrifugal sewage grinder pump(s) as specified herein.

283

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 3

D. OPERATION CONDITIONS

1. Each pump shall be rated 7.5 hp, 230 volts, 60Hz, 3 phase, and 3450 rpm.  The unit shall 

produce 43 U.S. GPM at 103 feet TDH.

E. CONSTRUCTION

1. Each pump shall be a sealed submersible type, model HPGHHX-750 manufactured by 
Pentair Hydromatic. The pump volute, motor, and seal housing shall be high-quality gray 
cast iron, ASTM A-48, Class 30. All external mating parts shall be machined and 
Nitrile O-ring sealed on a beveled edge. Gaskets shall not be acceptable. All fasteners 
exposed to the pumped liquids shall be 300 series stainless steel.

F. ELECTRICAL POWER CORD 

1. Electrical power cord shall be SOOW or W, water-resistant 600V, 90°C, UL and/or CSA 
approved and applied dependent on amp draw for size.

2. The power cable entry into the cord cap assembly shall first be made with a compression 
fitting. Each individual lead shall be stripped down to bare wire, at staggered intervals, 
and each strand shall be individually separated. This area of the cord cap shall then be 
fitted with an epoxy compound potting which will prevent water contamination to gain 
entry even in the event of wicking or capillary attraction.

3. The power cord leads shall then be connected to the motor leads with extra heavy 
connectors having brass inserts with a screwed wire-to-wire connection.

G. MOTOR 

1. The stator, rotor, and bearings shall be mounted in a sealed submersible type 
housing. The stator windings shall have Class F insulation (155°C or 311°F) and a 
dielectric oil-filled motor, NEMA B design (three-phase), NEMA L design (single-
phase).

2. The pump and motor shall be specifically designed so that they may be operated partially 
dry or completely submerged in the liquid being pumped.

3. Stators shall be securely held in place with a removable end ring and threaded fasteners. 
No special tools shall be required for pump and motor disassembly.

4. Pump shall be equipped with heat sensors. The heat sensor(s) (one on single-phase, two 
on three-phase) shall be a low resistance, bimetal disc that is temperature sensitive. It 
(they) shall be mounted directly in the stator and sized to open at 120°C or 130°C and 
automatically reset at 30–35°C differential. The sensor shall be connected in series with 
the motor starter coil so that the starter is tripped if a heat sensor opens. The motor 
starter shall be equipped with overload heaters so all normal overloads are protected by 
an external heater block.

H. BEARINGS AND SHAFT

1. An upper radial bearing and a lower thrust bearing shall be required. These shall be 
permanently lubricated by the dielectric oil that fills the motor housing.

2. The shaft shall be machined from a solid 416 stainless steel and be a design that is of 
large diameter with minimum overhand to reduce shaft deflection and prolong bearing 
life.

284

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 4

I. SEALS AND SENSORS

1. The rotor and stator in the motor housing shall be separated and protected from the 
pumped liquid by an oil-filled seal housing incorporating two type 21 carbon ceramic 
mechanical seals mounted in tandem. This seal housing shall be equipped with 2 
moisture sensing probes installed between the seals, and the sensing of moisture in the 
seal chamber shall be automatic, continuous, and not require the pump be stopped or 
removed from the wet well.

J. IMPELLERS

                                     

1. Impeller shall be 316 stainless steel multivane, semi-open, non-overloading design. They 
can either be factory or field trimmed to meet specific performance conditions. Impellers 
shall be dynamically balanced at the factory and machined for threading on to the pump 
shaft.

K. GRINDER CUTTERS 

1. The combination centrifugal pump impeller and grinder unit shall be attached to the 
common motor and pump shaft made of 416 stainless steel. The grinder unit shall be on 
the suction side of the pump impeller and discharge directly into the impeller inlet, leaving 
no exposed shaft to permit packing of ground solids. The grinder shall consist of two 
stages. The cutting action of the second stage shall be perpendicular to the plane of the 
first cut for better control of the particle size. The grinder shall be capable of grinding 
normal domestic sewage. Both stationary and rotating cutters shall be made of 440C 
stainless steel hardened to Rockwell 60C and ground to close tolerance.

2. The upper (axial) cutter and stationary cutter ring shall be reversible to provide new 
cutting edges to double life. The stationary cutter ring shall be a slip fit into the suction 
opening of the volute and held in place by three (3) 300 series stainless steel screws and 
a retaining ring. The lower (radial) cutter shall macerate the solids against the I.D. of the 
cutter ring and extrude them through the slots of the cutter ring. The upper (axial) cutter 
shall cut off the extrusions, as they emerge from the slots of the cutter ring to eliminate 
any roping effect that may occur in single stage cutting action. The upper (axial) cutter 
shall fit over the hub of the impeller and the lower (radial) cutter shall be slip fit and 
secured by means of peg and hole and rotate simultaneously with the rotation of the shaft 
and impeller. The grinding mechanism shall be locked to the shaft by a 300 series 
stainless steel countersunk washer in conjunction with a 300 series stainless steel flat 
head cap screw threaded into the end of the shaft.

L. TESTING

1. Commercial testing shall be required and include the following:

a. The pump shall be visually inspected to confirm that it is built in accordance with the 
specification as to HP, voltage, phase and hertz.

b. The motor and seal housing chambers shall be hi-potted to test for moisture content 
and/or insulation defects.

2. Pump shall be allowed to run dry to check for proper rotation.

3. Discharge piping shall be attached, the pump submerged in water and amp readings shall 
be taken in each leg to check for an unbalanced stator winding. If there is a significant 
difference in readings, the stator windings shall be checked with a bridge to determine if 
an unbalanced resistance exists. If so, the stator will be replaced.

285

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 5

M. PAINT

1. The pump shall be painted with waterborne hybrid acrylic/alkyd paint. This custom 
engineered, quick dry paint shall provide superior levels of corrosion and chemical 
protection.

2.03 – FRP BASIN

A. Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment and performance of all work necessary 
or incidental to furnish and install a duplex prefabricated fiberglass reinforced polyester (FRP) 
Lift station. The lift station shall be completely factory-assembled unit, requiring minor 
adjustments and reassembly on site.

B. Basis of bids is Topps Industries, or pre-approved equal.

C. Basin 

1. FRP Materials shall be a Vinyl Ester Fiberglass Laminate consisting of a chop spray 
interior liner that protects the chop hoop filament wound structural exterior.  The inner 
surface shall have a resin rich inner surface free of cracks and with smooth finish with no 
more than two pits per square foot (average) providing pits are less than 0.125 inches in 
diameter and 0.3125 inches in depth. 

2. The Basin shall have a fiberglass encased steel anti floatation ring.

3. A concrete collar is required on and around the anti-floatation ring.

4. The top of the basin will have an aluminum cover with hatches for pumps and access to 
valve vault.  

 
5. The top cover shall be fitted with a mushroom vent cap with insect screen.

D. Discharge Piping 

1. The pumps shall be fitted to a cast iron base elbow and sealing flange.  Discharge shall 
be 3”.

2. Discharge piping: 3” diameter Sch 80 PVC inside the basin.

3. There shall be two 3” Plug Valves w/handle constructed of stainless steel with handwheel 
shall be installed for isolating a line for servicing of pump or check valve. 

4. There shall be two 3” Swing Check Valves constructed of stainless steel to prevent back 
flow to non operating pump(s). 

5. Link seals shall be included for piping passing through basin walls that separate the 
pump well and valve vault as well as discharge of the valve vault. 

E. Lifting System 

1. The pumps will have a lifting bail and lifting cable capable of at least twice the weight of 
the pumps.  Bail and cable shall be 304SS. 

286

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 6

F. Accessories 

1. The pump well shall include a composite electrical hub, 2 inch. 

2. The inlet to pump well shall be an 8” composite hub for PVC pipe. Field caulking will be 
required.

2.04 – MOTOR CONTROL PANEL (FURNISHED BY OWNER INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR)

A. Furnish one Duplex Control Panel to operate two pump motors and auxiliary accessories for 
manual or automatic operation.  The panel enclosure will be Nema 3R equipped with a 3 point 
padlockable handle.  The enclosure will be stainless steel.  The sub panel shall be painted 
white.

B. The control system will operate on 230 volts, 60 hertz, single phase power supply.  Pump 
control components shall be sized to operate pump motors of 7.5 horsepower with 21 FLA at 
proper RPM. VFDs shall be used for phase conversion to 3/60/230 volt.

C. The Control Panel shall include the following components for operating two pump motors.

1. Motor Circuit Breakers which provides disconnect and over current protection.  The 
disconnect will be operable through the door and be interlocked with the door such that 
the door cannot be opened when the disconnect is in the on position.

2. Variable Frequency Drives sized to the motor horsepower.  The drives shall convert 
single phase input to three phase output to operate the pump motors. The VFDs shall be 
Toshiba S15 UF S1F-20175 PM W1.

3. The panel shall include Controls to control operation of the pumps. Control will only 
permit operation of one pump at any time.

4. Float level control shall operate the pumps.

5. Indicator lights for Pump On and Seal Fail indication.  Indicator lights shall be heavy duty 
oil tight rated for Nema class of enclosure.

6. Elapsed Timer meters for each pump.  Meters will measure hours of operation be heavy 
duty and rated for the Nema 1 class of the enclosure.

7. Terminal strip to provide ease in connection of external components.

8. Float level control system comprised of five (5) float switches and cord holding bracket.

D. Condensate heater shall be included to maintain > 50F internal panel temperature. The duplex 
float system is designed to start a pump on an increase in liquid level as sensed by level 
controller.  The pump continues to run until it is no longer needed, as sensed by the level 
controller. If the level continues to rise the level controller or High Float switch, a high-level 
indicator alarm circuit will be energized.  

E. In the event of a pump malfunction due to motor overload tripping, the other pump will be 
started automatically by the transformer-switching relay.

F. Alternation of pumps will be automated via alternator relay with selector switch to indicate 
Pump 1 lead or Pump 2 lead or Alternation of Pump 1 and 2.

287

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 7

G. Panel shall also include a top mounted high alarm-flashing indicator light in protected housing 
along with alarm horn with push to silence/acknowledge alarm condition.

H. The Panel will be mounted on 18” high base stand, which the contractor shall anchor to 
concrete base.

I. The control shall include the following features and components.

Enclosure, Steel, Saginaw, 72''X36''X24'', 3 PT Padlockable Latch

Steel, Saginaw Mounting Feet 18"H x 24"D

Inner Deadfront Door

3R Fan PF 65000 R P/N - 11665153115 - no hoods required

3R PF 65000 R "A" Reversing Fan P/N - 11665153116 - no hoods required

Cooling Fan Thermostat, Overcurrent Protection

Saginaw, 125 Watt Thermostat Anti Condensation Heater w/ Overcurrent Protection

Under Voltage Relay

1 Phase Surge Capacitor

1 Phase Lighting Arrestor

Main/Generator Circuit Breakers - Mechanical Interlock - SERVICE ENTRANCE RATED

Reverse Service Generator Receptacle – Crouse Hinds Model APJ6485SS55 cord mounted shipped loose

Control & Alarm Circuit Breakers

Heavy Duty 22mm HOA Switch

Heavy Duty 22mm Pump Run Indicator - Green

Seal Fail Relay w/ Heavy Duty Indicator

Thermal Cutout Circuit w/ Heavy Duty Indicator

15 Amp GFI Convenience Receptacle w/Overcurrent protection

Pump Cycle & Elapsed Time Meter

Pump/Motor Fused Disconnect Switch With Interlock Handle, Class J Fuses

VFD Fusing

 Toshiba VFD's - VFS15-2110PM-W1

Customer Supplied Telemetry and UPS Zetron radio

Steady On - Ingram SunBurst 120VAC Led Alarm Light - Red

Normally Open Push Button 22mm - Silence, Alarm Reset

The Sounder Ingram Buzzer, 4''X4'' Square, Red

Alarm Dry Contacts - High Level, Low Level, Seal Fail 1, Seal Fail 2, Pump 1 Run, Pump 2 Run

5 Float Intrinsically Safe Float Circuits With Barrier(s)

Crouzet Alternating Smart Relay, 16I/10O, With Pump & Alarm History - In Generator mode only run 1 VFD 
at a time.

22mm Selector Switch - Single pump per cycle or Duplex Lead and Lag

30' Weighted Mechanical Float Switches

288

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 8

Required Terminal Blocks/Control Relays/Wire Duct

Ground Bar, 9 Space 14-10 AWG

UL Label -698A - Intrinsically Safe

2.06 – REMOTE TELEMETRY UNIT

1. The City will supply a Zetron branded RTU for mounting and wiring by the control 
manufacturer.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 – INSTALLATION

A. Install equipment in accordance with manufacturer’s recommendations and as shown on plans.

B. Test pumps as specified.

C. Manufacturer’s representative to inspect installation and witness pump and VFD tests as 
specified.

3.02 PUMP TEST: The pump manufacturer shall perform the following inspections and tests:

1. A check of the motor voltage and frequency shall be made as shown on the name plate. 

2. A motor and cable insulation test for moisture content or insulation defects shall be made 
per CSA criteria. 

3. The pump shall be completely submerged and run to determine that the unit meets three 
pre-determined hydraulic performance points. 

B. START-UP: The pump (s) shall be tested at start-up by a qualified representative of the 
manufacturer. A start-up report as provided by the manufacturer shall be completed before 
final acceptance of the pump (s). 

289

Item 23.



\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\Specifications\333216_FacilityPumpingStations.doc

33 32 16 - 9

C. DOCUMENTATION: The manufacturer, if requested, will supply a minimum of three (3) sets of 
standard submittal data; Standard submittal data consist of:

1. Pump catalog data
2. Pump performance curve 
3. Break Away Fitting (BAF) data 
4. Cover data 
5. Typical installation drawing 
6. Control panel data 
7. Panel wiring schematic 
8. Accessory data 
9. Installation & Operation Manuals with Parts List

3.03 – FIELD TESTS

A. Subject each pump to 8 hours operation field test on-off (50% run time) before pump station 
start-up. 

B. Preparation: install each pump in operating position; check for proper service voltage and 
impeller rotation.

C. Dry pumping test: operate each pump with maximum 2 foot of water above centerline of pump 
volute for 60 minutes continuously with pump connected to discharge piping.

D. No external liquid or air source permitted for cooling pump or motor.

E. Manufacturer’s representative and Engineer must be present during dry pumping test.

F. Pumps subject to rejection by Engineer for excessive noise, vibration, heat or seizing; replace 
rejected pump and repeat tests until pump is accepted.

3.04 – START-UP AND ADJUSTMENT

A. Contractor shall be responsible for start-up and check-out of control system with control system 
supplier as required to fine tune system in order to assure that a complete and efficiently 
working system is turned over to the Owner.

B. System check-out shall be in presence of Engineer to verify proper operation of system.

C. The installation of equipment shall be inspected by supplier to validate warranty

END OF SECTION 33 32 16

290

Item 23.



DIVISION 5

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING REPORT

291

Item 23.



REPORT COVER PAGE

Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

 Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019

Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Prepared for:
Snyder & Associates, Inc.

Cedar Rapids, Iowa

Prepared by:
Terracon Consultants, Inc.

Cedar Falls, Iowa

292

Item 23.



293

Item 23.



Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 1

REPORT TOPICS

INTRODUCTION ............................................................................................................. 1

PROJECT INFORMATION ............................................................................................. 2

GEOTECHNICAL CHARACTERIZATION ...................................................................... 3

GEOTECHNICAL OVERVIEW ....................................................................................... 5

EARTHWORK................................................................................................................. 5

SHALLOW FOUNDATIONS ........................................................................................... 7

DEEP FOUNDATIONS ................................................................................................... 9

SEISMIC CONSIDERATIONS ...................................................................................... 10

LATERAL EARTH PRESSURES ................................................................................. 10

SLOPE STABILITY....................................................................................................... 12

GENERAL COMMENTS ............................................................................................... 15

ATTACHMENTS ........................................................................................................... 17
	

ATTACHMENTS

EXPLORATION AND TESTING PROCEDURES
SITE LOCATION AND EXPLORATION PLANS
EXPLORATION RESULTS
SUPPORTING INFORMATION

294

Item 23.



Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 1

INTRODUC TION

Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

Minnetonka Drive and Oak Park Boulevard
Cedar Falls, Iowa

Terracon Project No. 13185123.02
May 9, 2019

INTRODUCTION

This report presents the results of our subsurface exploration and geotechnical engineering
services performed for a sanitary sewer ravine crossing located at Minnetonka Drive and Oak
Park Boulevard in Cedar Falls, Iowa. The purpose of these services is to provide information and
geotechnical engineering recommendations relative to:

■ Subsurface soil conditions ■ Stability of the ravine slopes
■ Groundwater conditions ■ Remedial measures for the slope failure
■ Earthwork ■ Seismic site classification per IBC
■ Foundation design and construction

The geotechnical engineering Scope of Services for this project included the advancement of two
soil borings to depths of about 50 feet below existing grades. Maps showing the site and boring
locations are shown in the attached Site Location and Exploration Plans. The results of
laboratory testing performed on portions of soil samples obtained from the borings are included
on the boring logs and as separate graphs in the attached Exploration Results.

295

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 2

PROJECT INFORMATION

Item Description

Location The project site is located at the ravine between Minnetonka Drive and
Oak Park Boulevard in Cedar Falls, Iowa.  See Site Location

Existing improvements A sanitary sewer and its support structure are present across the ravine. A
manhole is also present near the crest of the west ravine slope.

Current ground cover Lawns, various vegetation, trees, and some surface fill (cobbles/boulders)
are present at the surface of the site.

Existing Topography

Based on the contours illustrated on the Existing Features drawing dated
March 25, 2019, provided by Snyder & Associates via email, it appears that
about 30 to 35 feet of elevation difference exists between the crests and
toes of the ravine slopes.
Locally, slope inclinations appear to vary from near vertical in the area of
the failure to about 2.5 Horizontal to 1 Vertical (2.5H:1V).

Slope Failure

The west ravine slope failed at the toe of the slope. Based on our field
observation, the sanitary sewer support structure at the west slope, which
consists of a rectangular concrete section with embedded steel section,
also failed. The entire length of the footing/pier support is exposed and
appeared to be embedded about several feet below the original grade near
the middle portion of the west slope height. The scarp in the slope is shown
in Figure1 below.

General
Project Description

The project consists of the replacement of a section of the aerial sanitary
sewer that crosses a ravine in a residential area of Cedar Falls.

Structure Construction A steel casing for a sanitary main is planned to be constructed across the
ravine.

Preliminary
Foundation Loads

■ 2-span concept, 160-foot total length across ravine
· Abutments: 70 kips
· Center Pier: 110 kips

296

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 3

Figure 1 - West ravine slope failure with scarp marked in red

GEOTECHNICAL CHARACTERIZATION

Subsurface Profile

We have developed a general characterization of the soil and groundwater conditions based upon
our review of the subsurface exploration, laboratory data, geologic setting and our understanding
of the project. This characterization forms the basis for our geotechnical calculations and
evaluations of foundation options and ravine slope stability. Conditions encountered at each
boring location are indicated on the individual boring logs in the attached Exploration Results
section.  Subsurface conditions can be generalized as follows.

297

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 4

Stratum Description

Topsoil / Existing Fill Extended to about 2.5 to 4 feet below existing grades

1 Lean Clay, with sand, and Sandy Lean Clay, trace gravel, stiff

2 Sandy lean clay, trace gravel with occasional sand and silt seams and
layers, very stiff to hard

Groundwater Conditions

The boreholes were observed while drilling and after completion for the presence and level of
groundwater.  The water levels observed in the boreholes are provided on the boring logs in
Exploration Results, and are summarized below.

Boring No.
Approximate Depth to Groundwater

while Drilling (feet) 1

Approximate Depth to Groundwater
after Drilling (feet) 1

1 14 ---

2 16 None

1. Below ground surface

Due to the presence of fine-grained soils, a relatively long period is necessary for a groundwater
level to develop and stabilize in a borehole. Long term monitoring in cased holes or piezometers
would be required for a better evaluation of groundwater conditions and seasonal fluctuations.
Groundwater level fluctuations occur due to seasonal variations in the amount of rainfall, runoff,
and other factors not evident at the time the borings were performed. Therefore, groundwater
levels during construction or at other times during the life of the structure may vary from than the
levels indicated on the boring logs. In addition, perched water can develop within more
‘permeable’ sand and silt soils within and/or above less ‘permeable’ fine-grained soils.  The
possibility of groundwater level fluctuations and development of perched water conditions should
be considered when developing the design and construction plans for the project.

298

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 5

GEOTECHNICAL OVERVIEW

The borings performed near the crests of both ravine slopes encountered relatively uniform soil
profiles with stiff glacial deposits to about 10 feet depth below existing grades overlying very stiff to
hard glacial till. The steel casing structure will be constructed to span across the ravine and support
the new section of sanitary sewer. The loads from this structure system can be supported by a
shallow foundation, bearing on native, stiff clay soils near the slope crests. The Shallow
Foundations section provides the design and construction considerations for spread footing
foundations. Helical pier foundations are discussed in the Deep Foundations section.

It is our opinion that the ravine slope failure at the toe occurred because of the relatively steep
inclination of the slope and high phreatic surface. We recommend flattening and armoring of a
portion of the west slope toe to reduce the amount of further ground loss, as indicated in the Slope
Remediation Measures subsection of the Slope Stability section.

Site preparation recommendations including excavation and fill placement for the spread footing
foundation construction are provided in the Earthwork section. The General Comments section
provides comments regarding the limitations of this report.

EARTHWORK

Site Preparation

Vegetation, topsoil, organic materials, and any loose, soft, or otherwise unsuitable materials
should be removed from planned foundation construction areas. The debris from the failure at the
west slope toe should be removed. Debris removal from the west slope should be performed as
indicated in Slope Remediation Measures subsection of the Slope Stability section. Special care
should be taken so as not to disturb native soil below the debris.

299

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 6

Fill Material Types

Fill below and adjacent to foundations should meet the following material property requirements.

Fill Type 1 USCS Classification Acceptable Location for Placement

Imported, Low-plasticity,
Fine-grained soil

CL, CL/SC

(LL ≤ 45 and 10 ≤ PI ≤ 23) 2 Below and adjacent to foundations

Imported, Coarse-

grained/Granular Fill 3 SP, SW, GW, GP
Below foundations
> 2 feet below finished grade adjacent to
foundations

On-site soil 4 CL, CL/SC Below and adjacent to foundations

1. Fill below foundations should consist of approved materials that are free of organic matter or debris.
Frozen material should not be used, and fill should not be placed on a frozen subgrade.  Each
proposed fill material should be sampled and evaluated by the geotechnical engineer prior to its
delivery and/or use.

2. LL = Liquid Limit, PI = Plasticity Index.
3. Well-graded, free-draining granular material.  A general gradation should be 100% passing the 1½-

inch sieve, about 40 percent passing the No. 10 sieve, and less than 6 percent fines.
4. Moisture conditioning (i.e., drying) should be expected to achieve compaction requirements.

Fill Placement and Compaction Requirements

Fill should be placed and compacted in accordance with the following requirements.

Item Structural Fill

Maximum Lift Thickness 4 to 6 inches in loose thickness for hand-operated equipment (i.e.
jumping jack or plate compactor)

Minimum Compaction
Requirements 1, 2 98% of the material’s maximum dry density value

Water Content Range
from Optimum

Low plasticity, fine-grained: -2% to +3%

Coarse-grained/Granular: Workable moisture levels 2, 3

1. Maximum density and optimum water content as determined by the ‘standard Proctor’ test (ASTM D
698).

2. If the granular material is a coarse sand or gravel, or of a uniform size, or has a low fines content,
compaction comparison to relative density may be more appropriate. In this case, granular materials
should be compacted to at least 70% relative density (ASTM D 4253 and D 4254).

3. Specifically, moisture levels should be maintained low enough to allow for satisfactory compaction to
be achieved without the granular fill material bulking during placement.

300

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 7

Terracon should be retained to monitor fill placement and to perform field density tests in order to
assure compliance with the design requirements.

SHALLOW FOUNDATIONS

If the site has been prepared in accordance with the requirements in the Earthwork section and
this section, the following design parameters are applicable for shallow foundations.

Design Parameters – Compressive Loads

Item Description
Maximum
Net Allowable Bearing pressure 1, 2, 3 2,500 psf

Required Bearing Stratum 3 Stiff or very stiff native clay

Expected Bearing Depth About 9 to 10 feet below grade

Minimum Footing Widths 2 30 inches

Estimated Total Settlement 2 1 inch or less

Estimated Differential Settlement 2 ½ to ⅔ of the total settlement

Ultimate Passive Resistance 4 See Lateral Earth Pressures

Ultimate Coefficient of Sliding Friction 5 0.32 (native clay)

Minimum Embedment Depth below
Finished Grades for Frost Protection 6 60 inches

1. The maximum net allowable bearing pressure is the pressure in excess of the minimum surrounding
overburden pressure at the footing base elevation. An appropriate factor of safety has been applied.

2. Values provided are for maximum loads noted in Project Description.  A 4-foot wide strip load was
applied in the slope stability analyses.

3. Assumes all unsuitable soils or disturbed materials will removed and replaced per the
recommendations presented in the Earthwork section.

4. Use of passive earth pressures require the sides of the excavation for the spread footing foundation
to be nearly vertical and the concrete placed neat against these vertical faces or that the footing
forms be removed and properly compacted fill be placed against the vertical footing face.

5. Can be used to compute sliding resistance where foundations are placed on suitable soil/materials.
6. A minimum embedment of 5 feet from surrounding grades to the bottom of the footing is

recommended to prevent frost effects. For sloping ground, maintain depth below the lowest
surrounding grade within 5 horizontal feet of the footing.

301

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 8

Foundation Construction Considerations

The footing excavations should be observed and evaluated by Terracon personnel prior to the
placement of any fill, installation of formwork and reinforcing steel, and concrete.  The base of
foundation excavations should be free of water and disturbed/loose soil/material prior to placing
concrete. Concrete should be placed soon after excavating to reduce the potential for bearing soil
disturbance. Any water that collects within a foundation excavation should be promptly removed.
If the bearing soil/material freezes, desiccates, saturates, or is disturbed, the affected material
should be removed, prior to the placement of foundation concrete.

If unsuitable bearing soils are encountered at the base of a footing excavation, the excavation
should be extended deeper to suitable soil, and the footings could bear directly on the suitable
soil at the lower level or on lean concrete backfill extended to suitable soil, as illustrated in the
following Lean Concrete Backfill figure. If compacted fill will be placed to support a footing, the
excavation should be widened at least 8 inches beyond each footing edge for every foot of new
fill placed below the design footing level, as illustrated in the following Overexcavation / Backfill
figure. The overexcavation, from the recommended excavation level to the design footing level,
should then be backfilled with an approved material as recommended in Earthwork section.

Note: Side walls are shown vertical for ease of dimensioning.  In the field, side walls
should be sloped or braced as required by OSHA.

As a minimum, excavations should be performed in accordance with OSHA 29 CFR, Part 1926,
Subpart P, “Excavations” and its appendices, and in accordance with any applicable local, and/or
state regulations. Construction site safety is the sole responsibility of the contractor who controls
the means, methods, and sequencing of construction operations. Under no circumstances shall
the information provided herein be interpreted to mean Terracon is assuming responsibility for
construction site safety, or the contractor's activities; such responsibility shall neither be implied
nor inferred.

302

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 9

DEEP FOUNDATIONS

Helical Pier Foundations

In our opinion, augered-in-place helical piers can be used to support the sanitary sewer support
structure.  Helical piers consist of steel rods with attached helical plates that are designed to
reduce disturbance of the in-place soils.  The piers are rotated into the ground to a pre-determined
depth. Typically, the torque required to install the piers is measured and is used to evaluate the
pier capacity.

Helical piers are proprietary systems designed by licensed contractors, based on their
interpretation of the results of our subsurface exploration and laboratory testing and loads
provided by the project structural engineer. We recommend that a performance specification be
developed regarding allowable capacities and tolerable total and differential settlement. Upon
request, Terracon can provide contact information for specialty contractors who provide these
services.

Piers caps should be placed at a depth of 5 feet below final surrounding grades for frost protection.
Shallower depths can be considered if movements related to frost heave are acceptable.
Alternately, the provision of a void form could be considered below the pier cap.

Based on the anticipated structural loads and subsurface conditions described herein, post-
construction settlements of helical piers that bear within very stiff to hard soils should be no more
than 1 inch, but subject to design by others. Differential settlements can typically be on the order
of ½ of the total settlement.

Construction Considerations for Helical Pier Foundations

Although not encountered in the borings performed for this project, it is our experience that the
glacial clay soils in the general site vicinity can contain cobbles and boulders. If encountered
during helical pier installation, these materials could impede penetration of the element, and a
replacement element could be required. The foundation designer(s) should be consulted if an
element encounters refusal shallower than its design depth.

Construction of the pier cap in the ravine will require provisions for surface water diversion and
some dewatering. Based on the results of the borings, it appears that predominantly clay soils are
present, and the use of pits and sump pumps should therefore be sufficient to facilitate
construction ‘in the dry’. Surface water diversion and groundwater removal should be planned in
advance of construction.

303

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 10

SEISMIC CONSIDERATIONS

The seismic design requirements for sewer structure abutments are based on Seismic Design
Category. Site Classification is required to determine the Seismic Design Category for a structure.
The Site Classification is based on the upper 100 feet of the site profile defined by a weighted
average value of either shear wave velocity, standard penetration resistance, or undrained shear
strength in accordance with Section 20.4 of ASCE 7 and the International Building Code (IBC).
Based on the soil properties encountered at the site and as described on the exploration logs and
results, it is our professional opinion that the Seismic Site Classification is D. Subsurface
exploration at this site was extended to a maximum depth of 50 feet. The site properties below
the boring depth to 100 feet were estimated based on our experience and knowledge of geologic
conditions of the general area. Additional deeper borings or geophysical testing may be performed
to confirm the conditions below the current boring depth.

LATERAL EARTH PRESSURES

Design Parameters

Structures with unbalanced backfill levels on opposite sides should be designed for earth
pressures at least equal to values indicated in the following table. Earth pressures will be
influenced by structural design of the walls, conditions of wall restraint, methods of construction
and/or compaction and the strength of the materials being restrained. Two wall restraint conditions
are shown in the diagram below. Active earth pressure is commonly used for design of free-
standing cantilever retaining walls and assumes wall movement. The “at-rest” condition assumes
no wall movement and is commonly used for walls restrained at the top. The recommended design
lateral earth pressures do not include a factor of safety and do not provide for possible hydrostatic
pressure on the walls (unless stated).

304

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 11

Lateral Earth Pressure Design Parameters

Earth
Pressure
Condition

Coefficient
for

Backfill Type

Equivalent
Fluid Density

(pcf)

Surcharge
Pressure

Equivalent
Fluid Pressures

p2 (psf)

Drained Submerged p1 (psf) Drained Submerged

Active
(Ka)

Granular - 0.33
Fine Grained -

0.42

40
50

80
90

(0.33)S
(0.42)S

(40)H
(50)H

(80)H
(90)H

At-Rest
(Ko)

Granular - 0.50
Fine Grained -

0.59

60
70

90
100

(0.50)S
(0.59)S

(60)H
(70)H

(90)H
(100)H

Passive
(Kp)

Granular - 3.0
Fine Grained -

2.37

360
285

240
205

---
---
---

---
---

■ For active earth pressure, wall must rotate about base, with top lateral movements 0.002 H to
0.004 H for medium dense to loose, granular backfill, and about 0.010 H for compacted lean
clay backfill, where H is wall height.

■ For passive earth pressure resistance to develop, wall must move horizontally
■ Uniform, horizontal backfill, compacted to at least 95% of the ASTM D 698 maximum dry

density, rendering a maximum unit weight of 120 pcf.

305

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 12

■ The active and at rest earth pressure coefficients will increase with the increase in backfill or
uphill slope, whereas the passive earth pressure coefficient decreases with the increase in
downhill slope.

■ Uniform surcharge, where S is surcharge pressure.
■ Loading from heavy compaction equipment is not included.
■ No safety factor is included in these values.
■ “Submerged” conditions are recommended when drainage behind walls is not incorporated

into the design.
■ Ignore passive resistance in the frost zone

Backfill placed against structures should consist of granular soils or low plasticity cohesive soils.
For the granular values to be valid, the granular backfill must extend out and up from the base of
the wall at an angle of at least 45 and 60 degrees from vertical for the active/at-rest and passive
cases, respectively.

SLOPE STABILITY

Mechanics of Stability

Slope stability analyses take into consideration material strength, presence and orientation of
weak layers, water (piezometric) pressures, surcharge loads, and the slope geometry.
Mathematical computations are performed using computer-assisted simulations to calculate a
Factor of Safety (FS). Minor changes to slope geometry, surface water flow and/or groundwater
levels could result in slope instability. Reasonable FS values are dependent upon the confidence
in the parameters utilized in the analyses performed, among other factors related to the project.

Geometric Analysis Results

Slope stability analyses were performed for the cross-section geometries obtained from the
elevation contours in the Existing Features drawing dated March 25, 2019, prepared and provided
by Snyder & Associates. Parameters used for the analyses were derived from our exploratory
borings, experience, and laboratory test results. Stability analyses were conducted using the
Morgenstern-Price methodology using a search routine to identify critical failure surfaces using
the computer program Slope/W Version 7.16 developed by Geo-Slope International.

An approximate phreatic surface for the slope stability analyses was imported from seepage
analyses. The seepage analyses were conducted using the computer program Seep/W Version
7.16 developed by Geo-Slope International. SEEP/W utilizes a two-dimensional finite element
method to compute seepage flow and piezometric head. For the seepage analyses, the
groundwater levels on the east and west landsides were assigned at elevation +893 feet as

306

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 13

observed in the soil borings and the ravine was considered empty (the water level was assigned
at the ravine bed elevation +874 feet).

Back Analysis

Back analysis was performed for the cross-section geometries along the sanitary sewer line to
establish field shear strength of soils and conditions at failure. Data obtained from our exploratory
borings, the elevation contours of the site, and laboratory tests were used to constitute the models.
Unit weights and shear strength parameters of subsurface soils were initially estimated from the
laboratory tests and established correlations based on the index soil properties. Permeability
parameters of soils were also estimated based on the available typical values for similar soils.
Using the seepage and slope stability analyses, the estimated permeability and shear strength
parameters were further adjusted/refined using the iterative back analysis of the slope to obtain
a factor of safety close to 1.0 to simulate the incipient failure conditions.   The adjusted/refined
permeability and shear strength parameters are summarized in the following table:

Material

Hydraulic Conductivity
(feet/sec)

Total
Unit

Weight
(pcf)

Shear Strength
Parameters

Horizontal Vertical Cohesion, c’
(psf)

Friction Angle, ϕ’
(degrees)

Lean Clay (CL) - Stiff 1E-6 2.5E-7 125 25 27

Sandy Lean Clay (CL)
-Very Stiff to Hard

(Near slope surface)
1E-6 2.5E-7 130 150* 27

Sandy Lean Clay (CL)
-Very Stiff to Hard 1E-6 2.5E-7 130 300 27

Sand (SP) 1E-4 1E-4 120 0 34

* A lower cohesion value was used for the upper 6 to 7 feet of sandy lean clay soils along the slope surface and
ravine bed, assuming loss of cohesion occurred due to environmental factors.

Refer to Supporting Information for Exhibit C-1, for the graphical output of the back analysis.
The provided elevation contours do not clearly show the failure surface. Based on our filed
observation, Figure 1, and elevation contours diagram, it appeared that the failure surface on the
west slope started from about elevation +890 and exited at elevation +875 feet at the west slope
toe. The critical slip surface in the back analysis (Exhibit C-1) appeared similar to the failure
surface observed at the site. Slope stability analysis was also performed for the east ravine slope
using the soil parameters presented in the preceding table. The factors of safety for the west and
east slopes were calculated to be 1.01 (Exhibit C-1) and 1.24 (Exhibit C-2), respectively.

307

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 14

Slope Remediation Measures

For the remediation measures to prevent further loss of slope materials or progressive failure of the
slope, we recommend flattening of the west slope at 1.75(H):1(V) and placing riprap at the toe of the
slope (refer to Figure 2 for details). The global stability analysis was performed with this
recommendation and exhibited a factor of safety of 1.35 (Exhibit C-3). The phreatic surface for this
slope analysis was imported from the seepage analysis. The riprap section is also
modeled/illustrated in Exhibit C-3. The riprap mass should be wrapped with a geotextile fabric to
facilitate drainage and to prevent the migration of soil particles. Filtration criteria of geotextile fabrics
should be checked.  Consideration should be given to providing a 6-inch thick bedding stone should
be provided as a cushion between the geotextile and riprap to prevent damage to the geotextile
during placement of the riprap.

Figure 2 - Approximation of slope remediation measures for west ravine slope

Slope Stability with New Sewer Support Structure and Stabilized West Slope Toe

To determine the suitable location (horizontal distance from the crest) of a shallow foundation on
both sides, slope stability analyses were performed with a maximum net allowable foundation
bearing pressure of 2,500 psf, as recommended in the Shallow Foundations section. The
Existing Features drawing dated March 25, 2019, indicates that the invert of the 8-inch diameter
sewer pipe will be at elevation +897.67 feet.  The foundation bearing level was assigned to be
about 1.5 feet below the invert, at elevation 896 feet.  The foundation width parallel to the sewer
pipe was assigned to be 4 feet.

1.75(H):1(V)
Excavation limit

Existing ground surface

5’

9’

Ravine centerline
50’

4.5’

Native soil
Native soil

Native soil

New Fill
(Riprap)

Native soil

308

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable 15

The position of the shallow foundation on both sides was determined for the conditions when the
failure slip surface included the foundation loading and provided a factor of safety of about 1.5.
The phreatic surface for these analyses was imported from the seepage analysis.  Based on the
results of the slope stability analyses, we recommend the shallow foundation on the west side of
the ravine be placed at least 79 feet (horizontal distance) west of the ravine centerline. The
shallow foundation on the east side should be installed at least 85 feet (horizontal distance) east
of the ravine centerline. See Exhibits C-4 and C-5 for graphical outputs of the slope stability
analyses with the foundation loading.

Based on the results of our global stability analyses, the helical piers on the west side should be
installed at least 71.5 feet (horizontal distance) west from the ravine centerline (see Exhibit C-6).
The helical piers on the east side of the ravine should be installed at least 77.5 feet (horizontal
distance) east from the ravine centerline (see Exhibit C-7). Since the vertical load carried by the
helical piers will be transmitted to the deeper very stiff to hard glacial clay and will be local, the
helical pier loads were not modeled in the slope stability analyses.

GENERAL COMMENTS

Terracon should be retained to review the final design plans and specifications, so comments can
be made regarding interpretation and implementation of our geotechnical recommendations in the
design and specifications.  In the event that changes in the nature, design, or location of the
project as outlined in this report are planned, the conclusions and recommendations contained in
this report shall not be considered valid unless Terracon reviews the changes and either verifies
or modifies the conclusions of this report in writing. Terracon also should be retained to provide
observation and testing services during grading, excavation, construction, foundation, and other
earth-related construction phases of the project. Site safety, excavation support, and dewatering
requirements are the responsibility of others.

The analysis and recommendations presented in this report are based upon our understanding of
the project, the data obtained from the borings performed at the indicated locations and from other
information discussed in this report.  This report does not reflect variations that may occur between
borings, across the site, or due to the modifying effects of construction or weather.  The nature
and extent of such variations may not become evident until during or after construction.  If
variations appear, we should be immediately notified so that further evaluation and supplemental
recommendations can be provided.

The scope of services for this project does not include either specifically or by implication any
environmental or biological (e.g., mold, fungi, bacteria) assessment of the site or identification or
prevention of pollutants, hazardous materials or conditions.  If the owner is concerned about the
potential for such contamination or pollution, other studies should be undertaken.

309

Item 23.



310

Item 23.



Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

ATTACHMENTS

311

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

EXPLORATION AND TESTING PROCEDURES

Field Exploration

Boring Layout and Elevations: The soil boring locations were determined by Terracon
personnel in the field at accessible locations.  The latitudes and longitudes of the borings were
determined with a handheld GPS unit (estimated horizontal accuracy of about 20 feet or less).
Surface elevations at the boring locations were estimated by superimposing the boring locations
onto the Existing Features drawing with topographic contours provided by Snyder & Associates.

Subsurface Exploration Procedures: Terracon’s exploration team advanced the borings with
an ATV-mounted rotary drill rig using continuous flight augers. Sampling was performed
continuously in the borings using thin-walled tube or split-barrel sampling procedures. In the thin-
walled tube sampling procedure, a thin-walled, seamless steel tube with a sharp cutting edge was
pushed hydraulically into the soil to obtain a relatively undisturbed sample. In the split-barrel sampling
procedure, a standard 2-inch outer diameter split-barrel sampling spoon was driven into the ground
by a 140-pound automatic hammer falling a distance of 30 inches. The number of blows required to
advance the sampling spoon the last 12 inches of a normal 18-inch penetration is recorded as the
Standard Penetration Test (SPT) resistance value. The SPT resistance values, also referred to as
N-values, are indicated on the boring logs at the test depths. The exploration team also observed
and recorded groundwater levels during drilling and sampling. The boreholes were backfilled with
auger cuttings and bentonite chips upon completion.

Our exploration team prepared field boring logs as part of the drilling operations. These field logs
included visual classifications of the materials encountered during drilling and our interpretation
of the subsurface conditions between samples. The sampling depths, penetration resistances, and
other sampling information was recorded on the field boring logs. The samples were placed in
appropriate containers and transported to our soil laboratories for testing and classification.

312

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

Laboratory Testing

Water content tests and density determinations were performed on the samples, and one un-
confined compression test was performed on selected sample. The unconfined compressive 
strength of many samples was estimated with a hand penetrometer test.

In addition to our standard testing, the following tests were performed on selected samples:

Test Quantity

Plastic and Liquid Limits 1                                       2

Sieve Analysis                      3

Consolidated-Undrained Compression
Triaxial Shear tests (CIUC) 2                                      2

1. Results presented on boring logs
2. Refer to Exhibits A-5 to A-10

The samples were visually and tactilely classified in the laboratory. The soil descriptions presented
on the boring logs for native soils are in general accordance with our enclosed General Notes and
the Unified Soil Classification System. The estimated group symbol for the USCS is also 
shown on the boring logs, and a brief description of the USCS System is included. Addi-
tional laboratory testing could be performed to more accurately classify the samples.

Procedural standards noted above are for reference to methodology in general. In some cases,
variations to methods are applied as a result of local practice or professional judgment.

313

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

SITE LOCATION AND EXPLORATION PLANS

314

Item 23.



 
TOPOGRAPHIC MAP IMAGE COURTESY OF 

THE U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 
QUADRANGLES INCLUDE: NEW HARTFORD, 
IA (1/1/1971) and CEDAR FALLS, IA (1/1/1980). 

SITE LOCATION 

Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing 
2821 Minnetonka Drive 

Cedar Falls, IA 

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613-7030 

13185123 

DIAGRAM IS FOR GENERAL LOCATION ONLY, 
AND IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION 

PURPOSES 

Project Manager:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

Approved by: 

DKK 

JPH 

JPH 

JPH 

Click 
4/16/2019 

Project No.

File Name:

Date:

A-1 

Exhibit 

SITE 

1”=2,000’ Scale:

315

Item 23.



 

EXPLORATION PLAN 

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613-7030 

13185123 AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY PROVIDED BY 
MICROSOFT BING MAPS 

Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing 
2821 Minnetonka Drive 

Cedar Falls, IA 
DIAGRAM IS FOR GENERAL LOCATION ONLY, 
AND IS NOT INTENDED FOR CONSTRUCTION 

PURPOSES 

Project Manager:

Drawn by:

Checked by:

Approved by:

DKK 

JPH 

JPH 

JPH 

Click 
4/16/2019 

Scale:

Project No. 

File Name:

Date:

AS SHOWN 
A-2 

Exhibit 

316

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

EXPLORATION RESULTS

317

Item 23.



9-5-4-5
N=9

3-2-4-6
N=6

4000 (HP)

3-3-3-3
N=6

3000 (HP)

4-5-8-9
N=13

5000 (HP)

7000 (HP)

5-6-9-10
N=15

9000 (HP)

4-8-7-9
N=15

9000 (HP)

4-7-8-9
N=15

8000 (HP)

3-5-9-10
N=14

9000 (HP)

3-5-8-11
N=13

9000 (HP)

4-5-9-11
N=14

9000 (HP)

5-11-15-17
N=26

22

18

9

22

24

20

24

20

10

3

24

24

24

18

3000
(HP)

2500
(HP)

7000
(HP)

3244UC 15

28

15

15

19

20

17

14

15

19

17

14

14

15

16

118

109

122

36-15-21

37-16-21

FILL - TOPSOIL 

LEAN CLAY (CL), with sand, trace gravel, gray
and brown, stiff

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, gray
brown, very stiff

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL/SC), trace gravel, with
occasional sand and silt seams, gray, very stiff to
hard

2.5

10.0

18.0

904.5

897

889

Hammer Type:  AutomaticStratification lines are approximate. In-situ, the transition may be gradual.

T
H

IS
 B

O
R

IN
G

 L
O

G
 IS

 N
O

T
 V

A
LI

D
 IF

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 O

R
IG

IN
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. G

E
O

 S
M

A
R

T
 L

O
G

-N
O

 W
E

LL
  1

31
85

1
23

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 R
A

.G
P

J 
 M

O
D

E
LL

A
Y

E
R

.G
P

J 
 4

/1
7/

19

W
A

T
E

R
 L

E
V

E
L

O
B

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

S

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
t.)

5

10

15

20

25

30

STRENGTH TEST

F
IE

LD
 T

E
S

T
R

E
S

U
LT

S

R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 (
In

.)

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
H

P
 (

ps
f)

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IV
E

S
T

R
E

N
G

T
H

(p
sf

)

T
E

S
T

 T
Y

P
E

S
T

R
A

IN
 (

%
)

W
A

T
E

R
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

 (
%

)

D
R

Y
 U

N
IT

W
E

IG
H

T
 (

pc
f)

ATTERBERG
LIMITS

LL-PL-PI

LOCATION

Latitude: 42.5458° Longitude: -92.4733°

See Exploration Plan

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

DEPTH ELEVATION (Ft.)

Surface Elev.: 907.0 (Ft.)

Page 1 of 2

Advancement Method:
Hollow stem auger

Abandonment Method:

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5
Cedar Falls, IA

Notes:

Project No.: 13185123

Drill Rig: # 546

BORING LOG NO. 1
Snyder & Associates, Inc.CLIENT:
Cedar Rapids, IA

Driller: WE

Boring Completed: 02-27-2019

PROJECT:  Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

See Exploration and Testing Procedures for a
description of field and laboratory procedures used
and additional data (If any).

See Supporting Information for explanation of
symbols and abbreviations.

                    2821 Minnetonka Drive
                    Cedar Falls, IA
SITE:

Boring Started: 02-27-2019
14' observed while sampling

WATER LEVEL OBSERVATIONS

S
A

M
P

LE
 T

Y
P

E

318

Item 23.



5-7-11-15
N=18

9000 (HP)

8-7-17-18
N=24

9000 (HP)

4-5-11-15
N=16

9000 (HP)

12-18-27-30
N=45

5-10-14-12
N=24

9000 (HP)

5-8-13-19
N=21

9000 (HP)

4-9-12-15
N=21

9000 (HP)

13-15-15-12
N=30

9000 (HP)

4-8-12-16
N=20

9000 (HP)

3-8-12-16
N=20

9000 (HP)

22

18

24

22

20

12

20

16

24

24

15

13

15

13

16

17

16

16

15

15

16

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL/SC), trace gravel, with
occasional sand and silt seams, gray, very stiff to
hard (continued)

SAND (SP), trace clay and gravel, fine to coarse
grained, gray, dense

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, with
occasional sand and silt layers, gray, very stiff to
hard

Boring Terminated at 50 Feet

36.0

38.5

50.0

871

868.5

857

Hammer Type:  AutomaticStratification lines are approximate. In-situ, the transition may be gradual.

T
H

IS
 B

O
R

IN
G

 L
O

G
 IS

 N
O

T
 V

A
LI

D
 IF

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 O

R
IG

IN
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. G

E
O

 S
M

A
R

T
 L

O
G

-N
O

 W
E

LL
  1

31
85

1
23

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 R
A

.G
P

J 
 M

O
D

E
LL

A
Y

E
R

.G
P

J 
 4

/1
7/

19

W
A

T
E

R
 L

E
V

E
L

O
B

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

S

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
t.)

35

40

45

50

STRENGTH TEST

F
IE

LD
 T

E
S

T
R

E
S

U
LT

S

R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 (
In

.)

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
H

P
 (

ps
f)

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IV
E

S
T

R
E

N
G

T
H

(p
sf

)

T
E

S
T

 T
Y

P
E

S
T

R
A

IN
 (

%
)

W
A

T
E

R
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

 (
%

)

D
R

Y
 U

N
IT

W
E

IG
H

T
 (

pc
f)

ATTERBERG
LIMITS

LL-PL-PI

LOCATION

Latitude: 42.5458° Longitude: -92.4733°

See Exploration Plan

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

DEPTH ELEVATION (Ft.)

Surface Elev.: 907.0 (Ft.)

Page 2 of 2

Advancement Method:
Hollow stem auger

Abandonment Method:

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5
Cedar Falls, IA

Notes:

Project No.: 13185123

Drill Rig: # 546

BORING LOG NO. 1
Snyder & Associates, Inc.CLIENT:
Cedar Rapids, IA

Driller: WE

Boring Completed: 02-27-2019

PROJECT:  Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

See Exploration and Testing Procedures for a
description of field and laboratory procedures used
and additional data (If any).

See Supporting Information for explanation of
symbols and abbreviations.

                    2821 Minnetonka Drive
                    Cedar Falls, IA
SITE:

Boring Started: 02-27-2019
14' observed while sampling

WATER LEVEL OBSERVATIONS

S
A

M
P

LE
 T

Y
P

E

319

Item 23.



12-4-1-1
N=5

1-1-2-5
N=3

4-4-5-3
N=9

5000 (HP)

2-3-5-7
N=8

3000 (HP)

3-3-5-7
N=8

7000 (HP)

4-4-5-4
N=9

4000 (HP)

5-11-13-15
N=24

4-7-11-17
N=18

9000 (HP)

5-8-14-12
N=22

9000 (HP)

5-7-11-13
N=18

9000 (HP)

5-10-12-15
N=22

9000 (HP)

4-8-11-16
N=19

12-25-32-50
N=57

10

10

16

16

24

22

20

24

20

16

24

24

18

22

24

3000
(HP)

9000+
(HP)

8000
(HP)

8000
(HP)

2740UC 15

21

37

18

17

18

16

15

14

14

12

12

13

13

14

13

112 34-15-19

FILL - SAND , with clay, fine to coarse grained,
dark brown and gray

LEAN CLAY (CL), with sand, trace organics,
dark brown and brown

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, with
occasional sand seams, gray and brown, stiff

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, with
occasional sand seams, gray brown, very stiff

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, with
occasional sand and silt seams, gray, very stiff to
hard

2.0

4.0

10.0

16.0

907

905

899

893

Hammer Type:  AutomaticStratification lines are approximate. In-situ, the transition may be gradual.

T
H

IS
 B

O
R

IN
G

 L
O

G
 IS

 N
O

T
 V

A
LI

D
 IF

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 O

R
IG

IN
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. G

E
O

 S
M

A
R

T
 L

O
G

-N
O

 W
E

LL
  1

31
85

1
23

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 R
A

.G
P

J 
 M

O
D

E
LL

A
Y

E
R

.G
P

J 
 4

/1
7/

19

W
A

T
E

R
 L

E
V

E
L

O
B

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

S

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
t.)

5

10

15

20

25

30

STRENGTH TEST

F
IE

LD
 T

E
S

T
R

E
S

U
LT

S

R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 (
In

.)

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
H

P
 (

ps
f)

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IV
E

S
T

R
E

N
G

T
H

(p
sf

)

T
E

S
T

 T
Y

P
E

S
T

R
A

IN
 (

%
)

W
A

T
E

R
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

 (
%

)

D
R

Y
 U

N
IT

W
E

IG
H

T
 (

pc
f)

ATTERBERG
LIMITS

LL-PL-PI

LOCATION

Latitude: 42.5455° Longitude: -92.4727°

See Exploration Plan

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

DEPTH ELEVATION (Ft.)

Surface Elev.: 909.0 (Ft.)

Page 1 of 2

Advancement Method:
Hollow stem auger

Abandonment Method:
Boring backfilled with bentonite upon completion.

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5
Cedar Falls, IA

Notes:

Project No.: 13185123

Drill Rig: # 546

BORING LOG NO. 2
Snyder & Associates, Inc.CLIENT:
Cedar Rapids, IA

Driller: WE

Boring Completed: 02-19-2019

PROJECT:  Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

See Exploration and Testing Procedures for a
description of field and laboratory procedures used
and additional data (If any).

See Supporting Information for explanation of
symbols and abbreviations.

                    2821 Minnetonka Drive
                    Cedar Falls, IA
SITE:

Boring Started: 02-19-2019
16' observed while sampling

None observed after drilling

WATER LEVEL OBSERVATIONS

S
A

M
P

LE
 T

Y
P

E

320

Item 23.



9000 (HP)
8-14-28-32

N=42
6000 (HP)

12-16-25-28
N=41

7000 (HP)

8-14-16-24
N=30

9000 (HP)

20-16-20-27
N=36

9000 (HP)

7-13-13-13
N=26

9000 (HP)

3-7-15-14
N=22

9000 (HP)

5-8-12-13
N=20

9000 (HP)

5-9-12-14
N=21

9000 (HP)

5-8-11-15
N=19

9000 (HP)

5-8-11-17
N=19

9000 (HP)

20

22

20

20

22

24

24

24

20

24

14

13

15

17

16

18

15

15

16

15

SANDY LEAN CLAY (CL), trace gravel, with
occasional sand and silt seams, gray, very stiff to
hard (continued)

Boring Terminated at 50 Feet
50.0 859

Hammer Type:  AutomaticStratification lines are approximate. In-situ, the transition may be gradual.

T
H

IS
 B

O
R

IN
G

 L
O

G
 IS

 N
O

T
 V

A
LI

D
 IF

 S
E

P
A

R
A

T
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 O

R
IG

IN
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
. G

E
O

 S
M

A
R

T
 L

O
G

-N
O

 W
E

LL
  1

31
85

1
23

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 R
A

.G
P

J 
 M

O
D

E
LL

A
Y

E
R

.G
P

J 
 4

/1
7/

19

W
A

T
E

R
 L

E
V

E
L

O
B

S
E

R
V

A
T

IO
N

S

D
E

P
T

H
 (

F
t.)

35

40

45

50

STRENGTH TEST

F
IE

LD
 T

E
S

T
R

E
S

U
LT

S

R
E

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 (
In

.)

LA
B

O
R

A
T

O
R

Y
H

P
 (

ps
f)

C
O

M
P

R
E

S
S

IV
E

S
T

R
E

N
G

T
H

(p
sf

)

T
E

S
T

 T
Y

P
E

S
T

R
A

IN
 (

%
)

W
A

T
E

R
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

 (
%

)

D
R

Y
 U

N
IT

W
E

IG
H

T
 (

pc
f)

ATTERBERG
LIMITS

LL-PL-PI

LOCATION

Latitude: 42.5455° Longitude: -92.4727°

See Exploration Plan

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 L
O

G

DEPTH ELEVATION (Ft.)

Surface Elev.: 909.0 (Ft.)

Page 2 of 2

Advancement Method:
Hollow stem auger

Abandonment Method:
Boring backfilled with bentonite upon completion.

3105 Capital Way, Ste 5
Cedar Falls, IA

Notes:

Project No.: 13185123

Drill Rig: # 546

BORING LOG NO. 2
Snyder & Associates, Inc.CLIENT:
Cedar Rapids, IA

Driller: WE

Boring Completed: 02-19-2019

PROJECT:  Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

See Exploration and Testing Procedures for a
description of field and laboratory procedures used
and additional data (If any).

See Supporting Information for explanation of
symbols and abbreviations.

                    2821 Minnetonka Drive
                    Cedar Falls, IA
SITE:

Boring Started: 02-19-2019
16' observed while sampling

None observed after drilling

WATER LEVEL OBSERVATIONS

S
A

M
P

LE
 T

Y
P

E

321

Item 23.



UNCONFINED COMPRESSION STRENGTH OF COHESIVE SOIL
ASTM D2166

NOTE: CONTROLLED STRAIN

  MACHINE ID / LOAD CELL ID

  WATER CONTENT, % 18.0   STRAIN AT FAILURE, % 15.0
  DRY DENSITY, pcf 112.0   TIME TO FAILURE, minutes 7.5
  VOID RATIO 0.50   RATE OF LOADING, %/min 2.0
  SATURATION, % 96   SHEAR STRENGTH, psf 1370
  INITIAL DIAMETER, inch 2.88   INITIAL LENGTH, inch 5.84
  LENGTH TO DIAMETER RATIO 2.03   SAMPLE TYPE UNDISTURBED

  SAMPLE DESCRIPTION
  BORING NO. B-2   SAMPLE NO. 5   DEPTH, feet 8 - 14

rms V01 12/20/08

N:\Projects – Interoffice\Ceder Falls\13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing Project\Lab Tests\[13185123 Hydrometer Plot B1-7-12.0.xlsx]REPORT

15 19

GeoJack1972 / 235166   COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH, psf 2740

2.70 ASSUMED

13085123
4/5/2019

SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SANDY LEAN CLAY, 10YR 4/4 DARK YELLOWISH BROWN WITH 10YR 5/1 GRAY

  LIQUID LIMIT   PLASTIC LIMIT   PLASTICITY INDEX   SPECIFIC GRAV.34

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17

U
N

C
O

N
F

IN
E

D
 C

O
M

P
R

E
S

S
IV

E
 S

T
R

E
N

G
T

H
, p

sf

AXIAL STRAIN, %

322

Item 23.



SIEVE DIAMETER, PASS,
SIZE mm %

1.5" 37.5 100
1" 25.0 100

3/4" 19.0 100
1/2" 12.5 98
3/8" 9.50 98
#4 4.75 98
#10 2.00 97
#20 0.850 94
#40 0.425 89
#60 0.250 80
#140 0.106 63
#200 0.075 58.9

0.0433 53.0
0.0313 47.4
0.0202 41.8
0.0118 40.0
0.0084 36.2
0.0061 32.5
0.0026 27.5
0.0012 23.5

D60 0.0819
D30 0.0040

% GRAVEL 1.87595
% SAND 39.2
% FINES 58.9

SPECIFIC GRAVITY 2.70
ASSUMED

SAMPLE USCS NAT
ID DESCRIPTION SYMBOL M%

PROJECT SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA JOB NO. DATE

N:\Projects – Interoffice\Ceder Falls\13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing Project\Lab Tests\[13185123 Hydrometer Plot B1-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

13185123.0000 4/5/2019

BORING
ID

DEPTH,
inches

CLB-1 5 8 TO 10
SANDY LEAN CLAY

10YR 4/4 DARK YELLOWISH BROWN WITH 10YR 5/1 GRAY

ASTM D422 PARTICLE-SIZE ANALYSIS OF SOILS

2136 15

USCS
ATTERBERG LIMITS

LL PL PI

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0.0010.010.1110100

P
A

S
S

IN
G

, %

PARTICLE DIAMETER, mm

323

Item 23.



SIEVE DIAMETER, PASS,
SIZE mm %

1.5" 37.5 100
1" 25.0 100

3/4" 19.0 100
1/2" 12.5 98
3/8" 9.50 98
#4 4.75 98
#10 2.00 97
#20 0.850 94
#40 0.425 89
#60 0.250 80
#140 0.106 63
#200 0.075 58.9

0.0433 53.0
0.0313 47.4
0.0202 41.8
0.0118 40.0
0.0084 36.2
0.0061 32.5
0.0026 27.5
0.0012 23.5

D60 0.0819
D30 0.0040

% GRAVEL 1.87595
% SAND 39.2
% FINES 58.9

SPECIFIC GRAVITY 2.70
ASSUMED

SAMPLE USCS NAT
ID DESCRIPTION SYMBOL M%

PROJECT SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA JOB NO. DATE

N:\Projects – Interoffice\Ceder Falls\13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing Project\Lab Tests\[13185123 Hydrometer Plot B1-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

13185123.0000 4/5/2019

BORING
ID

DEPTH,
inches

CLB-1 5 8 TO 10
SANDY LEAN CLAY

10YR 4/4 DARK YELLOWISH BROWN WITH 10YR 5/1 GRAY

ASTM D422 PARTICLE-SIZE ANALYSIS OF SOILS

2136 15

USCS
ATTERBERG LIMITS

LL PL PI

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0.0010.010.1110100

P
A

S
S

IN
G

, %

PARTICLE DIAMETER, mm

324

Item 23.



SIEVE DIAMETER, PASS,
SIZE mm %

1.5" 37.5 100
1" 25.0 100

3/4" 19.0 100
1/2" 12.5 100
3/8" 9.50 100
#4 4.75 100
#10 2.00 99
#20 0.850 97
#40 0.425 92
#60 0.250 83
#140 0.106 65
#200 0.075 60.3

0.0422 54.0
0.0305 48.4
0.0196 44.8
0.0115 41.1
0.0082 36.4
0.0059 33.7
0.0029 30.0
0.0012 25.3

D60 0.0727
D30 0.0029

% GRAVEL 0.10087
% SAND 39.6
% FINES 60.3

SPECIFIC GRAVITY 2.70
ASSUMED

SAMPLE USCS NAT
ID DESCRIPTION SYMBOL M%

PROJECT SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA JOB NO. DATE

N:\Projects – Interoffice\Ceder Falls\13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing Project\Lab Tests\[13185123 Hydrometer Plot B2-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

13185123.0000 4/5/2019

BORING
ID

DEPTH,
inches

CLB-2 5 8 TO 10
SANDY LEAN CLAY

10YR 4/4 DARK YELLOWISH BROWN WITH 10YR 5/1 GRAY

ASTM D422 PARTICLE-SIZE ANALYSIS OF SOILS

1934 15

USCS
ATTERBERG LIMITS

LL PL PI

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0.0010.010.1110100

P
A

S
S

IN
G

, %

PARTICLE DIAMETER, mm

325

Item 23.



EFFECTIVE STRESS --- ANGLE OF INTERNAL FRICTION, deg

TOTAL STRESS ANGLE OF INTERNAL FRICTION, deg

SPECIMEN ID: A B

WATER CONTENT, % 20.4 19.6

DRY DENSITY, pcf 108.5 111.5

SATURATION, % 99 104

VOID RATIO 0.55 0.51

WATER CONTENT, % 20.3 17.2

DRY DENSITY, pcf 108.9 115.1

SATURATION (B PARAMETER) 0.99 0.97

VOID RATIO 0.55 0.46

FINAL BACK PRESSURE, psi 100.7 100.3

MINOR PRINCIPAL STRESS, psi 4.4 14.6

EFFECTIVE STRESS PEAK AT % STRAIN 3.1 3.4

EFF. DEVIATOR STRESS AT PEAK STRAIN, psi 8.4 18.6

TOTAL STRESS PEAK AT % STRAIN 3.1 3.4

TOTAL DEVIATOR STRESS AT PEAK STRAIN, psi 8.4 18.6

CONTROLLED - STRAIN TEST ULTIMATE DEVIATOR STRESS (15% STR), psi 11.0 23.6

SAMPLE TYPE: TIME TO 50% PRIMARY CONSOLIDATION, min 7.85 34.40

DESCRIPTION OF SPECIMENS: 0.53 0.52

INITIAL DIAMETER, inch 2.855 2.875

INITIAL HEIGHT, inch 5.813 5.929

LL 36 PL 15 PI 21 Gs 2.7 EST. AREA AFTER CONSOLIDATION, inch2 6.625 6.349

PROJECT:

BORING #:

SAMPLE #:

DEPTH, feet:

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

1.2

1.4

COHESION, psi

COHESION, psi

BE
FO

R
E

SH
EA

R
27.4

19.5

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

B-1

5

8.0 - 10.0

IN
IT

IA
L

PROCEDURE: ASTM D4767, CONSOLIDATED-UNDRAINED TRIAXIAL
COMPRESSION TEST ON COHESIVE SOILS

PROJECT NO. 13185123

3" SHELBY TUBE

SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

STRAIN RATE, % / hour

TERRACON - LENEXALABORATORY:

DATE: 4/5/2019

SANDY LEAN CLAY, 10YR 4/4 DARK YELLOWSIH
BROWN WITH 10YR 5/1 GRAY

0

5

10

15

20

25

0 5 10 15 20

D
E
V
I
A
T
O
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

P
S
I

STRAIN, %

0

10

20

30

40

50

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120 130 140 150

S
H
E
A
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

p
s
i

NORMAL STRESS, psi

326

Item 23.



SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

13185123 B-1 5

REMARKS:

SPECIMENS SATURATED BY THE WET METHOD.

EFFECTIVE STRESS FAILURE DATA BASED ON PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

EFFECTIVE STRESS MOHR'S CIRCLES DRAWN AT PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

TOTAL STRESS FAILURE DATA BASED ON PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

TOTAL STRESS MOHR'S CIRCLES DRAWN AT PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

DEVIATOR STRESSES CORRECTED FOR MEMBRANE AND FILTER PAPER EFFECTS.

AREA AFTER CONSOLIDATION CALCULATED AS PER SECTION 10.3.2.1 METHOD A

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

8.0 - 10.0

FAILURE SKETCH FAILURE SKETCH FAILURE SKETCH

SPECIMEN A SPECIMEN B SPECIMEN C

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

0 5 10 15 20

P
R
I
N
C
I
P
A
L

S
T
R
E
S
S

R
A
T
I
O

STRAIN, %

327

Item 23.



SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

13185123 B-1 5 8.0 - 10.0

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-5-8.0.xlsx]REPORT

-0.2

-0.1

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

0 5 10 15 20

P
O
R
E

P
R
E
S
S
U
R
E

/

D
E
V
I
A
T
O
R

S
T
R
E
S
S

STRAIN, %

0

10

20

30

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

S
H
E
A
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

P
S
I

NORMAL STRESS, PSI

A B

-1

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

0 5 10 15 20

P
O
R
E

P
R
E
S
S
U
R
E
,

P
S
I

STRAIN, %

328

Item 23.



EFFECTIVE STRESS --- ANGLE OF INTERNAL FRICTION, deg

TOTAL STRESS ANGLE OF INTERNAL FRICTION, deg

SPECIMEN ID: A B

WATER CONTENT, % 13.9 13.8

DRY DENSITY, pcf 122.2 121.7

SATURATION, % 99 97

VOID RATIO 0.38 0.39

WATER CONTENT, % 13.9 12.7

DRY DENSITY, pcf 122.4 125.4

SATURATION (B PARAMETER) 0.99 0.98

VOID RATIO 0.38 0.34

FINAL BACK PRESSURE, psi 99.1 98.9

MINOR PRINCIPAL STRESS, psi 5.3 15.1

EFFECTIVE STRESS PEAK AT % STRAIN 2.6 15.0

EFF. DEVIATOR STRESS AT PEAK STRAIN, psi 16.3 38.6

TOTAL STRESS PEAK AT % STRAIN 2.6 15.0

TOTAL DEVIATOR STRESS AT PEAK STRAIN, psi 16.3 38.6

CONTROLLED - STRAIN TEST ULTIMATE DEVIATOR STRESS (15% STR), psi 35.1 38.8

SAMPLE TYPE: TIME TO 50% PRIMARY CONSOLIDATION, min 15.50 40.00

DESCRIPTION OF SPECIMENS: 0.43 0.45

INITIAL DIAMETER, inch 2.871 2.870

INITIAL HEIGHT, inch 5.813 5.760

LL 37 PL 16 PI 21 Gs 2.7 EST. AREA AFTER CONSOLIDATION, inch2 6.466 6.312

PROJECT:

BORING #:

SAMPLE #:

DEPTH, feet:

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-7-12.0.xlsx]REPORT

3.1

1.2

COHESION, psi

COHESION, psi

BE
FO

R
E

SH
EA

R
26.9

32.2

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

B-1

7

12.0 - 14.0

IN
IT

IA
L

PROCEDURE: ASTM D4767, CONSOLIDATED-UNDRAINED TRIAXIAL
COMPRESSION TEST ON COHESIVE SOILS

PROJECT NO. 13185123

3" SHELBY TUBE

SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

STRAIN RATE, % / hour

TERRACON - LENEXALABORATORY:

DATE: 4/5/2019

SANDY LEAN CLAY, 2.5Y 3/3 DARK OLIVE
BROWN

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

0 5 10 15 20

D
E
V
I
A
T
O
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

P
S
I

STRAIN, %

0

10

20

30

40

50

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110 120 130 140 150

S
H
E
A
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

p
s
i

NORMAL STRESS, psi

329

Item 23.



SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

13185123 B-1 7

REMARKS:

SPECIMENS SATURATED BY THE WET METHOD.

EFFECTIVE STRESS FAILURE DATA BASED ON PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

EFFECTIVE STRESS MOHR'S CIRCLES DRAWN AT PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

TOTAL STRESS FAILURE DATA BASED ON PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

TOTAL STRESS MOHR'S CIRCLES DRAWN AT PEAK PRINCIPAL STRESS RATIO % STRAIN.

DEVIATOR STRESSES CORRECTED FOR MEMBRANE AND FILTER PAPER EFFECTS.

AREA AFTER CONSOLIDATION CALCULATED AS PER SECTION 10.3.2.1 METHOD A

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-7-12.0.xlsx]REPORT

12.0 - 14.0

FAILURE SKETCH FAILURE SKETCH FAILURE SKETCH

SPECIMEN A SPECIMEN B SPECIMEN C

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

0 5 10 15 20

P
R
I
N
C
I
P
A
L

S
T
R
E
S
S

R
A
T
I
O

STRAIN, %

330

Item 23.



SANITARY SEWER RAVINE CROSSING

13185123 B-1 7 12.0 - 14.0

N:\CM\LAB_DATA\00 Projects in Progress\2019 Projects in Progress\13185123 Lab Data\[13185123 Triaxial CU Ver5.5.1 - 2Point B1-7-12.0.xlsx]REPORT

-0.5
-0.4
-0.3
-0.2
-0.1
0.0
0.1
0.2
0.3
0.4
0.5
0.6
0.7
0.8
0.9
1.0
1.1
1.2

0 5 10 15 20

P
O
R
E

P
R
E
S
S
U
R
E

/

D
E
V
I
A
T
O
R

S
T
R
E
S
S

STRAIN, %

0

10

20

30

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

S
H
E
A
R

S
T
R
E
S
S
,

P
S
I

NORMAL STRESS, PSI

A B

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

0 5 10 15 20

P
O
R
E

P
R
E
S
S
U
R
E
,

P
S
I

STRAIN, %

331

Item 23.



Geotechnical Engineering Report
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing ■ Cedar Falls, Iowa
May 9, 2019 ■ Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

Responsive ■ Resourceful ■ Reliable

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

332

Item 23.



Exhibit C-1
Reviewed by:

Scale:

EXISTING WEST SLOPE

13185123

As Shown

Terracon Project No.

Drawn by:

Cedar Falls, Iowa

Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis
Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

DKK

JPH

1.01

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (
fe

et
)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (
fe

et
)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/16/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight 
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sand Lean Clay (CL) - Stiff 130 25 27

Sand Lean Clay (CL)-V. Sti ff 
to Hard (near Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL) 
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

333

Item 23.



DKK

Reviewed by:

Drawn by: Exhibit C-2
Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis

EXISTING EAST SLOPE

Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

Terracon Project No.

JPH

Scale:

As Shown

Cedar Falls, Iowa

13185123

1.24

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (
fe

e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (
fe

e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/17/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight 
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sandy Lean Clay (CL) - Sti ff 130 25 27

Sandy Lean Clay (CL)-V. Stiff 
to Hard (near Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL) -Very
 Stiff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

334

Item 23.



Drawn by: Exhibit C-3DKK

As Shown

Terracon Project No.

13185123

Reviewed by: Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis
JPH Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

Scale: Cedar Falls, Iowa

WEST SLOPE WITH REMEDIATION MEASURES

1.35

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
et

)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
et

)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/16/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

NULL

Riprap 110 0 45

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sand Lean Clay (CL) - 
Sti ff

130 25 27

Sand Lean Clay (CL)-V. 
Sti ff to Hard (near 
Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL)
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

1.75(H):1(V)

335

Item 23.

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Text Box
9'

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Text Box
5'

dkkhatri
Callout
Riprap



Terracon Project No.

13185123

Drawn by: Exhibit C-4DKK

Reviewed by: Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis

WEST SLOPE WITH SPREAD FOOTING LOAD

JPH Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Scale: Cedar Falls, Iowa

As Shown

1.47

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/16/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

NULL

Riprap 110 0 45

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sand Lean Clay (CL) - 
Sti ff

130 25 27

Sand Lean Clay (CL)-V. 
Sti ff to Hard (near 
Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL)
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

Footing Load: 2,500 psf
Footing Load: 2,500 psf

1.75(H):1(V)

336

Item 23.

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Text Box
Ravine Centerline

dkkhatri
Text Box
79'

dkkhatri
Line



As Shown

Terracon Project No.

13185123

Drawn by: Exhibit C-5DKK

Reviewed by: Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis
JPH Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

Scale: Cedar Falls, Iowa

EAST SLOPE WITH SPREAD FOOTING LOAD

1.46

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/16/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

NULL

Riprap 110 0 45

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sand Lean Clay (CL) - 
Sti ff

130 25 27

Sand Lean Clay (CL)-V. 
Sti ff to Hard (near 
Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL)
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

337

Item 23.

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Text Box
Ravine Centerline

dkkhatri
Text Box
85'

dkkhatri
Line



JPH Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Scale: Cedar Falls, Iowa

As Shown

Terracon Project No.

13185123

Drawn by: Exhibit C-6DKK

Reviewed by: Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis

WEST SLOPE - HELICAL PIER

1.46

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
et

)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
et

)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/17/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

NULL

Riprap 110 0 45

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sandy Lean Clay (CL) - 
Sti ff

130 25 27

Sandy Lean Clay 
(CL)-V. Stiff to Hard 
(near Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL)
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

1.75(H):1(V)

338

Item 23.

dkkhatri
Callout
- Helical Pier Cap no closer  than this location, towards slope- Helical Pier Cap Top El. 895 ft

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Text Box
Ravine Centerline

dkkhatri
Text Box
71.5'



As Shown

Terracon Project No.

13185123

EAST SLOPE - HELICAL PIER

Reviewed by: Global Slope Stabiltiy Analysis
JPH Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing

Scale: Cedar Falls, Iowa

Drawn by: Exhibit C-7DKK

1.47

Distance (feet)

-180 -160 -140 -120 -100 -80 -60 -40 -20 0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 180

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

E
le

va
tio

n
 (f

e
e
t)

820

830

840

850

860

870

880

890

900

910

920

Project :Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing
Location: Cedar Falls, Iowa
Terracon Project No. : 13185123
File Name: 13185123-Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing GS_Rev.gsz
Created By: Khatri, Deep K
Date: 4/17/2019

Color Name Unit 
Weight
(pcf)

Cohesion'
(psf)

Phi' 
(°)

Lean Clay (CL)-Stiff 125 25 27

NULL

Riprap 110 0 45

Sand (SP) 120 0 34

Sandy Lean Clay (CL) - 
Sti ff

130 25 27

Sandy Lean Clay 
(CL)-V. Stiff to Hard 
(near Slope Surface)

130 150 27

Sandy Lean Clay 2 (CL)
-Very  Sti ff to Hard (2)

130 300 27

1.75(H):1(V)

339

Item 23.

dkkhatri
Callout
- Helical Pier Cap no closer  than this location, towards slope- Helical Pier Cap Top El. 895 ft

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Arrow

dkkhatri
Line

dkkhatri
Text Box
Ravine Centerline

dkkhatri
Text Box
77.5'



Sanitary Sewer Ravine Crossing    Cedar Falls, IA

May 9, 2019     Terracon Project No. 13185123.02

500 to 1,000

> 8,000

4,000 to 8,000

2,000 to 4,000

1,000 to 2,000

less than 500

Unconfined Compressive Strength
Qu, (psf)

Shelby
Tube Split Spoon

Trace

PLASTICITY DESCRIPTION

Water levels indicated on the soil boring logs are
the levels measured in the borehole at the times
indicated. Groundwater level variations will occur
over time. In low permeability soils, accurate
determination of groundwater levels is not possible
with short term water level observations.

DESCRIPTION OF SYMBOLS AND ABBREVIATIONS
GENERAL NOTES

> 30

11 - 30

1 - 10Low

Non-plastic

Plasticity Index

#4 to #200 sieve (4.75mm to 0.075mm

Boulders

12 in. to 3 in. (300mm to 75mm)Cobbles

3 in. to #4 sieve (75mm to 4.75 mm)Gravel

Sand

Passing #200 sieve (0.075mm)Silt or Clay

Particle Size

Water Level After
a Specified Period of Time

Water Level After a
Specified Period of Time

Water Initially
Encountered

Soil classification is based on the Unified Soil Classification System. Coarse Grained Soils have more than 50% of their dry
weight retained on a #200 sieve; their principal descriptors are: boulders, cobbles, gravel or sand. Fine Grained Soils have less
than 50% of their dry weight retained on a #200 sieve; they are principally described as clays if they are plastic, and silts if they
are slightly plastic or non-plastic. Major constituents may be added as modifiers and minor constituents may be added
according to the relative proportions based on grain size. In addition to gradation, coarse-grained soils are defined on the basis
of their in-place relative density and fine-grained soils on the basis of their consistency.

GRAIN SIZE TERMINOLOGY

RELATIVE PROPORTIONS OF FINESRELATIVE PROPORTIONS OF SAND AND GRAVEL

DESCRIPTIVE SOIL CLASSIFICATION

LOCATION AND ELEVATION NOTES

SAMPLING WATER LEVEL FIELD TESTS
N

(HP)

(T)

(DCP)

UC

(PID)

(OVA)

Standard Penetration Test
Resistance (Blows/Ft.)

Hand Penetrometer

Torvane

Dynamic Cone Penetrometer

Unconfined Compressive
Strength

Photo-Ionization Detector

Organic Vapor Analyzer

Medium

0Over 12 in. (300 mm)

>12

5-12

<5

Percent of
Dry Weight

TermMajor Component of Sample

Modifier

With

Trace

Descriptive Term(s) of
other constituents

>30Modifier

<15

Percent of
Dry Weight

Descriptive Term(s) of
other constituents

With 15-29

High

Unless otherwise noted, Latitude and Longitude are approximately determined using a hand-held GPS device. The accuracy of
such devices is variable. Surface elevation data annotated with +/- indicates that no actual topographical survey was conducted
to confirm the surface elevation. Instead, the surface elevation was approximately determined from topographic maps of the
area.

Standard Penetration or
N-Value

Blows/Ft.

Descriptive Term
(Density)

CONSISTENCY OF FINE-GRAINED SOILS

Hard

15 - 30Very Stiff> 50Very Dense

8 - 15Stiff30 - 50Dense

4 - 8Medium Stiff10 - 29Medium Dense

2 - 4Soft4 - 9Loose

0 - 1Very Soft0 - 3Very Loose

(50% or more passing the No. 200 sieve.)
Consistency determined by laboratory shear strength testing, field visual-manual

procedures or standard penetration resistance

STRENGTH TERMS

> 30

Descriptive Term
(Consistency)

Standard Penetration or
N-Value

Blows/Ft.

RELATIVE DENSITY OF COARSE-GRAINED SOILS

(More than 50% retained on No. 200 sieve.)
Density determined by Standard Penetration Resistance

340

Item 23.



UNIFIED SOIL CLASSIFICATION SYSTEM

Criteria for Assigning Group Symbols and Group Names Using Laboratory Tests A
Soil Classification

Group
Symbol Group Name B

Coarse-Grained Soils:
More than 50% retained
on No. 200 sieve

Gravels:
More than 50% of
coarse fraction
retained on No. 4 sieve

Clean Gravels:
Less than 5% fines C

Cu ³ 4 and 1 £ Cc £ 3 E GW Well-graded gravel F

Cu < 4 and/or [Cc<1 or Cc>3.0] E GP Poorly graded gravel F

Gravels with Fines:
More than 12% fines C

Fines classify as ML or MH GM Silty gravel F, G, H

Fines classify as CL or CH GC Clayey gravel F, G, H

Sands:
50% or more of coarse
fraction passes No. 4
sieve

Clean Sands:
Less than 5% fines D

Cu ³ 6 and 1 £ Cc £ 3 E SW Well-graded sand I

Cu < 6 and/or [Cc<1 or Cc>3.0] E SP Poorly graded sand I

Sands with Fines:
More than 12% fines D

Fines classify as ML or MH SM Silty sand G, H, I

Fines classify as CL or CH SC Clayey sand G, H, I

Fine-Grained Soils:
50% or more passes the
No. 200 sieve

Silts and Clays:
Liquid limit less than 50

Inorganic:
PI > 7 and plots on or above “A”
line J

CL Lean clay K, L, M

PI < 4 or plots below “A” line J ML Silt K, L, M

Organic:
Liquid limit - oven dried

< 0.75 OL Organic clay K, L, M, N

Liquid limit - not dried Organic silt K, L, M, O

Silts and Clays:
Liquid limit 50 or more

Inorganic:
PI plots on or above “A” line CH Fat clay K, L, M

PI plots below “A” line MH Elastic Silt K, L, M

Organic:
Liquid limit - oven dried

< 0.75 OH Organic clay K, L, M, P

Liquid limit - not dried Organic silt K, L, M, Q

Highly organic soils: Primarily organic matter, dark in color, and organic odor PT Peat
A Based on the material passing the 3-inch (75-mm) sieve.
B If field sample contained cobbles or boulders, or both, add “with cobbles

or boulders, or both” to group name.
C Gravels with 5 to 12% fines require dual symbols:  GW-GM well-graded

gravel with silt, GW-GC well-graded gravel with clay, GP-GM poorly
graded gravel with silt, GP-GC poorly graded gravel with clay.

D Sands with 5 to 12% fines require dual symbols:  SW-SM well-graded
sand with silt, SW-SC well-graded sand with clay, SP-SM poorly graded
sand with silt, SP-SC poorly graded sand with clay.

E Cu = D60/D10     Cc =

F If soil contains ³ 15% sand, add “with sand” to group name.
G If fines classify as CL-ML, use dual symbol GC-GM, or SC-SM.

H If fines are organic, add “with organic fines” to group name.
I If soil contains ³ 15% gravel, add “with gravel” to group name.
J If Atterberg limits plot in shaded area, soil is a CL-ML, silty clay.
K If soil contains 15 to 29% plus No. 200, add “with sand” or “with

gravel,” whichever is predominant.
L If soil contains ³ 30% plus No. 200 predominantly sand, add

“sandy” to group name.
MIf soil contains ³ 30% plus No. 200, predominantly gravel, add

“gravelly” to group name.
NPI ³ 4 and plots on or above “A” line.
OPI < 4 or plots below “A” line.
P PI plots on or above “A” line.
QPI plots below “A” line.

6010

2
30

DxD

)(D

341

Item 23.



1/6/2023

1 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 5,000.00$              5,000.00$              
2 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site CY 190 13.00$                   2,470.00$              
3 2010-G Subgrade Preparation SY 276 2.00$                     552.00$                 
4 2010-I Subbase, 12" Modified SY 191 16.00$                   3,056.00$              
5 2010-J-1 Removal of Structure LS 1 20,000.00$            20,000.00$            
6 2010-L Compaction Testing LS 1 6,000.00$              6,000.00$              
7 3010-C Trench Foundation TON 18 26.00$                   468.00$                 
8 3010-D Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material CY 119 31.00$                   3,689.00$              
9 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing LS 1 3,000.00$              3,000.00$              

10 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC, LF 166 70.00$                   11,620.00$            
11 4010-C-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenched, HDPE, 2" LF 156 30.00$                   4,680.00$              
12 4010-C-2 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenchless, HDPE, 2" LF 300 75.00$                   22,500.00$            
13 4010-D-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main with Casing Pipe, LF 42 120.00$                 5,040.00$              
14 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC, SDR 23.5, 4" LF 24 100.00$                 2,400.00$              
15 4010-H Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types and Sizes LF 277 10.00$                   2,770.00$              
16 4010-I Sanitary Sewer Cleanout EA 2 2,400.00$              4,800.00$              
17 4010-L Sanitary Sewer Abandonment, Fill and Plug LF 50 50.00$                   2,500.00$              
18 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 20 80.00$                   1,600.00$              
19 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer, RCP, 15" LF 20 60.00$                   1,200.00$              
20 4040-A Subdrain, Type 1, 6" LF 50 16.00$                   800.00$                 
21 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6" LF 66 40.00$                   2,640.00$              
22 5010-C-1 Water Main Fittings, 6" EA 4 400.00$                 1,600.00$              
23 5010-H Water Main Removal, 6" LF 51 51.00$                   2,601.00$              
24 6010-A Manhole, SW-303, 48" EA 1 5,000.00$              5,000.00$              
25 6010-C-1 Internal Drop Connection EA 1 1,000.00$              1,000.00$              
26 6010-C-2 External Drop Connection EA 1 1,000.00$              1,000.00$              
27 6010-G Connection to Existing Manhole EA 1 1,500.00$              1,500.00$              
28 6010-H Remove Manhole EA 2 2,000.00$              4,000.00$              
29 7010-A Pavement, PCC,  7" SY 171 100.00$                 17,100.00$            
30 7021-A-0 HMA Overlay TON 28.1 120.00$                 3,372.00$              
31 7030-A Removal of Sidewalk SY 61 10.00$                   610.00$                 
32 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 61 80.00$                   4,880.00$              
33 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 6" SY 46 60.00$                   2,760.00$              
34 7040-H Pavement Removal SY 216 20.00$                   4,320.00$              
35 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 3,000.00$              3,000.00$              
36 9010-B Hydraulic Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and AC 0.24 5,000.00$              1,200.00$              
37 9020-A Sod SQ 42 75.00$                   3,150.00$              
38 9030-D Plants with Warranty LS 1 2,945.00$              2,945.00$              
39 9030-999-A Mulch, Shredded Bark SF 635 2.50$                     1,587.50$              
40 9030-999-B Landscape Boulders EA 5 350.00$                 1,750.00$              
41 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1 2,000.00$              2,000.00$              
42 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 12" LF 1,560 3.00$                     4,680.00$              
43 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 1,560 1.00$                     1,560.00$              
44 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 4 SY 245 2.50$                     612.50$                 
45 9040-O-1 Stabilized Construction Entrance SY 94 9.00$                     846.00$                 
46 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device, Filter Sock EA 2 70.00$                   140.00$                 
47 9040-T-2 Inlet Protection Device, Maintenance EA 2 70.00$                   140.00$                 
48 9999-A Lift Station Column LS 1 25,000.00$            25,000.00$            
49 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1 36,512.00$            36,512.00$            
50 11,050-A Concrete Washout LS 1 1,000.00$              1,000.00$              
51 260000-01 Electrical LS 1 10,000.00$            10,000.00$            
52 333200-01 Lift Station, Complete LS 1 148,981.00$          148,981.00$          

SUBTOTAL (ROUNDED): 402,000.00$          
CONTINGENCY 10% 40,200.00$            

TOTAL 442,200.00$          

UNIT PRICE

OPINION OF PROBABLE PROJECT COSTS

ITEM 

NO.
ITEM CODE ITEM UNIT

OAK PARK BLVD SEWER REPLACEMENT

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

119.0115.08

QUANTITY EXTENDED PRICE

\\Gemini\Volume\Projects\2019\119.0115.08\CADD\EstRefInfo_OakParkBlvd.xlsm
1 of 1

1/6/2023
342

Item 23.



343

Item 24.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
DAILY INVOICES FOR 01/17/2023 COUNCIL MEETING



344

Item 24.



345

Item 24.



346

Item 24.



347

Item 24.



348

Item 24.



349

Item 24.



350

Item 24.



351

Item 24.



352

Item 24.



353

Item 24.



354

Item 24.



355

Item 24.



356

Item 24.



357

Item 24.



358

Item 24.



359

Item 24.



360

Item 24.



361

Item 24.



362

Item 24.



363

Item 24.



364

Item 24.



365

Item 24.



366

Item 24.



367

Item 24.



368

Item 24.



369

Item 24.



370

Item 24.



371

Item 24.



372

Item 24.



373

Item 24.



374

Item 24.



375

Item 24.



376

Item 24.



377

Item 24.



378

Item 24.



379

Item 24.



380

Item 24.

WagnerS
Typewritten Text
COUNCIL INVOICES FOR 01/17/2023 MEETING



381

Item 24.



382

Item 24.



383

Item 24.



384

Item 24.



385

Item 24.



386

Item 24.



387

Item 24.



388

Item 24.



389

Item 24.



390

Item 24.



391

Item 24.



392

Item 24.



393

Item 24.



394

Item 24.



395

Item 24.



396

Item 24.



397

Item 24.



398

Item 24.



399

Item 24.



400

Item 24.



401

Item 24.



402

Item 24.



403

Item 24.



404

Item 24.



405

Item 24.



406

Item 24.



407

Item 24.



408

Item 24.



409

Item 24.



410

Item 24.



411

Item 24.



412

Item 24.



413

Item 24.



414

Item 24.



415

Item 24.



416

Item 24.



417

Item 24.



418

Item 24.



419

Item 24.



420

Item 24.



421

Item 24.



422

Item 24.



423

Item 24.



424

Item 24.



425

Item 24.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of January 3, 2023
	230103MINUTES

	Item 2.	PH-Capital Improvements Program
	CIP council #2.mem
	CIP Summary sheets for Jan 17

	Item 3.	Reimbursement Resolution
	cip reimb res.MEM
	Res-Reimbursement

	Item 4.	PH-Rezoning to R-4-Midway Business Park
	1. - CC staff Report on midway park zoning amendment 1-17-2022
	2. - ZoningLocationMap
	3. - Lots where assisted living facility is proposed
	4. - Request Letter
	5. - 1994 Zoning Agreement
	6.-New Zoning Agreement. signed 12.7.22(Revised)
	7_Ord-Rezoning-Midway Business Park RZ22-003

	Item 5.	PH-Rezoning-Lots 1-4 of Midway 2nd Addition
	1. - CC staff Report on Rezone of Lovejoy Cul-de-sac
	2_ZoningLocationMap
	3_Ord-Rezoning-Lovejoy Cul-de-sac RZ22-005

	Item 6.	Work Session Minutes - 01/03/23
	01-03-23 Work Session Minutes

	Item 7.	Standing Committee - January 3, 2023
	01-03-23 Standing Committees Minutes-Final

	Item 8.	Boards & Commission Reappointment
	2023-01-10_HTF_Merner_Reappoint

	Item 9.	Retail alcohol 1-17-23
	01-17-23 Retail alcohol

	Item 11.	Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual Updates
	Acct & Pur Manual Council Memo 012023
	Section 11
	Section 28

	Item 12.	CDBG-Service Agency Contract: Exceptional Persons, Inc
	1. Council memo contract with EPIf
	2. contract for review

	Item 13.	Wild Horse Sixth Addition Final Plat
	1 CC Wild Horse 6th f
	2 ZoningLocationMap
	3 Final Plat - Signed
	4 Wild Horse Ridge 6 DOD - Signed
	5 public comment from Phil Kenealy

	Item 14.	UV Lamp Purchase Approval
	1-UV Memo & Quotes

	Item 15.	Final Acceptance - College Hill Parking Lot Improvements
	1. Final Out Memo - College Hill Parking Lot Improvements Project
	2. Retainage Release - Signed
	3. Payment, Performance, & Maintenance Bond

	Item 16.	License Agreement-Aureon-West 2nd Street
	1.  Fiber Optic License Agreement Memo - 2nd Street
	2. Signed License Agreement
	3. Exhibit A - Aureon CF - 2022-09-14
	4. Exhibit B - Aureon-FIB(Cedar Falls)-(signed)

	Item 17.	License Agreement - Windstream-West 12th & Union
	1.  Fiber Optic License Agreement Memo - Windstream 12th & Union
	2. License Agreement
	3. Exhibit A - Union Rd Windstream
	4. Exhibit B Approved Windstream Plans - 12th & Hudson

	Item 18.	Temp Easement - Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Repair Project
	1. ROW Memo - Oak Park Sanitary
	2. Temp Easement & Purchase Agreement

	Item 19.	Final Acceptance- Wild Horse Ridge Fifth Addition
	1. Final Memo - Wild Horse 5th
	2. Wild Horse 5th Final Plat
	3. Wild Horse 5th Maintenance Bond
	4. Final Liens Wild Horse 5th & 6th Final

	Item 20.	Final Acceptance- Wild Horse Ridge Sixth Addition
	1. Final Memo - Wild Horse 6th
	2. Wild Horse 6th Final Plat
	3. Wild Horse 6th Maintenance Bond
	4. Final Liens Wild Horse 5th & 6th Final

	Item 21.	Warranty Deed -Main Street Reconstruction
	1. Warranty Deed Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	Parcel 124

	Item 22.	Set PH-PS&E - Intersection Improvements
	1. Memo PSE - Various Intersection Improvements
	3. Specifications
	4. Estimate

	Item 23.	Set PH-PS&E - Oak Park Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project
	1. Memo PSE - Oak Park Sanitary Sewer
	3. Specs_2023-01-06_OakParkBlvdSewerReplacement
	4. EOPC_2023-01-06_OakParkBlvd_Updated

	Item 24.	Allow Bills and Claims for January 17, 2023
	1 Daily Invoices 011723
	2 Council Invoices 011723

	Bottom

